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HCL Technologies Ltd.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND STAND ALONE RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS OF HCL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED PREPARED UNDER INDIAN GAAP

Investors are cautioned that this discussion contains statements that involve risks and uncertainties. When used in this
discussion, ‘anticipate’, ‘believe’, ‘estimate’, ‘intend’, ‘will’, and ‘expect’ and other similar expressions as they relate the
Company or its business are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obliga-
tions to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or
otherwise. Actual results, performances or achievements could differ materially from those expressed or implied in such
statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include those described under the heading ‘Risk
Factors’ in the Prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) as well as factors discussed
elsewhere in this report. Readers are cautioned as not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements as they
speak only as of their dates. The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
__financial statements included herein and the notes thereto.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The Company’s revenues are generated principally from software services provided on a time-and-materials or on a fixed
price, fixed time frame basis. The Company has a rich heritage in technologies like the Internet and E-Commerce, Net-
working and Internetworking, Internet Telephony, Telecom, Embedded Software, ASIC/VLSI design and testing, Satellite
Communication, Wireless Communication and Component based Object Technologies like COM, DCOM and CORBA.
Based on these technologies and the experience in product engineering and support, the Company offers a comprehen-
sive range of services for new product development and support of existing products at leading technology and applica-
tion product companies. ‘

The Company’s services include customized software development, maintenance and re-engineering services as well as
dedicated offshore software development centers (SDC) for certain clients.

The Company has the capability to work with a wide variety of computing platforms ranging from Open Client Server
systems comprising all flavors of UNIX, Microsoft platforms, AS/400 to enterprise servers like IBM Mainframes. The
Company has over the years made significant investment in software engineering processes and offshore methodologies.
During fiscal 2000, three SDCs of the Company obtained Capability Maturity Model (CMM) Level 4 accreditation of the
Software Engineering Institute. Based on these capabilities, the Company offers comprehensive Application development
and Networking services to medium and large end-user organizations in the domain of Finance and Banking, Manufactur-
ing, Telecom, Insurance, Transportation and Public Sector among others.

The Company, since its inception has placed a strong emphasis on building a world class sales and marketing infrastruc-
.ure that provides confidence to its clients and is sensitive to the culture and needs of the local market. The Company has
established local companies in each important country to provide the necessary comfort in its dealings with the decision-
makers and operational personnel in client organizations. The Company believes that its rigorous, research oriented
approach to identify, qualify and develop relationship has been a key differentiator in the market place. This has helped
the Company to position itself with its clients on the basis of value proposition as against a pure cost advantage that an

offshore development facility in india provides.

REVENUE PROFILE

The Company’s revenues have grown from Rs.256 million in 1996 to Rs.3,997 million in 2000, reflecting a 15.6 times
_growth over a short span of just 4 years.

The Company offers a significant portion of its services on a time-and-material basis, in addition to having some services
on a fixed-price, fixed-time frame basis.

OTHER INCOME

Other income includes interest income, dividend income, income from sale of import licenses and profit/ loss on sale of
investments.

COST OF REVENUE

Cost of revenues primarily consists of personnel cost and software development expenses of third party consultants
including those charged by subsidiaries.

ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

Administration and other expenses consist expenses relating to communications, finance and administration, legal and
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professional charges, advertisements, brand building, rent, traveling and conveyance including those incurred on projects
and miscellaneous administrative costs.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company had instituted an Employees Stock Offer Plan — 1999 (“Plan”) for all eligible employees in pursuance of the
special resolution approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on September 13, 1999. The Plan
provided for the issuance of 20,000,000 options to eligible employees as recommended by the Committee constituted for
this purpose.

Each option granted under the Plan, entitles the holder thereof with an option to apply for and be issued one equity share
of the Company.

As on June 30, 2000, 416 employees had exercised their options and were allotted 1,083,218 shares. The number of
outstanding options as on June 30, 2000 amounted to 17,839,606 that are held by 3,443 employees.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER (IPO)

In December 1999, the Company approached the capital market with an Initial Public Offering for 14,200,000 shares at a

price of Rs. 580 per share. The issue got an overwhelming response. Subsequently the Company’s shares have been
listed at three stock exchanges in India.

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT CENTRES

Services of the Company are delivered through a network of 7 Software Development Centers located at Noida, Gurgaon,
Chennai and Ambattur, spread over an area aggregating around 2.5 lakh square feet.

INFRASTRUCTURE ADDITIONS

During the fiscal 2000, the Company invested Rs. 448 million in building, leasehold land, equipments, computers etc. as
against Rs.152 million for fiscal year 1999.

In order to enhance capacity, the Company plans to add another 3,000 seats during the fiscal 2001 to take the total count
of seats as of June 30, 2001 to 5,000.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (STAND ALONE)

(Rs. in million)
Fiscal years ended June 30

1997 1998 1999 2000
Service Income 541 1,242 2,757 3,997
Other Income 43 78 180 521
Total Income 584 1,320 2,937 4,518
Cost of Software Development 260 436 1,312 1,451
Administration and other expenses 133 228 387 811
Total Expenditure 393 664 1,699 2,262
Operating Profit 191 656 1,238 2,256
Interest 47 51 43 -
Depreciation 24 37 164 154
Profit before tax 120 568 1,031 2,102
Provision for tax 16 13 21 103
Profit after tax 104 555 1,010 1,999

FISCAL 1999 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2000

Service Revenues. The Company’s revenues increased by 45% to Rs. 3,997 million in fiscal 2000 from Rs. 2,757 million
in fiscal 1999. In fiscal 2000, the revenues from America were approximately Rs.3,403 million, an increase of approxi-
mately Rs.1,387 million as compared to fiscal 1999. Share of America in the total revenue rose to 85% in fiscal 2000 from
73% in fiscal 1999. In an effort to cover more geographical domains, the Company continued to have a focus on Europe,
Australasia and Japan markets. These markets contributed approximately Rs.594 million to Company’s revenue. These
markets had a modest 15% share in the overall revenue in fiscal 2000 and steps are being taken to enhance the same.
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Other income. The Company’s other income grew to Rs. 521 million in fiscal 2000 from Rs. 180 milion in fiscal 1999.
This mainly related to income from investments and also interest income earned by the Company from deposits. Other
income included the income from deposit of funds raised by way of public issue, pending deployment.

Cost of Software development. Employee costs of the Company increased to Rs. 686 million in fiscal 2000 from

Rs. 438 million in fiscal 1999, an increase of 57%. Employee costs as a percentage of service revenues increased mar-
ginally to 17% in fiscal 2000 from 16% in fiscal 1999. The number of billable employees has gone up from 1,343 as on
June30, 1999 to 2,268 as on June 30, 2000. The Company subcontracts certain projects to its subsidiaries and third
parties. These costs decreased to Rs.765 million in fiscal 2000 from Rs.874 miilion in fiscal 1999. Of the total subcontract
costs, Rs.577 million and Rs.639 million were paid in fiscal 2000 and 1999 respectively to the subsidiaries of the Com-
pany for providing software development services.

Administration and other expenses. These costs among others consist of rent, communication costs (including on
project), travel costs (including on project), electricity, repair and maintenance, software license fees and legal and profes-
sional charges, etc. These costs went up to Rs.811 million in fiscal 2000 from Rs.387 million in fiscal 1999, an increase of
109%. The increase in costs was mainly on account of travel, communication, recruitment and other utilities costs, which
arose due to shift in business to offshore from onsite. As a percentage of setvice revenue, such costs increased to 20% in
fiscal 2000 from 13% in fiscal 1999.

Interest expense. There was no interest cost in fiscal 2000 as compared to an expense of Rs.43 million in fiscal 1999.

Depreciation. Depreciation reduced to Rs.154 million in fiscal 2000 from Rs.164 million in fiscal 1999. The Company had
revised the estimated full life of assets in 1999, which resulted in higher depreciation for that year and a corresponding
reduction in the fiscal year 2000. The gross block in the same period increased to Rs.979 million in fiscal 2000 from
Rs.628 million in fiscal 1999.

Taxation. The Company derives majority of its revenues from export of software from its STP units. Hence all its profits
are exempt under Section 10A of the Income tax Act, 1961. SDC wise tax exemption details are given below. The Com-
pany only provides for taxes payable on interest income earned by deployment of idle funds, capital gains on sale of
investments and profit on sale of import licences. As per the current provisions of the Income tax Act, the Company is
entitled to a tax holiday of 10 years. As per the current tax laws, the Company may not be required to pay any taxes on its
software income as all profits from software exports are deductible under Section 80HHE. The tax expense for fiscal 2000
was Rs.103 million.

SDC wise tax exemption dates

SDC Location Period till which tax exemption would be available
‘Chennai (NM Road) 31-March-2006
3urgaon (Udyog Vihar) 31-March-2006
Gurgaon (Unit Il) 31-March-2009
Noida 31-March-2006
Chennai (Ambattur) 31-March-2006
Chennai (Greams Road) 31-March-2006
Chennai (PM Towers) 31-March-2009

Profit after tax. The Company’s profit after tax increased to Rs.1,999 million in fiscal 2000 from Rs.1,010 million in fiscal
1999, an increase of 98%. Profit after tax as a percentage of service revenues increased to 50% in fiscal 2000 from 37 %

in fiscal 1999.

FISCAL 1998 COMPARED TO FISCAL 1999

Service Revenues. The Company’s revenues increased 122% to Rs.2,757 million in fiscal 1999 from Rs.1,242 million in
fiscal 1998. in fiscal 1999, the revenues from America were approximately Rs.2,016 million, an increase of approximately
Rs.1,137 million, as compared to fiscal 1998. However, share of America in the total revenue rose to 73% in fiscal 1999
from 71% in fiscal 1998. In an effort to cover more geographical domains, the Company increased its focus on Europe,
Australasia and Japan markets. These markets contributed approximately Rs.741 million to Company’s revenue, a growth
of approximately Rs.474 million, over fiscal 1998. The percentage share of these markets in the overall revenue reduced
to 27% in fiscal 1999 from 29% in fiscal 1998.
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Other income. The Company’s other income grew to Rs.180 million in fiscal 1999 from Rs.77 million in fiscal 1998. This
related to the sale of shares of HCL Technologies America and HCL James Martin Inc. to HCL Technologies Bermuda, a
100% subsidiary of the Company.

Cost of Software development. Employee costs of the Company increased to Rs.438 million in fiscal 1999 from Rs.278
million in fiscal 1998, an increase of 58%. Employee costs as a percentage of service revenues fell to 16% in fiscal 1999
from 22% in fiscal 1998. This is mainly on account of higher billing rates per man-month and also higher utilization levels.
The Company subcontracts certain projects to third parties and subsidiaries. These costs increased to Rs.874 million in
fiscal 1999 from Rs.158 million in fiscal 1998. Of the total subcontract costs in fiscal 1999, Rs.639 million was paid to the
subsidiaries of the Company for providing software development services.

Administration and other eéxpenses. These costs mainly consist of rent, communication costs, trave| costs, electricity,
repair and maintenance, software license fees, legal and professional charges, etc. These costs went up to Rs.386 million
in fiscal 1999 from Rs.227 million in fiscal 1998, an increase of 70%. The increase in costs was mainly on account of

travel, communication and other utilities costs. As a percentage of revenue, such costs fell to 1 3% in fiscal 1999 from 17%
in fiscal 1998.

Interest expense. Interest expense reduced to Rs. 43 million in fiscal 1999 from Rs. 51 million in fiscal 1998.

Depreciation. Depreciation increased 343% to Rs. 164 million in fiscal 1999 from Rs. 37 million in fiscal 1998. The
Company revised the estimated full life of the assets, which resulted in higher depreciation for the year. The gross biock in
the same period increased to Rs. 627 million in fiscal 1999 from Rs. 479 million in fiscal 1998.

Profit after tax. The Company’s profit after tax increased to Rs. 1,010 million in fiscal 1999 from Rs. 555 million in fiscal

1998, an increase of 82%. Profit after tax as a percentage of service revenues decreased to 37% in fiscal 1999 from 45%
in fiscal 1998.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Rs. in million)

1997 1998 1999 2000
Revenues 2,611 5,029 7,245 9,256
Less: Stock-based sales incentive - - - 101
Net Revenues 2,611 5,029 7,245 9,154
Cost of Revenues 1,628 3,079 4,370 4,772
Gross Profit 983 1,950 2,875 4,382
Operating Expenses
Sales and Marketing 257 540 590 669
General and Administrative 527 760 1,160 1,584
Depreciation and Amortization 116 194 306 314
Total Operating Expenses 899 1,494 2,056 2,567
Income from Operations 84 456 819 1,815
Interest Expense 132 137 96 34

Interest and Other Income (Net) 73 85 89 538



Income before Income Taxes, Share of Income of Equity
Investees and Minority Interest
Income Tax expense / (benefit)

Income before share of income of equity investees and
Minority Interest

Share of Income /(Loss) of equity investees
Minority Interest

Net Income /(Loss)

Exchange Rate Used (US $1=)

HCL TECHNOLOGIES

HCL

(Rs. In Million)

25 404 812 2,319
(5) 11 28 263
1997 1998 1999 2000
30 393 784 2,056
(75) 64 169 279
15 11 10 )

~ (30) 468 963 2,332
35.63 42.34 43.56 44.75
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Eighth Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts for the year
ended June 30, 2000.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Consolidated financial results of your Company and its subsidiaries prepared under US GAAP:

Rs. in million

Year Ended June 30,
2000 1999
Gross revenue from software services 9,256 7,245
Gross profit 4,382 2,875
Operating expenses 2,567 2,056
Income from operations 1,815 819
Interest expense 34 96 -
Interest and other income, net 538 89
Income before income tax 2,319 812
Income tax expense 263 28
Share of income of equity investee 279 169
Minority interest (2) 10
Net Income 2,333 963
Exchange Rate Used (US$1=) Rs.44.75 Rs.43.56
Financial resuits of your Company as a stand-alone entity prepared under Indian GAAP:
Rs. in million
Year Ended June 30,
2000 1999
Revenue from software Services 3,997 2,757
Other Income 521 180
Profit before depreciation and taxes 2,256 1,195
Depreciation 154 165
Provision for tax 103 21
Profit after tax 1,999 1,010
Balance brought forward from previous year 1,577 785
Available for appropriation 3,576 1,795
Appropriations:
Transfers to General Reserve 250 200
Dividend @ 5% proposed 28 17
Tax on Dividend 6 2
Balance carried forward 3,292 1,577
Total 3,576 1,795

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

an impressive increase of 45% over the previous year software services revenue of Rs. 2,757 million. Increase in revenue

is on account of a) increased business from existing customers, b) shift in business from onsite to offshore, ¢) increased
billing rates and d) addition of new customers.
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Operating profit grew to Rs. 1,735 million (43 % of total revenues) from Rs. 1,015 million (37% of total revenues), a growth
rate of 71%. Other income of Rs. 521 million included the income from funds raised through the public issue pending
deployment. The above factors together with an increase in utilization have led to an increase in the operating profits.
Profits after tax have gone up by 98%, from Rs. 1,010 million to Rs. 1,999 million.

DIVIDEND

Your directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Re. 0.20 per share (5% on par value of Rs. 4) for the financial year
ended on 30th June, 2000. The total amount of dividend is Rs. 27.9 million on shares allotted so far as against Rs.16.6
million for the previous year. The dividend, if approved will be paid to those Members whose names appear in the Regis-
ter of Members on the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Under the Indian Income Tax Act 1961, the receipt of
dividend is tax-free in the hands of the shareholders. The tax on distributed profits, payable by the Company would
amount to Rs. 6 million.

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT CENTRES

Services of your Company are delivered through a network of 7 Software Development Centers located at Noida,
_Gurgaon, Chennai and Ambattur, spread over an area aggregating around 2.5 lakh square feet. The number of billable

employees at these centers has gone up from 1,343 as on June 30, 1999 to 2,268 as on June 30, 2000.

SUBSIDIARIES

The reports and audited accounts of the subsidiary Companies, along with the statement pursuant to Section 212 of the

Companies Act, 1956 are annexed with this report. Given below is a summary of the structural changes and significant

events related to these Companies during the year under review:

a) HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited

Your Company acquired a 99.88 % stake in HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited, a Company engaged in network-

ing services business in India.

b) HCL Technologies Bermuda Limited

HCL Technologies Bermuda Limited (HCL Bermuda) a wholly owned subsidiary of your Company transferred its 100%
ownership of HCL Technologies Europe Limited, UK and its subsidiaries to HCL Technologies America Inc. HCL Technolo-
gies Europe Limited has subsidiaries in Sweden, Germany, Netherlands, Switzerland, Belgium and ltaly.

HCL Bermuda made strategic investments in technology led funds amounting to US $8.82 million It has also made a
strategic investment of US $2 million directly in Harmony Software Inc., USA.
¢) HCL Technologies America Inc. (HCL America)

~ HCL America is a wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Bermuda. Consequent to the transfer of ownership of HCL Technolo-
jies Europe Limited, the financial results of HCL America Inc. and HCL Technologies Europe Limited were consolidated to

reflect the accounts of the transferred business at historical costs.

d) intelicent Inc.

Intelicent Inc., a subsidiary of HCL Bermuda, formerly HCL James Martin & Co. Inc. has been merged with HGL America,
effective July 1, 2000.

e) HCL Holdings GmbH, Austria (HCL Austria)

HCL Austria became a subsidiary of HCL Bermuda in the current fiscal year. HCL Austria has a 50% interest in HCL Perot
Systems, a joint venture with Perot Systems, a leading IT outsourcing and systems integration Company with major
clients in the banking, energy, healthcare, insurance, manufacturing, retail and telecommunications industry in North

America and Europe.

f) HCL Technology South Africa (Proprietary) Limited (HCL South Africa)

HCL South Africa was set up as a wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Bermuda to undertake business in South Africa.
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER

in December 1999, your Company successfuily completed an Initial Public Offering for 14,200,000 shares at a price of
Rs. 580 per share, aggregating Rs. 8,236 million.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Prior to the public issue and during the year a stock split of 2.5-for-1 (a subdivision of every equity share from the par
value of Rs.10 into 2.5 equity shares of par value of Rs.4 each) was effected. Your Company also issued bonus shares in
the ratio of one share for every two held by capitalization of general reserve. i
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SHARES UNDER COMPULSORY DEMATERIALIZATION

The Equity Shares of the company have been included in the list of specified scrips where delivery of shares in
dematerialized (demat) form is compulsory effective July 24, 2000, if the same are traded on a Stock Exchange which is
linked to a Depository.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Your Company had instituted an Employees Stock Offer Plan -1999 (“Plan”) for all eligible employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries The Plan provided for the issuance of 20,000,000 options to eligible employees and are administered by

the Compensation Committee comprising of a majority of independent directors. Under the plan, options have been issued
to the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. '

Each option granted under the Plan, entitles the holder thereof with an option to apply for and be issued one equity share
of the Company.

The details of the options granted under the 1999 plan are given below:

Description Details
1. Total number of options granted (gross) 20,889,512
2. The pricing formula At the fair value as on date of grant
3. Number of options vested 2,427 141
4. Number of options exercised 1,083,218
5. Number of options lapsed 29,706
6.  Number of options forfeited 1,927,716
7. Variation in terms of options None
8. Money realized by exercise of options Rs. 275, 086,854
9.  Total number of options in force as on June 30, 2000 17,848,872
10.  Grant to Senior Management
Number of Options 1,783,396

Vesting Period
1. Employees holding 5% or more of the total number of options

Between 3 to 7 years

granted during the year None
12.  Employees granted options equal to or exceeding 1% or more

of the issued capital during the year None
13. Diluted Earnings Per Share Rs.14.18

Human resources is an important asset for the organization. In order to ensure the continued involvement of employees in
Company’s growth, the Board has approved the Employees Stock Options Plan 2000 for grant of stock options and issue
of equity shares on exercise of options to eligible employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. Total
number of 15,000,000 equity shares have been reserved under the Plan.

YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE

Steps were taken to ensure that all operating systems are fully Y2K compliant and the resulting roll over to the new millen-
nium took place without any disruption.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.Vineet Nayyar and Mr.Richard Burt retire by rotation as
Directors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment.

AUDITORS

The auditors, M/S BSR & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and have confirmed
their eligibility and willingness to accept office of Auditors, if re-appointed.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EX-
CHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Disclosure of particulars as required by Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the report of board of directors) Rules,
1988, are set out in the annexure included in this report.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As required under the provisions of section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of
employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, the names and other particulars of employees are set out in the annexure included
in this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation to the contribution made by employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries during the year under review. The Company has achieved impressive growth through the competence, hard
work, solidarity, cooperation and support of employees at all levels. Your directors thank the customers, clients, vendors
and other business associates for their continued support of your Company’s growth. The Directors also wish to thank the
Government Authorities, Financial Institutions and Shareholders for their cooperation and assistance extended to the

Company.
For and on behalf of the board of directors

Mumbai SHIV NADAR
“Date: 10th August, 2000 Chairman, President & CEO

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Particulars pursuant to companies (disclosure of particulars in the report of the board of directors) Rules, 1988

a) Conservation of Energy

The operations of your Company are not energy-intensive. Adequate measures have, however, been taken to reduce
energy consumption, wherever possible. As energy cost forms a very small part of total cost, the impact on cost is not
material.

b) Research and Development

Since business and technologies are changing constantly, continuous investments in research and development need to
be made. Your Company continues to have a strong focus on research and developmental activities in the areas of
software engineering, offshore project management, emerging technologies, and new tools and techniques. Your com-
pany has, as a result of research, been able to develop processes and methodologies that have resulted in constant
improvement in quality and productivity.

Expenditure on R&D for the year ended June 30, 2000

Rs. in million

“evenue Expenditure 35.74
Capital Expenditure 13.38
Total R&D Expenditure 49.12
R&D Expenditure as a percentage of software services revenue 1.22%

c) Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

Your Company’s core businesses demand absorption of emerging technologies to stay at the cutting edge of technology.
Your Company has developed further methods for absorbing, adapting and effectively deploying new technologies. Your
Company has made significant additions to the number of servers used for software development as well as file and print
servers. Your Company has made investments in applications and other software tools required for engineering design
work in all its Software Development Centers.

d) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo
Rs. in million

2000 1999
Foreign exchange earnings 4,097 2,778
Foreign exchange outgo 1,261 1,040

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Mumbai SHIV NADAR
Date: 10th August, 2000 Chairman, President & CEO




80UIS PI3K
swAo|dug snomaid

HIANYWIWOD BNIM
INVLINSNGD

INVIINSNOD INVLSISSY
W9Y

HIINIONT JUYMLH0S HOINIS
HIDYNYW LIIr0Hd
181Y193dS

430V dNOYD - N9ISIA FYYMLIOS
INYLIINSNOD

HIFYNYIN LOIN0Hd dNoHD
900 - IN3QISIHd IDIA
HIINIONT HOINIS
Qv31roYd

W9

340 TINNOSYAd 431H9
HOLYNIGHO0D 103r0Hd
H30v3T Wyal

(S301AH3S TWIINHIAL) HIDYNYIN
44V1S TYOINHOAL HIAWIW
YIINIONT THYMIH0S HOINAS
LINVLINSNOJ HOINIS

YIDYNYIN 1SSV
YIDYNYIN 1SSV
HIGYNYW LO3r0Hd
(SNDISIQ) HITYNYIN

(3) 99N OHIINTIOS
¥3av31 L93r0dd
YIINIONT HOINIS
INYIINSNOD 31vI90SSY
YITYNYW D0Ud
YIINIONT NDISIE WS
0BH-YDN HS

HIDYNYIN TINNOSHId 1SSV
(SNDISIQ) HIDYNYIN ALNAIA
HIINIONT HOINAS

WS HIDYNYW LSSV
¥3ava1 193r04d

WS- DN HS

HIINIONT

YI9YNYW ALNdIQ
HITYNYIN HOINIS
HIYNYIN

HIDYNYW LONA0Hd
INVLINSNOD 'HS

WD

JONVNI-dA dNOHD
HIDYNYIN 103r0Hd
Q9Y-HIINVW AQ

dA INVLSISSY
SINILSAS-HIW 'N3D 1SSV
HIIYNYIN LDIrOHd

H301440 WOINHOIL "HS
HIDYNVIN LD3r0Hd
Wd9

wswAoidwy
Snojaald Uy pley uogeudiseg

39504 HIV NVIONI
AONVLINSNOD OHJSNYHL
1H130 'S9L

(VEYHIAAH ‘INYLINSNOD AAHYY
SW3LSASIHO4
11SYLSNONI NNHIANS
art {1} YHINTD viva Sod
REICATVY

‘aLTWIDINSLIPNA

QL1 QYYNIVd LITTMIH T0H
‘AL YY)V LITIMIH 10H
‘AL QYVHIYd LITIMIH TOH
‘AL Q¥YXOYd LITTMIH TOH
‘0L YN0V LIATMIH T9H
011 SWALSAS 10Y3d 10H
W0J313L NHIHLHON
YOIHINY T0H

SHILNAWOI 1LY9YHd

‘AL QHYIIYd LIFIMIH T0H
SWILSAS 140S Oy

8oL

a119830

‘047 08OV LITTMIH TOH

‘AL 0¥V NOYd LITMIH TOH

SOILNYNOHIY NYLSNANIH

JHOTYONYE 0QHT

IYNNIHD' L40S FHNLNA

‘AL QgvNIVd LITIMIH ToH

$0L

YOION “QL7 1Ad (1) SWILSAS NDISIA 39NIavD
QL () SLNINNHLSNT SYX3L

‘AL QHYIVd LITTMIH 104

YINNYLIHE

SOLLMYNOY3Y NYLSNONIH

QL7 QYYNOYd LITTMIH TOH

AVEW0d ‘097N

JHYMLAOS 3UNLnd

IYNNIHD “ALT SWILSAS TWILSNONI HYIANYS
IYNNIHO 'STOHINOD '8 SINFWNHLSNI YLD
‘AL YY)V LITTMIH TOH

Q3LIAN SASIND ¥ivL.

ST3L0H NYIN]

‘0L QYYNIYd LITTMIH TOH

SOLINYWIS AHYNIE

‘AL QYUY LITTMIH 10

QL1 NDILYHOdH0D 19H

NYdY QL7 0SLIrNd

QL7 QUYXOYd LLIIMIH 104

SIWILSAS FHYMLAOS SIHONH

SLNIWAD YMIY J3dAVF

SoL

QL7 (d) SLWH

‘017 GHYYOYd LLITMIH T0H
QL7 QHYADV LLITMIH 10H

WwawAoldw3 snoald

61001 re
L6-AON-61 8
86-A0N-Z £l
66-B0-+Z el
86-Unf-g 6
16-Bny-p 12
S6-1dy-01 £l
86-030-%1 9l
L6-1BI-0 L 2
96-I07- | g8
96-Inr-1 02
96-Inp- | 9
9611 0t
96-Inf- | ]S
66-AeN-L k4
16-100-G1 0l
66-10y-z | 6
16-034-¢ 0l
96-IN7-1 /A
16-1e-11 0t
16-930-8 6L
16-035-4¢ LE
96-Inr-1 il
96-1N7-1 £l
96-190-0¢ 2
86-1dy-zz 1
16-03g-| g
96-Inr-| 9
16-090-21 9l
86-0nY-1€ 8l
16¥00-12 0t
96-Inr- 1 6t
16-0ny-g 9
16-494-21 4
961 [
16-034-p2 ]
86-Unr-gL 8
66-034-G7 61
66-AEN-61 0l
96-1Nr-1 vl
16-1EN-p Gl
66-1ew-21 L
16-ReN-g 9l
16-03g-G| gl
9671 8L
86-10y-| 1l
16-1dy-1| St
96-Inr-4 0l
66-uer-g| 8L
16-190-9 gl
16-BA-Y ¥
6-deg-| 62
96-In7-1 4
96-Inr-1 A
(s1eap}

Buior joajeg  sausuadxy

v0Z'ElL
¥58°890°L
162'66.
fizaat]
002'202
G96°€/6
049288
982'v€9
16E'€8L
896709
245
052'€6.
228'719
959°186°}
G95°G6.
86v'v68
¥82'9€9
Gleel9
69G'8€9
96661
£98'7/2°L

189'pS.
072509
22'G19
9€1'99.
9/8'169
9685,
001594
671'9L6
009°896
91'282
L1295}
708'7E9
002224
081°929
0€0'209
882°6.
£6/'268
8€2°609
008'296
£09°0E6
861'/69
09.°696
1E7°062
199'68¢" L
860°961'°€
026188
0/§°1ELL
266'61€"L
0€L'242
v80'9Lp'L

096226

000°SEZ
ZLLBLE'L

('sy)

uopelaUNWiaY

34

EX:]

38
ISW
SW

38

ve

54
Id

ELY
Yol
3
Id
‘HOAL'd
‘HO3L g
SW

SW 'udaL'g
38
SN
S
[RETRE]

TN
AN
EL

n

38
EL|
AN
HOIL W
SW
38
‘I8
va
aw
yaaig
‘g
RN
WJ09d
EL
Bl

‘34
YMOI'VO
38
ISW
EX|
vod
d'Hd

EL

(90ua195 13indwon) I
ER:|

HO3L W

OSW

EL
EX

SUOEIBNG euoyeonp3

HIDYNYW TvHaNID
HIOYNYI 103r04d
YIIYNYI 193r0Hd
HIOYNYI 103r0Hd
YIOYNYW 193rod
HIDYNYIN 103r04d "HS
YIDYNYIN 103r08d HS
HIGYNYIN 1OTr0ud
HIDYNYIN WYHDOU
HI9YNYIW TYHINID
IN3QISTE 30IA
HIIYNYW LIr0Yd
HIDYNYW LOIr0Hd
(SNOILVHIO M) I'D
Q4H - IN3QIS3Yd 30IA
HIOYNVIN LOIr0Hd
¥30v37 193r0Hd
HIDYNYW 103r04d
HIDYNYI 193r0Hd
HIGYNYIN 103r0Hd
YIOYNYIN TYHINTD AG

HIDYNYW 103r0Hd
HIDYNYI 1D3r0Hd dNOYD
ALVND - HIDYNYIN
HIDYNYW 193r0Hd
JONYHNSSY ALTD - HIDYNYIN
HIDYNYW 10300Hd
HIDYNYW 103r04d
HIOYNYIV 103r0Hd HS
HIDYNYIN INWAYHDO0Hd
HIDYNYW 193r0Hd
ISNOILYHId0 M/H) W'D
QHH - HI9YNYW

H30v31 LOIr0ud
HIDYNYW LO3r0Hd
TYOINHIAL - YIDYNYIY
HIDYNYW 103r0Hd
HIDYNYW

HIDYNYIN 193r0dd
HIDYNYW JNWYHIOHd
HIDYNYW TYHINTD
INYLTNSNOO SSINISNE
HIDYNYIN 1D3r04d dNOYD
HIDYNYW 193r0dd
SNOLLYHIAO MM W'D
Y84~ dAdNouy
HITYNY TYHINID
HIDVNYIW WYHDOHd
INJQISTH 3D1A 313
HIDYNYIN LIIr0Hd
HIDYNYIW TYHINID AQ

1H0ddNS HOIL- WD
HIIYNYW WYHDOHd
(SNOLYY3d0 Ws) WD

(sanq Jo seN)
uoneubisag

MG 100W NIAvHd

Sy VHLIW HYIANX NNSvHd
9e Y1dN9 aoWyHd
8¢ M HYINNY INVH
43 NYNYHOHYNY" ‘N d

2§ HIVNVONYH NYHWISYHYN
or YSLNVAY 3HOHSIN ONYN

or NN M JHIHLOOJINYN
6E  NVINVIAVHENS vHYYNYS ‘N
or HYNY YAVQN N
Sy NYT133ISYNNI N
6¢ HYINYS N
23 HYHONVIA N
o NIVE I
0S N3S HOHOW
81 AHSOX AYVW
ve ATI0 d33ANYW
€e Nava HSFHNS AW
1€ NYWYH HYMNVHS ' N
ve AHLHOOWYQ3IA W
|57 0V YHAINIAVHO WY
ILANYNHSIEN

6e SYQ NVATYY
€¢ HYHYIHSYIVH H 3
54 HIYNIAOD Y X
oF JANIHZYONd W Y
ok NN VHP
4% | NVINYIAYHENSYAIM
[ NVNNYX NYWYHYAYT
A3 IHYMHSIHYW HSIqOVr
£p NHOP NIAYPNIE & AA!
1 d INYINYNND
84 OvH YHINYINNNYH 9
[43 NNYY 9
€€ NYHVAIHMIS 9
€€ ILVdIQNAYHE VXV YMA
e HYINYHS AHS @
9¢ 800Yr NHOr Nrig
) IAYHN HY MSYHE
Se 4 NVONHNINYTvE
£ AHIHNAYNYY Nave
or LVOVHE MOHSY
21 Vd3HM NVIIHD INHSY
|34 3700 YN HSIHSY
[0} NYINYY HSIHSY
or YLLNa dNNy
ap YNYNYHO HYAINY TINY
oi JFHYHY TNV
23 HNINND AVTIA ONYNY
14 AOY VAVLIAY
or JHYHY MOV
Gy NYUaY M
NHIVAYHIIA WYHLYdVAIQY

a8 WYANVAYHENSYWYH 5 v
L8 NYSILYN S ¥
or ’ NVAIANSYA v

(sresp)
aby aweN

vs
€8
28

08
14
8
Ly
14
Sv
143
£y
144
34
ii4
6¢
8E
£
9€
ge

ve
£e
43
13
0e
62
82
4
9z
14
ve
€2
144
3
02
18
8¢
Il
9t
Gl
Fl
£l

L
0t

D WM oo,

— o en s

ON'S

0002-666 - HY3A TVIONYNI 1104 IHL HOJ GIA0TdINA (v

140d3d SHOLIIHIA 40 L4Vd ONINHOS 9561 'LV SANVAWOI FHL 40 (v2)212 NOLLOIS HIANN LNIWILYLS



06-1e
96-094
6y
L6-Bny
96-Jdy
18-dog
96-0e4
vg-deg
26-99Q
56400

£g-bny
Lg-unp
16-09¢
z6-Inr

6-uep
z6-unp
G6-08Q
G6-Ony
§6-930
26-bny
6-084
Gg-AON
08-190

06-unp
g6-unp
G610y
Le-uer

98-23Q
£6-220
v6-dag
£6-190
16-980
66-92Q
Le-inr
18-190
06-das
96-uer
96-A0N
1g-inr
v6-030
gg-unr
p6-6ed
96-1e
2g-ine
86-100
L6-inr
L6-Inr
L6-Ine
L6-1nr
£6-Uer

80U[S PI6H
WawAojdus3 Snomald

INVIINSNOD 31¥iD0SSY
SIWALSAS-HIDVNYIN 'LSSY
SIALSAS HIOYNVIN
H3av3T VAL
HINWVYHDOUd HS
HIIYNYIN VIHY

'HIINIONT SWILSAS HOINIS
a LSIINIIDS

HIINIINT HOINIS
INVIINSNOD SWALSAS
HIWWYHIOH/LSKIVNY
HIIYNYIA TYHINID LSSY
HIDYNYW LOIrOHd dNOYD
av31rodd

HIOVYNVI

HITYNYIN INVISISSY
H01934ia

INYIINSNOD

Qva1 1130 rodd

SSANISNE NMO

HAINION

JAILNDIXI SWALSAS
HIDYNYIN LIIMOHd dNOHI
430140 'HS

1SATYNY SWILSAS
SIONYITIV 2193 LVHLS-HIDYNYIW TYHINID
HIOYNYIN AHLSNANI
NVINHIVHD 3DIA

.0S. HONT LSIIN3IDS
H3qvIT VAL

HIINIONT

HIIN'SAS LSSV

430¥37 103r0Hd
HIDYNYIA HS

HIINIONT WS HS
40193810

HIINIBNT IALLNDIXT ALNd3d
INVIINSNOQ HS

915 HIDYNVIA

SWILSAS HIDYNYIA

HH 40 QV3H

HIAYIT WYL

HIDYNYIN ONILIIEYIN
LNVIINSNOD

HITNIONT JAILNDIXT HOINIS
dAd

@34 Wad

HIINIINT HOINIS

WdD

@RY-HIW

HOLO3HIO

uswifojdusy
SnojAald Ut pieH uopeubisaq

S0l
‘G NIdSL0D ONIAYY

‘an () ol

IVNNIHO “M/S 38nLnd

¥SN ONIW3LSAS XINIML
IVNNIHO ‘WOL1STY 939
SWILSAS OtdIM

1040

Q17 QHYYOYd LLITMIH 10H
ONi ¥3L HLHNOS

YD ‘HOIHALEN 40 AYLSINIA

0L1 (d) YIONEIHD

L1 QEYYIYd LLTTMIH TOH
"QLT QHY MOV LLITMIH 10H
SASINN Y1vL

HNAUIHSWY 7331 V1YL

Q11 NOLLYHO4H09 10H
NOULYWHOAN! JLNIOJAYM
IVNNHO ‘S30IAHIS NOLLYWHOINI T3LTY
AONVLINSNOD NMO

‘017 QUYMOVd LLIWIH T1OH
(DHAYHIOHdIY ONY dH'Y0) dNOY9- 104
‘AL QUYMIV LLIMIH 19H
JHINID NOILYWHOANI TYNOILYN
SOL

017 NOILYHOdHO 19H

017 STHLSNANI dHOINN

‘a7 QUYMOVd LITIMIH TOH
ousl

vE079 911

‘A17 A4y MOV LITMIH TOH
JOHSYHOM FHVMLA0S SNFDNN
‘a1 QUYMOVd LLITMIH 19H
IVNNIHD ‘SINALSAS VHS

‘A1 LAd %3108

0.7d AHINOILOFHNOD VHIIAY
ANVANOO T¥OIH10313 YIVL
VSN “ONI NEYINMAL

Q11 HYML40S 0Sa

SoL

1T X3ULWY

HLTVIM NOWWOD

S30IAHIS LNIWITYNYW YLva
IVNNIHO “M/S 0Sa

"0L7 ANVAWOD TyDIHL03TA VIV
QL1 SASO4NI 10H

‘AL QHYMOVd LITIMIH TOH
SYILNANOT LLYDVHd

‘AL HYMIV LITIM3IH T9H
0171 aHYNOYd LIFTMIH 10H
NOLLYWOLNY 1dY

wauifo|dw3 snotald

86-190-92
16-Kew-zl
L6-AON-ZL
86-1dy-gl
86-10y-/2
96-08g-0¢€
96-190-12
L167Inp-L
96-InP-|
96-035-08
96-030-9
16-MON-L L
96-Inp- 1
96-Inr-1
96-Gny-1
86-084-G
§6-080-}
16-Unp-€2
986-090-82
g6-ler-gl
96-nr-1
96-unp- |
96-Inf-1
16-MON-E
16190-1
16-1dy-1
86-1dy-/ |
16-1dy-|
96-930-9
86-094-01
96-inr-1
96-100-6
96-0r-1
66-Uer-g
16-AON-CE
66-10y-G1
1674y,
66-Uer-y
16-0ny-p1.
L6772
86-ABIN-L
16-Inr-82
S6-0ny-p1
86BNy
86-Ae-G
86-fB- |
96-Inf- 4
16-084-v¢
96-In-4
96-inr-1
16-d9g-1

Guwior Jo ajeq

€l
61
143

¢l
9l

Gl
t

4
Gl
¢l

6l

13
oL

14

8l
6l
1

€l
i1
gl
9l

L
143
8l
44

St
8l
8l
al
9l
¥l
8l
A
82
8l

8l
8l
o€

(siea))
aauaustg

¥02'€8L
210°1e8
2/6'289
¥8L'€29
5252
8y\'LLL
82€'799
008'Gh8
008'€09
008022
£86'18.
95€°978
e
256'8..
120'622'L
0LE'1e9
8/9'G6€°E
295286
[2%47
y9v'v.8
006'202
728'299
099'612
956'v79
104'269
6LLv2'L
£99'v/2
000'656'7
188'909
09€'6¥9
008°10L
081229
97258
9222y
81899
125°20L'}
958°EV6
828'678
00006
oL I8yt
S8L'eLL
09€'220'}
09279
0.7'819
955098
190'€e€'e
1056552
000'28.L
¥6.180°L
9Q2eTY'L
£99'781'2

(‘su)
UoRBJaUNWEY

LS|
osd
WO W
SN
EL
TN
ISW
YIBLN
L
YOW
ER]
HEX!]
YL
HIILW
HOAL'W
548
vanW
L
5a
HJ3L'dE
yoaL g
¥209d
‘avd
HOIL W
ad
HO3L'd
¥309d
Ho3L'd
EL:|
54
EL]

‘e
EG
ER:!
EL|
VEW
n
JINY
Wan
ELl
VEW W03 4
54
ISW
TN
a8
Yan
Id

38
e

El)]
(66u3) 9S'W

SUOREIYIEND [ELOTeINp]

HIDYNYW 103r0dd
HIGYNYIN L23rodd
HIDYNYIN 1I3r0Hd
H30v37 LO3r0Yd
HIGYNYIW 1I3r0dd
HIDYNYW LIIrOHd dNOYD
HIGYNYIN L03rodd
HIDYNVIN LD3r04d
H3av31 1I3r0kd
HIAYIN 133r04d
HIOYNYIN L03rodd
HIGYNYIN 103rodd
HIGYNYIN TVHINID
HIDYNYIN 103r0Hd
HIDYNYI TYHINTD AQ
HIGYNYIN 123rodd

Q4H-INIAIS34d 3DIA IAENDTXT

H3IOYNVW L23r0Hd
HIDYNVIN LIIr0Hd
HIDYNYW 133r08d
HIGYNYIN LI3r4Hd

SIA - 439YNYIN
HIIYNVIN LO3r0Ud dH9

JONYHNSSY AL - HIDYNYIN

av3a1L93rodd
LN3QIS3dd 3DIA 3X3
HIDYNYI LDAr0Hd
4301440 ADOTONHIAL 43IHD
HIDYNVIN LI3r0Hd
av31.133ro4dd

430v37 123rodd
av31103rodd

HIGYNYIN 1OIr0dd

HAHS INTD - H3DVNYW
WILSAS ONILYHIO-HOW
00Sy-"43d0 40 QvaH
HIGYNYIN LOIr0Hd
HIDYNYIN LD3r0Hd
HIGYNYIW'SASHS

9N - INIQISTH 30IA
HIDYNVIA TSHId 431HD
HIDYNVW LIIrOkd "HS
949 - AviH

HIGYNYIN WYHO0Hd
J9YNYIN 133r0Hd dNOYD
DIMN - INIQISTH 3JIA
1N30ISTHd 30IA INLNIAKE
HIIYNYIW L03M0Hd
HIDYNYW LIIr0Hd ddd
HIDYNVIN JANVHIOUd
0as - avaH

(sanng jo aireN)
uoneubisaq

9g HYWNY NOVH YYIAIA
Ly INGYITNH YNHSIHIHHS AVNIA
i1 YILVHE HYWNY AYNIA
0e INYTIVdHIN d AVTIA
1€ RRALEEIRNT
87 N NYSELYINIA
82 NYSVA'S A
g€ HYIWMY XOHSY A
¥e YNVAVIVEINY IVTIIHL A
£e IVINIA INVIVE A
87 NVSINVD WYIVHOVMINVHL
6 |HQYHSASL
6¢ HYWNY YNHSIUN S L
ge IWVAHSYE 3 L
47 HYWNY TINNS
g NYHOW 1ANS
08 ISHvE LiIfNS
¥e HY)NVHS NYINYWYHENS
0g S ) IHVH33HS
L8 YIWHIA LNYX [HSYHS
82 'S HYYNVHS
0y TWdAYY HYWNY HIANTNVHS
8¢ VLHIW AJICNYS
9 VLdND AJFIMNVS
12 HOOdY M HYWNY AVPNYS
18 YHIVY) AVINYS
1€ FIPYYHIVLLYHE HYIANY TITVS
8% NYWyY 'S
18 NYNYWHSHYIVIAYY 'S
6¢ 1YHNA S
12 HYWMNYAIHS S
£ IHINVHS S
0g NYWYHNHEYHd S
6¢ ‘H NYHONIAYY
%7 A'EN OvH
9y NYHWISYHYN LIPNVY
¥e 9 HSIAVH
oy ' NYIAVY
L NVSIHVANNS AHLHOOWYINVYH
44 IHQ0S Alrvd
4 VHSIW HS3rvd
oy NITYIN BYNNY vY
& AWNYMSYWYY HLYNNHOVY
£y NVHQ4IA0D VHAVY
44 VOVHNLd 'H
0s HINIS d 'd
8y NYHLYNYAQIVA Y
1€ NOTIAVHYONIS H
144 NYHYMSYE Y
47 NAFHY 8
0s YIISY BYWNY W3dd
(sse0p)
by aueN

ON'S

0002-6661 HYIA TVIONYNI4 TN JHL HO4 QIA0TdIA (¥




g-unp
86-AeI
181

16100

16-AON
6-bny
66095
16-004

16BN
26-Re
£8490
16190
16-1dy
16-feN
66190
96-AON
B6-un"
16190
96-unp
L6-uer
96-0a
16-uer
£6-0n0Y
86-A0N
28-hON
167190
66-Uer
S6-Inr
86190
06-dsg
66-uer
96-bny
96-1en
g-unp
L6
96-0ny
16-Dny
96-G24
86-uer
S6-lep
96-Rely
16094
g6-bny
66-084
96-G84
161ty
Lg-nr
16-dy
96-uer

20UIS pioH
waw/oldui snomsid

INVIINSNOD
INVLINSNOD HS
HIIYNYW dNOYD
HIDVYNYIN L23r0Hd
d9N A3d SSINISNE
Q4301440 J1ILN3DS
HIIYNVIN LOFr0Hd

"0H0 J0IAY3S TYNOISSIIO0H "HIW

rO4d-4OW HS

S3IAHIS ONINYE QYIH
HIOVYNVIN AYHOO0Hd
HIDQVNYI LNYLSISSY
H01334I10 31vI2058SY
HIDYNYIN LD3r0Hd
LSATYNY SWILSAS

0V dHOJ-HIW O
IN3QIS3Hd JDIA

“99NI LOT13-HIDYNYIN
ERIERENER-H

"OLIN HIW "HS
SIWILSAS HIDYNVIN

dA INVISISSY

HIW TINNYHI HONVHE
"Sd0 NYdYr "HI9YNYIN AHLNNOD

HIDYNYIW LIIN0Hd
INVIINSNGD 3I¥ID0SSY
HIOYNYI

- LNVLINSNOD 1SSV
JALLNDAXT 43HD

HIDYNYIW 193r04d
JWWYHIOHd O

W d

H0L03HI0 ONIDYNYI
HIOYNYW

HIINIONT LH0ddNS HIWOLSND
ANVLINSNOD LSSV

HIIYNYIN LOIr0Hd

4301440 A3Q WS

YIIYNYIN 1D3r0Hd
ONINYYI1 9 NOLLYING3 QvIH
SLINHYIN TYNOILYNHILNI-WD
YIIYNVIN 193r0Hd

LSKIYNY SSANISNE
HINWYHIOH LSATYNY

SLIN

HITYNYI dNoH9

LSATYNY WILSAS S
LNVLINSNOD HOAL dvS
dNOYY HOIL'SAS QvaH
YIINIINI A3 WS HS
HIIYNYI LOINOHd "HS
HIINIINI VO

H30v31 WYaL

¥30¥31 LOIr0Hd

INILINEYIN "IN HS
ONINNYd O19317H1S-HIDYNYIN
HIINIIN FHYMIL0S HOINIS
[SLNNOJOY DIDALvHLS] WD
HVYLS TWIINHOIL HIGWIW
YITYNYI LNVLSISSY

0399 IN30ISTHd

(4H) dn

H0L034I0 HNISYNYW

JYVVS- HOW AYINOD

$9 % SIOIAHIS TYIHVIIHIAS HOW

wawAojdwz
SNOIASId U} PioH LoneuBisag

QILIKIN AMYNIE

TYNOLLYNHILNI FHYMLI0S 19V4
5oL

IVNNIHD “M/S DSO

JHOIWONYE "L SWILSAS NOILYWOLNY NODIIS
NOILYHOJY0D HIMOd HYTTINN
T

ANVAINOD HOAL SALvHING
SLHOAX3 ® W/S HNO4VINId
YINVE 0FHILHYHO QYYANYLS
SW3LSAS N9IS3Q IONIavD
QYavHIQAH HOWYLIW

(VIOND HI0HIN W WYITIIM
aL1(snoaveuve) 14d

AL SNONId°

NAIQ HILNdWOD aNYS % TIYHNS
dNOYY INFAIHL

QLTXINOLS LSHI4

YIONI 37LS3N

QLT SWILSAS NOLYWHOINI SNIAIIS
SI0IAHIS I N0 HSHV

Q17 WO9TAL VIONI WnIaIHI

YIONI DYINO0D

JHYMLI0S DST

‘0L GUYOVd LITTMIH TOH
I¥NNIHO “MW/S DSa

‘00 T331S 9 NOHI Vvl
IYNNIHD “M/S 0Sa

(WD) 0L VIGNT HOF1HdYYD
a1 3xm3aa 194

YION S03

FHOTYONYE “0L7 LAd VIAN ‘WS T10VHO
AWQYOY NOILYONET LS3ND
‘09 1331S ANY NOH! VIvL
YIONI YYOMLAN 10NN
IYNNIHO “M/S DSQ
NOLLYINHOANI 19 T
‘0L139A08 % rIHaon
IVEWNIN 1L

3414 SNOILNT0S LI

017 QUYYOVd-13TMIH TOH
‘0171 SWALSAS ¥NI0YN3
JHOANI'ISWd

IYNNIHO "M'S DST

¥SN ‘SADOTONHIIL INIDNT
dNOYY IHYMLAOS NMH HIAY
{H730 3INWILSAS HIL

¥SN “ONI "HILNAWOD YWINYD
IVNNIHO “M/S DS

IVNNIHO “QLT (d) SWALSAS JINOYLITTI 00HVE
ONI ONHOAL INITHIATIS
S3MOTONHIIL ITLLNHS
VION! SS34dX3 NYDIHINY
(vsn) JUNVILY 1138

011 SWILSAS NOILYWHO4NI SNIWTIS
QALINIT JHS

YHYAINI

IYNNIHO ‘SINILSAS 0IWVH
QL7 QYYIYd LITTMIH TOH
NAIO H3LNINOD ANYS  TIVHNS
017 NOILYHOdHO0D TOH

YION! DILSY1d 39

Q07 (VIaND ¥o.L

NI HHOMLIN AvE

017 STHOLYHOSY T AXVENYY

JuawAojdwy snoinaid

86-1BN-/2
66-190-1
66-990-8
66-090-02
66-AON-G1
16100-51
00-unp-|
66-A0N-01
66-0ny-g
00-4dy-1
66-930-9
00-1eN-62
00-Ae-1
66-005-2
16-Rei-g
00-1BA-9
16-094-12
16-1dy-¢
00-Aei-1
00-2N-9
00-1dy-01
66190-21
00-JeW-1
00-BA-€2

96-Inp-|
66-Ir-9
S6-Inr-01
66-In"-62
00-12n-8
66-UnpP-g1
00-Aep-1
B6-AON-0}
00-1dy-21
86-LEr-/2
16-d85-|
66-Inr-12
66-Inr-g 1
66-INr-22
00-1eW-1z
00-uer-01
78-AON-22
00-uer-/
00-Aep-0¢
661711
00-G34-01
00-uep-g1
00-Rew-£1
66-09-p¢
66-AON-/ |
66-d8S-1
66-AON-22
00-1BW-/2
00-084-1
00-1BW-9
00-Aen-g
00-Unr-g
00-Jely-|
00-034-01
96-Inr-1
00-uep-g
86-1dy-|
00-Aeiy-1
86-ABI-9
66-1dy-/2
66-990-b2

Buyutor jo sjeq

4
el
4

el

el
€l
14
i}
L
L
9l

Ge
14
6!
Gl

82
Gl
14

€2
£l

0l
8l
0¢

al
e

oL
0z

4

9t
4

8l
ve
1
€l

L

ot
Le

ol
P
¥e
34
8l
<t

(siesp)
gousuadxg

52e'681
veL'/2s
€0€'2Gy
92L°GLy
000'595
G90°L LY
9/9°16

678'v62
£€9°2G/
006°€Z4
01e'e6s
85H°GG 1
000°€LL
ope'ilg
61268y
1££'902
90888

021168
020°SL1
128'E8

126021
[AxAi
1££°902
vel'eee

856'/rp
9v9'/28
251'9ge
60.°G69
§p9'952
916'622
¢69'001
297°02S
1vz'zee
816°219
90€'611
952°16/
r2'999
9ve'geL
0L0'¥6L
29065
52£'209
9161
02v'95
986959
1£€'2ee
(%4
90t'16
09265
v06'e5S
609°2LS
6216
89¢°202
185'0/L
v19'661
99667
002 v
828'992
6v9°70
260'689
£0E'cLe
202'9¢8'2
0se'eve
9£9'Gy
100°6e2

“Auedwog au Jo 10§03 AUE JO BARIAI E ) 533A0jdLL3 3A0GE 3Ly JO BUDY : SBlON

258

YEN'Y)
WHE9d

Bl

N

EL:

L)

vaW "SI
YawW

VAN IS
(s2)uoaL W
v
QHH-OSWY'a
w

HOAL W
89S W
YO

HOaL @
yoar'g

IIN VAW OSW
YW

Wga9d ‘3d
Ex:!

3@ ‘01008 YW

T

EL]

‘99N 95°8
EL]

VN 'yaig
v

vaW 088
w

TN

ISW

I8

ET

HOaL g
I

EL|

el

Y (H) va
YOW

vOW

YOW

SN

($0)38
HOAL W
vaw

EL|

yoaL'

EL]

EL|

¥o

SW

Waod 39
VAW “HOAL g
YO3IW '9SIA
pud

EL|

WOO W
vaW 38
Wd09d v'g
HoAL g

"0SdN0J dIa N9d 0S°d

191'v8y  UOpUOT SIOY ‘ST 'd 11 (HIN0D'E

('st)
UOReIBUNWEY

SUOMBIYIEND) [2UOABINDT

av31 133ro4d
HIDYNYW 1J3r0dd
LN3IWJ0TIAI0 SSINISNE
031 WOJ313L - HIW US
TV JIDILYHLS-HIW HS
HIINIONT Qv
TYIINHOIL - H3OVNYIA
HIIYNYW INNOIIY
HIDVYNVIA LOIF0Hd

04H - IN3QISTHd 30
HIOVNYIN 103r0Hd dNOYD
av31 193ro4d
HH-3IVHOJH0O-HIW HS
HITYNVIN LOIroHd
av31103r0d
HIDVNYIN INNCIY
HIDH0 TYIINYNH 43HD
SL33r04d - "HIW TvHINID
S103roYd - W9

HOW T3A30 SSANISNE
HIOVNVIA

HIGYNYIN INNOJIY
HIOVYNVIN INNOJJV
HOW SIVS AHINNOD

HIDYNYI LOIM0Hd 449
HIDYNYIN 103r0Hd dNoYD
HIIVYNVIN 103r04d
HIDYNYIW LO3r0Yd
LN3QISTHd JDIA 3LVI00SSY
LNVLINSNOD SSANISNE
HIW 13A30 SSIANISNg

VN0 - IN3AISTHd 3014
HIIYNVI LOIrOHd HS
HIIYNVIN LI3r0dd
H3INIONT Qv

HAHS INT0 - HIOVNYW
HIOYNYIN 1D3r0dd
HIDVYNYIW LI3r0Hd
HIOVYNYIN LOIr0dd
ONINIVHL - HIOYNYI
LNINJOTIAIT SSINISNG dA
HIDYNYIN 133r0dd
ANVIINSNOD SSANISNE
HIOVNYIN 1J3r0Hd
HIDYNVIN LI3r0Hd
HIDYNYIN LI3r0Hd dNouD
Qv3a1L33rodd

HIDYNYIN LI3r0Ud

AHIS "DINT - HOW "HS
HIOYNYIW 1J3r0Hd
HIDVYNVIN LD3r0Hd

Q¥ TWIINHOIL

30IAHIS A3YVHS- HINOD
Qv3a7 133rodd

HIDYNYIW LNNQJDY

ND3Y B SYIDYIW-HOW HS
TWOINHOAL - HIDYNYIN
¥§20S-QvaH

HIDYNVIN 103r04d
HIDYNYA LNNODQY
A30'SNE-INIAIS3Hd 3014 03X3
(4H - IN3QISIHd 30IA

'Y'S - IN30IS34d J0IA
HOLJ3HIa TYNOI3Y
AYY1IHIIS ANVANOO

(sanng Jo aingen)
uoneufiisagq

9¢ + HINIS HYIWNX Y3AIA <9
9€ TWHHONY YHANYHO Y3IAIA ¥9
ge INYIHYS Ivan €9
39 A HSIHNS 29
8¢ QUNHYY YHLIPNS 19
6¢ HIYNIdOD AVCNS 09
0e HSYQ VINYY YHHENS 64
9€ NYSVAINIHS VINVHIMS 8¢
8E AVHYHA WYYYAIS 16
14 NIHSIM NYEHS 98
41 NYHOW VTI3HS §§
e HYINNY QVHYHS i
€ HYHQ NNYLNYHS £5
114 1LNIQCO3d YN YALYS 4]
£e TYd VALYS 1S
e WYHNYTIVWYW HSIHIYS 0s
14 3ANYd HSOLNYS 14
Sy FIHIHANA NNVINYS 8y
a4 J3rHIHNNN NNVLNYS A4
St HONIS NVMIYHE AINYS 9v
et VHLOYHAW AJ3rnvs 414
o€ INVMIVO AYTNYS 147
2 AHYIN MY SYTIVS 194
€5 NSYHYHLYATIS
WYINNYWYYH Yd0DYavs 24
or AHLHOOW YSYAINIHS v § 34
£e S HYYINVHSIAVY 4
144 HYHMIHS IAVH 6€
o€ A NYWvH 8E
8t dNHYMS LINYHS AIMYY 1€
o INOS AIrvH 9€
8 INVIIHD AIrvd ge
1 W WY MOINVAYTYY ¥e
by AHVHONYHO NYWYH YHOYY £e
9 VHSIW YLIHOVH €
14 IHOVHYS YAYPIA ¥Nd e
L€ YINVHOW HYINNY YINYSYYHd i1
2S5 HYMYYS VHANIHYN QOWVHd 62
£e Tilvd GOWvHd 82
6¢ VWYYHS HYINNY d33avHd 1g
Ge TYMYHOY MVINV 9z
14 YTIvHE M d Sc
¢ VP3ENA HYWNY Y3aNIHYN 144
18 YAIANYd YLIAYN €2
e 1d NYddY9OWN 144
84 HYMTY NVHYHO ITVHNW le
ve TN 0z
€e YMHOYM HSINVIA 61
€7 NVINVWYHENSYTVAOD SiHy gl
6Y H NYNNYY 1L
L8 A NVTIEVH 9
114 NYdWYHL 0 O % St
62 S NIMJ109 1300 vl
£e YWH3IA NHSNYNIH 148
6¢ YHOONYWN HSHVH 4!
98 NPYdYWWId OvY YYHAHID L
e HYINNXY AVdNYD 0
4 SYAINIHS SSSAD 6
4] YHONIAYY d W "HO 8
£e YTVE SYOAIA 'YHIHG z
GE HYWNIYANYN IHIHONYINIHI ]
0s NIV OHSY g
e5 VAHVHOVLLYHE 3OHSY |4
St V1dNg TINY €
84 VTid ONYNY ¢
9€ VYHNOHON NAMTTY I
(sueap)
aby SLEBN'ON 'S

0002-6661 HY3A TVIONYNIJ 1HVd 3HL HOJ GIA0TIWI ( 8



HCL TECHNOLOGIES | F-f&C L

Auditors’ Report

To the Members of

HCL Technologies Limited
(formerly HCL Consuilting Limited)

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Technologies Limited (“the Company”), formerly HCL Consulting
Limited, as at 30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:

1. As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 1988 issued by the Company Law
Board in terms of Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

2. Further to the comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 above:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as appears from
our examination of the books;

(c) the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account comply with the Accounting Standards referred to
in sub section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable; and

(e) in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the accounts give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view :

(i) in the case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at 30 June 2000; and
(ii) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the company for the year ended on that date.

For BSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

" lace: Mumbai Rajesh Jain
Date: 10th August, 2000 Partner

Annexure to the Auditors’ report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date.)

1. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
its fixed assets. The company has a regular programme of verification of its fixed assets which, in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its fixed assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified by management during the year. As informed to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

2.  The fixed assets of the company have not been revalued during the year.

3. The company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. As informed to us, there are no companies
under the same management as defined by sub-section (1-B) of section 370 of the Companies Act, 1956.

4. The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 except for an unsecured, interest free loan
amounting to Rs. 170,593,500 and an advance towards share application money amounting to Rs. 703,199,700 to
HCL Technologies (Bermuda) Limited, Bermuda, a wholly owned subsidiary. In our opinion, having regard to the
involvement with this company and considering the explanations given to us in this regard, the terms and conditions
of the above are not prima facie prejudicial to interests of the company. As informed to us, there are no companies
under the same management as defined by sub-section (1-B) of section 370 of the Companies Act, 1956.
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th August, 2000
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The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans except for a loan to HCL Technologies
(Bermuda) Limited, as mentioned in para 4 above, the terms of repayment of which have been stipulated and loans
to employees, who are repaying principal and interest due thereon as stipulated.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the explanation that
certain assets purchased are specific to the company’s technical requirements, in respect of which comparable
alternative quotations are not considered necessary, there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate
with the size of the company and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of equipments and other
assets. The activities of the company do not involve sale of goods.

In our opinion, and having regard to our comments in paragraph 6 above and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions of sale of services in pursuance of contracts and arrangements entered in
the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and aggregating during the year to Rs 50,000
or more in respect of each party have been made in respect of items of special nature and in respect of which
alternative quotations are not considered necessary.

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
The company’s operations do not generate any scrap or by-products.
The company has an internat audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

As informed to us, the provisions of clause 4A(xvi) regarding maintenance of cost records are not applicable to the
company.

The company has been regular in depositing Provident Fund and generally regular in depositing Employees State
Insurance dues with the appropriate authorities during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax,
wealth tax, sales tax, customs duty and excise duty were outstanding, as at 30 June 2000, for a period exceeding
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by us, no
personal expenses have been charged to the revenue accounts, other than those payable under contractual obliga-
tions or in accordance with generally accepted business practice.

The company is not a sick industrial company within the meaning of clause (o) of sub-section (1) of section 3 of the
Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the service activities of
the Company, we report as follows:

the service activities of the Company do not involve consumption of any material and stores.

the Company has a reasonable system of allocating man hours utilised to the relative jobs, commensurate with its
size and nature of its business.

the Company has a reasonable system of authorisation at proper levels, and an adequate system of internal control
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, the allocation of labour to jobs.

As the Company does not maintain any inventories, paragraphs 4(A)(iii) to 4(A)(vi), 4(A)(xii), 4(A)(xiv) and 4(C)(ii) of
the Order, are not applicable in relation to its activities.

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain
Partner

18



HCL Technologies Limited

(formerly HCL Consulting Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000
(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

Sources of funds

Shareholders’ funds
Share capital

Share application money pending allotment

Reserves and surplus

Application of funds
Fixed assets

Gross block

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net block
Capital work in progress

Investments

Current assets, loans and advances

Sundry debtors

Cash and bank balances

Loans and advances
Other current assets

Less: Current liabilities and provisions

Net current assets

Notes to the accounts

As per our report attached

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th August, 2000

For HCL Technologies Limited

Shiv Nadar
Chairman, President and CEO

Robin Abrams
Director

Dennis Ing
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th August, 2000
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Schedule No.

o0 ~N OO

14

Vineet Nayyar
Vice Chairman

HCL

As at As at

30 June 2000 30 June 1999
559,054 331,048
19,679 -
11,811,654 1,816,854
12,390,387 2,148,802
978,697 627,989
(391,246) (240,985)
587,451 387,004
109,520 18,534
696,971 405,538
8,290,113 449,170
1,201,620 623,580
1,456,133 562,308
1,137,597 327,314
9,706 15,186
3,805,056 1,528,388
(401,753) (234,294)
3,403,303 1,294,094
12,390,387 2,148,802

T S R Subramaniam

Director

Allwyn Noronha

Company Secretary

Richard R Burt

Director
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HCL Technologies Limited

(formerly HCL Consuiting Limited)

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000
(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

Schedule No. Year ended Year ended
30 June 2000 30 June 1999

Income
Software and related technical services 3,996,762 2,757,316
Other income 10 520,639 180,049
4,517,401 2,937,365 _
Expenditure
Cost of software development 11 1,451,033 1,311,878
Administration and other expenses 12 810,065 386,959
Finance charges 13 - 43,530
Depreciation 154,380 164,692
2415478 1,907,059
Profit before tax 2,101,923, 1,030,306
Provision for income tax _(108,808) (20,626)
1,993,115 1,009,680
Provision for income tax for earlier years written back oo 98975 #E S e
Profit after tax 1,999,090 1,009,680
Balance brought forward 1,576,854 785431
Profit available for appropriation 3,575,944 1,795,111
Appropriations
Proposed dividend 27,953 16,597
Corporate dividend tax 6,150 1,660
Transfer to general reserve 250,000 200,000
Balance carried forward B 3._2_91.841_ B 1,576,854_
3575944 — 1795111
Notes to the accounts 14
As per our report attached
For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants
Rajesh Jain Shiv Nadar Vineet Nayyar Richard R Burt
Partner Chairman, President and CEO Vice Chairman Director
Robin Abrams T S R Subramaniam
Director Director
Dennis Ing Allwyn Noronha
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 10th August, 2000 Date: 10th August, 2000
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Schedules forming part of the accounts
(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 1: Share capital
Authorised
175,000,000 shares of Rs. 4 each (previous year - 50,000,000 700,000 500,000

equity shares of Rs.10 each)

Issued, subscribed and paid up
139,763,531 equity shares of Rs. 4 each, fully paid up 559,054 331,948
(previous year - 33,194,751 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up)

559,054 331,948

Notes:

1. The shareholders of the company in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 13 September 1999 have authorised
the splitting up of equity shares, in accordance with the provisions of section 94 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accord-
ingly, each equity share has been split from par value of Rs. 10 each into 2.5 equity shares of par value of Rs. 4 each.
The board of directors had fixed 1 November 1999 as the record date for determining the shareholders entitled to the
split.

2. Paid up share capital includes:

- 8,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 4 each (previous year and pre-split - 3,200,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) allotted
as fully paid up pursuant to a contract for consideration other than cash.

- 41,493,436 equity shares of Rs. 4 each (previous year - nil, pre-split 16,597,375 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) is
sued as bonus shares in the ratio of one share for every two held by capitalisation of general reserve. The board of
directors had fixed 25 October 1999 as record date for determining shareholders entitled to the bonus shares.

- 14,200,000 equity shares of Rs. 4 each (previous year - nil) issued during initial public offer of the Company.

- 1,083,218 equity shares of Rs. 4 each (previous year - nil) allotted to employees of the company and its subsidiaries
on vesting of stock options issued under the Employees Stock Option Plan of the Company.

Schedule 2: Reserves and surplus

As at Additions Deductions As at
1 July 1999 30 June 2000
Share Premium account - 8,444,580 248,793 8,195,787
General reserve 240,000 250,000 165,974 324,026
(40,000) (200,000) - (240,000)
Profit and loss account 1,576,854 1,964,987 250,000 3,291,841
(785,431) (991,423) (200,000) (1,576,854)

~ 1,816,854 10,659,567 664,767 11,811,654
Previous year (825,431) (1,191,423) (200,000) (1,816,854)

Notes:

1. Additions to the share premium account represents share premium received on allotment of 14,200,000 equity shares
issued during the initial public offer and 1,083,218 equity shares to employees on vesting of stock options issued
under the Employees Stock Option Plan of the company.

2. Deductions from the share premium account represents expenses incurred by the company on initial public offer of
14,200,000 equity shares of Rs. 4 each.

3. Deductions from general reserve represents capitalisation of general reserve for the issue of bonus shares in the ratio
of one share for every two held.

4. Previous year figures are in brackets. 2
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Schedule 3: Fixed assets
(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

As at Additions Disposal/ As At
1 July 1999 adjustments 30 June 2000
Gross block

Freehold land 10,148 - - 10,148
Leasehold land 15,173 94,720 - 109,893
Lease hold improvements - 22,649 = 22,649
Building 103,017 57,771 - 160,788
Office equipment 147,220 46,432 4,859 188,793
Computers 251,488 106,217 598 357,107
Furniture and fixtures 98,834 20,191 915 118,110
Motor vehicles 2,109 " 9,100 - 11,209
627,989 357,080 6.372 978,697
Previous year 479,691 149,616 1.318 627,989

Accumulated depreciation
Leasehold land 380 388 - 768
Lease hold improvements - 2,783 - 2,783
Building 8,141 6,231 - 14,372
Office equipment 54,886 42,866 3,355 94,397
Computers 140,590 73,618 171 214,037
Furniture and fixtures 36,343 27,060 593 62,810
Motor vehicles 645 1,434 - 2,079
240,985 154,380 4119 391,246
Previous year 76,652 164,692 359 240,985
Net block 387,004 202,700 2,253 587.451
Previous year 403,039 387,004
Capital work-in-progress 18,534 109,520
Previous year 16,056 18,534

Notes:

1. The leasehold and freehold land in Noida and Gurgaon respectively, included in opening gross block have not yet
been transferred in the name of the Company. Further, the legal documents of leasehold {and at Noida have not yet

been obtained from the erstwhile owner as they are in possession of their bankers pending the release of a mortgage
charge.

2. Capital work-in-progress includes Rs. 10,625 thousands in a fixed deposit account with Central Bank of India in
pursuance of an agreement for purchase of land and building at Noida.

k)
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HCL

Schedules forming part of the accounts

(All amounts in thousands of rupees)
As at As at

30 Juhe 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 4: Investments

Long term investments
Equity shares in subsidiaries - Non trade and unquoted

12,793,904 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up in 236,461 -
HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited (previous year - nif)
1,531,170 equity shares of USD 1 each, fully paid in HCL Technologies (Bermuday) 503,208 449,170
Limited, Bermuda formerly HCL Technologies Limited, Bermuda
(previous year - 1,368,832 equity shares of USD 1 each)
Current investments
Investments in mutual funds - Trade and unquoted

Number of Face value Aggregate

units per unit value
(Rupees)
Kothari Pioneer Income Builder Account 22,627,334 10 305,000
Kotak Mahindra K Gilt Investment
UnitScheme 98 ( Investment Plan )-Growth 42 502,601 10 509,479
Templeton India Government Securities Fund 26,527,840 10 307,988
Templeton India Income Fund-Growth 49,353,771 10 752,645
Kothari Pioneer Income Builder
Account Quarterly- Dividend 27,075,124 10 365,243
Prudential ICICI GILT Fund- Investment
Plan-Growth 34,915,439 10 389,499
Kotak Mahindra K Bond Scheme 99
(Wholesale Plan)- Growth 46,781,583 10 507,580
~=Kotak Mahindra K Gilt investment Unit ‘
Scheme 98 ( Investment Plan )-Dividend 19,630,038 10 205,428
Alliance Liquid Income Dividend Fund 144,224,865 10 1,489,843
Jardine Fleming Bond Fund Dividend Plan 52,668,878 10 554,077
Sun F&C Money Value Fund, Bond
Dividend Plan 25,290,656 10 260,747
Prudential ICICI Income Plan -Growth 11,123,718 10 141,494
Prudential ICICI Income Plan -Dividend 88,810,504 10 925,405
Zurich India High Interest Fund- Dividend 10,146,501 10 102,784
DSP Merrill Lynch Bond Fund- Dividend 9,398,756 10 101,037
Prudential ICICI Liquid Pian -Dividend 53,423,408 10 632,195 7,550,444 -
8,290,113 429,770

Net asset value of investment in mutual funds as on 30 June, 2000 - Rs. 7,559,221 thousands(previous year - nil)
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Schedules forming part of the accounts
(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

Notes:

1. Particulars of units of mutual funds purchased and sold during the year

Number of Face value Purchase
Units per unit price
{Rupees)

Alliance 95 Fund - Dividend 21,044,902 10 1,215,589
Alliance Buy India Fund - Dividend 15,000,000 10 147,750
Alliance Equity Fund - Dividend 8,187,773 10 294,757
Alliance Liquid Income - Dividend 201,586,930 10 2,072,833
Alliance Liquid Income - Growth 100,258,604 10 1,485,833
DSP Merrill Lynch Bond Fund - Growth 6,910,850 10 100,000
Jardine Fleming Bond Fund - Dividend 55,648,096 10 600,000
Jardine Fleming Bond Fund - Growth 40,092,373 10 552,874
Kotak Mahindra K Bond Scheme 99
(Wholesale Plan) - Dividend 98,875,142 10 1,006,579
Kotak Mahindra K Bond Scheme 99
(Wholesale Plan) - Growth 46,784,210 10 502,930
Kotak Mahindra K Gilt Unit Scheme 98
(Investment Plan) - Dividend 75,794,387 10 800,000
Kotak Mahindra K Gilt Unit Scheme 98
(Investment Plan) - Growth 25,470,176 10 305,311
Kotak Mahindra K Gilt Unit Scheme 98
(Savings Pian) - Dividend 47,732,697 10 500,000
Kothari Pioneer Balanced Fund - Dividend 18,253,505 10 196,043
Kothari Pioneer income Buiider
Account - Growth 24,914,285 10 359,763
Kothari Pioneer Prima Pius - Dividend 7,301,935 10 195,984
Kothari Pioneer Treasury Management
Account - Dividend 177,015 1000 200,000
Prudential ICICI Balanced Fund - Dividend 33,818,383 10 447,707
Prudential ICICI Gilt Fund - Investment
Plan - Dividend 37,263,378 10 400,000
Prudential ICICI Gilt Fund - Treasury
Plan - Dividend 39,098,773 10 400,000
Prudential ICICI Gilt Fund - Treasury
Plan - Growth 27,690,189 10 306,323
Prudential ICICI Income Plan - Dividend 83,216,932 10 890,000
Prudential ICICI Income Pian - Growth 72,752,001 10 923,538
Prudential ICICI Liquid Plan - Dividend 51,920,631 10 600,000
Prudential ICICI Liguid Plan - Growth 57,120,150 10 685,389
Sun F&C Money Value Fund - Liquid - Growth 2,500,000 10 25,000
Sun F&C Balanced Fund - Dividend 18,892,434 10 206,494
Sun F&C Balanced Fund - Growth 18,892,434 10 200,260
Sun F&C Money Value Fund - Liquid - Dividend 51,880,000 10 518,800
Sun F&C Money Value Fund, Bond - Dividend 7,346,189 10 80,000
Sun F&C Money Value Fund, Bond - Growth 21,549,311 10 257,730
Sun F&C Value Fund - Dividend 3,424,657 10 101,164
Sun F&C Value Fund - Growth 3,424,658 10 98,518

Templeton India Govt. Securities
Fund - Dividend 29,063,718 10 300,000
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Schedules forming part of the accounts
(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

Number of Face value Purchase
Units per unit price
(Rupees)

Templeton India Growth Fund - Dividend 11,729,026 10 187,150
Templeton India Income Fund - Dividend 107,830,742 10 1,141,116
Templeton India Liquid Fund - Growth 9,436,857 10 112,300
Templeton India Income Fund - Growth 26,233,811 10 400,066
Zurich India Equity Fund - Dividend 2,586,653 10 50,000
Zurich India High Interest Fund - Growth 6,973,138 10 102,007
Zurich India Prudence Fund - Dividend 5,980,861 10 100,000

2. Investments in mutual funds include unutilised proceeds of the initial public offering and allotment of shares to the
employees.

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 5: Sundry debtors
Unsecured - considered good
Debts outstanding for more than six months - 35,326
Other debts 1,201,620 588,254
Unsecured - considered doubtful
Debts outstanding for more than six months . 362
Other debts - 169
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - (531)
1,201,620 623,580

Note: Sundry debtors include Rs. 962,607 thousands (previous year - Rs. 616,821 thousands) recoverable from the
subsidiaries of the company.

Schedule 6: Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand 349 144
Cheques in hand 214,579 -
Remittances in transit 83,304 24,604
“3alances with scheduled banks
- On current accounts in Indian rupees 310,028 71,991
- On current accounts in foreign currency 60,093 3,464

- On fixed deposit accounts [pledged with banks as security for
guarantees and letter of credit- Rs. 1,306 thousands

(previous year - Rs. 1,306 thousands)] 174,024 41,305
- On fixed deposit accounts in foreign currency 613,756 420,800
1,456,133 562,308

Schedule 7: Loans and advances

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Loans and advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received

- Considered good (refer note) 261,714 107,156

- Considered doubtful 2,892 692
Advances to subsidiary company 873,793 219,912
interest receivable 2,090 246
1,140,489 328,006

Less: Provision for doubtful advances (2,892) (692)
1,137,597 327,314

Note: Includes dues from officers of the Company Rs. nil (previous year - Rs. nil). Maximum amount due at any time
during the year Rs. nil (previous year - Rs. 141 thousands).



Schedules forming part of the accounts
(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

Schedule 8: Other current assets
Income accrued but not due

Schedule 9: Current liabilities and provisions

Current liabilities
Sundry creditors

Other liabilities

Due to subsidiaries
Advances from customers

Provisions

Provision for income tax [net of advance tax Rs. 51,924 thousands
(previous year - Rs. 10,373 thousands)]

Provision for dividend

Provision for corporate dividend tax

Provision for staff benefits

Schedule 10: Other income

Interest income [TDS on interest Rs. 38,903 thousands
(previous year - Rs. 2,936 thousand)]

- On fixed deposits ( refer note )

- From financing activities

- From customers

- Intercorporate deposits

- Others

Sale of special import licenses
Exchange gain (net)

Rent received

income from non trade investments
-Dividend

-Others

(Loss)/Profit on sale of investments (net)
Miscellaneous income

HCL TECHNOLOGIES

As at
30 June 2000

9,706

9,706

HCL

As at
30 June 1999

15,186

210,171
3,885
9,969

15,186

224,025
100,851
27,953

6,150
42,774

139,584
6,252
1,686
2,519

177,728

150,041
45,308
16,597

1,660
20,688

401,753

84,253

Year ended
30 June 2000

142,583
27,073
56,346
13,758

1,676
2,640
59,366
3,668

466,731
54,593
(309,480)
1,685

234,294

520,639

Year ended
30 June 1999

1,897

22,171
5,167
716
2,364
26,672

118,928
2,134

180,049

Note: Interest on fixed deposits includes interest on fixed deposits made out of funds received as share application
money on initial public offer amounting to Rs. 12,494 thousands (previous year - Rs. Nil)

Schedule 11: Cost of software development

Personnel expenses

Salaries, wages, bonus etc.

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Software development expenses - external
[Includes Rs. 577,377 thousand (previous year
Rs. 638,713 thousand) paid to subsidiaries of the Company]

618,156
23,508
43,968

765,401

1,451,033

397,655
15,135
25,396

873,692

1,311,878




Schedules forming part of the accounts

(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

Schedule 12: Administration and other expenses

Rent

Electricity and water

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings

- Others

Communication costs

Travel and conveyance
Business promotion

Legal and professional charges
Lease charges

Software license fee

Printing and stationery

Bank charges

Rates and taxes

Advertising and publicity

Books and periodicals
Recruitment, training and development
Miscellaneous expenses

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for doubtful advances

Schedule 13: Finance charges
Interest - term loans
- others

Schedule 14: Notes to the accounts
1. Significant accounting policies
i) Basis of preparation

HCL TECHNOLQOQGIES

Year ended
30 June 2000

35,003
39,526
3,117

38,729
37,089
456,992
3,536
14,884
15,341
11,360
7,649
3,630
80,444
3,274
4,081
42,619
9,620
971

2,200

FHCL

Year ended
30 June 1999

24,463
25,921
2,429

61
28,202
31,526

193,945
3,355
12,412
12,546
11,858
7,046
1,152
11,157
2,889
1,652
10,261
5,647
6

531

810,065

386,959

35,453
8,077

43,530

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, in accordance with the Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India and
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, as adopted consistently by the Company. All income and expenditure

having a material bearing on the financial statements are recognised on the accrual basis.

(ii)) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclo-
sure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Examples of such estimates include estimates of expected contract costs
to be incurred to complete software development, provision for doubtful debts and estimated useful life of fixed

assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

(iii) Revenue recognition

Revenue from software developed on a time and materials basis is recognised as the services are rendered by the
Company. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised in accordance with the percentage compietion method under
which the sales value of performance including earnings thereon is recognised on the basis of effort incurred in respect of
each contract as a proportion of total effort expected to be incurred. Anticipated losses, if any, upto the completion of
contract are recognised immediately. Income accrued but not due represents revenue recognised on contracts to be
billed in the subsequent period, in accordance with the terms of contract.

Interest on the deployment of surplus funds is recognised using the time-proportion method, based on interest rates
implicit in the transaction. Dividend income, commission and brokerage is recognised when the right to receive the same
is established. Revenue from the sale of special import licences is recognised when the licences are actually sold.
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Schedules forming part of the accounts

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities. Provi-
sions are made for future unforeseeable factors, which may affect the ultimate profit on fixed price software develop-
ment contracts. The cost of services for software development is charged to revenue in the same year.

The leave encashment and gratuity of the Company is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition and installation.
Fixed assets under construction, advances paid towards acquisition of fixed assets and cost of assets not put to use
before the year-end, are disclosed as capital work in progress.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets except leasehold land and leasehold improvement is provided on the straight-line
method based on estimated useful lives, as estimated by the management. Leasehold land is amortised over the
period of lease. Leasehold improvements are amortised over a period of 4 years or the remaining period of the
lease, whichever is lower. Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.
Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. The management’s estimates of
the useful life of the various fixed assets is as follows:

Life
(in years)

Buildings 20
Plant and machinery (including office equipment, air conditioners and electrical installations) 4
Computers and software (excluding mainframes) 3
Mainframe computer system (including software) 6
Furniture and fixtures 4
Vehicles 5
Investments

Investments are classified into long term and current investments. Long-term investments are stated at cost and
provision is made to recognise any decline, other than temporary, in the value of such investments. Current invest-

ments are stated at the lower of cost and the fair value, and provision is made to recognise any decline in the carry-
ing value.

(viii) Foreign exchange transactions

(ix)

(%)

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Realised
gains and losses on foreign exchange transactions during the year are recognised in the profit and loss account.
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at year end rates and resultant gains/losses on foreign ex-
change translations other than those relating to fixed assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Gains/

losses on the translation of foreign exchange liabilities incurred to acquire fixed assets are included in the carrying
cost of such fixed assets.

Retirements benefits

Contributions to provident fund are deposited with a recognised provident fund. The Company contributes to a
scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India in respect of superannuation. Provision for gratuity
and leave encashment is made on the basis of an actuarial valuation.

Taxation

Provision for tax is made on the basis of taxable income for 9 months ended on 31 March and estimated taxable
income for the three months ended 30 June. Taxable income for the three months ended 30 June is dependent
upon the estimated results of subsequent nine months ending on 30 June of the following fiscal year.

The Company develops software for HCL Technologies Japan Limited, Japan (“HCLT Japan”), a subsidiary of HCL
Technologies (Bermuda) Limited, Bermuda. During the year ended 30 June 1999, the tax authorities in Japan raised
a demand on HCLT Japan for not withholding tax on payments to the Company during the period February 1998 to
September 1998 amounting to Rs. 4,379 thousands. In accordance with the terms of agreement between the
company and HCLT Japan, the withholding tax liability, if any, is payable by the Company. During the year ended 30
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Schedules forming part of the accounts

June 2000, the Company has recovered all amounts due from HCLT Japan, on which, withholding tax was payable
on remittance to India. However, the Company does not agree with the stance of the tax authorities in Japan. The
Company has deposited Rs 4,379 thousands with the tax authorities in Japan, under protest and has not deducted
any tax from the remittance during the year ended 30 June 2000. The Company also invoked the mutual agreement
provision under section 25 of the Convention between the Government of India and Government of Japan for the
avoidance of double taxation and prevention of fiscal evasion in respect of taxes on income. The matter is now
under the consideration of the competent authorities of India and Japan. If the contention of the Company is not
upheld by the competent authorities, there could be an additional tax liability amounting to Rs. 6,495 thousands. The
management, based on legal advice, does not believe that any liability in this regard will crystallise and therefore, no
provision has been made in respect of this amount.

The shareholders’ of the Company in the extra-ordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13 September
1999 established the Employee Stock Options Plan of the Company, which provides for issue of 20,000,000 equity
shares to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The plan is administered by a compensation committee
comprising 3 directors, of which 2 are independent directors. Under the plan, options have been issued 1o the
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries at an exercise price, which is not less than the fair value of the
shares. Fair value of the shares means value determined by the management, during the period the Company was
unlisted and closing price of the Company’s shares in the stock exchange, where the highest trading volume on a
given date and in case the shares were not traded on that day, the closing price on the previous trading day. Under
the Employee Stock Option Plan, options have also been issued to employees at exercise price that is lower than the
iair market value on the basis of approval of the members of the Company. As on 30 June 2000, 17,848,872 options
were outstanding with employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India recently issued the Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Guidelines, 1999, which is effective for all stock option schemes of listed companies established
after 19 June 2000. In accordance with these guidelines, the excess of the market price of the underlying equity
shares as of the date of the grant of the options over the exercise price of the options, is to be recognised and
amortised on a straight line basis over the vesting period.

The Employee Stock Options Plan of the Company was established when the Company was unlisted. Conse-
quently, the Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Guidelines, 1999 are not applicable to
the Company.

During the year ended 30 June 2000, the company entered into software consulting and engineering service agree-
ments with certain customers wherein these customers have committed certain revenues. On achievement of the
revenues and on fulfilment of the necessary conditions, the Company has agreed to grant stock options. The first
such review will take place on 31 December 2000.

Additions in fixed assets include exchange difference capitalised amounting Rs. nil (previous year - Rs. 1,715 thou-
sands).

The future lease obligations in respect of vehicles on lease are Rs. 11,347 thousands (previous year - Rs. 19,184
thousands).

The estimated value of coniracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is Rs.

130,319 thousands (previous year - Rs. 17,719 thousands).

Licensed capacity and actual production:

Due to nature of its activities, the Company is not subject to industrial licensing and the clause relating to actual
production is not applicable.
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

Managerial remuneration
Salary

Contribution to provident and superannuation fund

Other perquisites

HCL TECHNOLOGIES | fiC=L

Year ended

30 June 2000.

(Rs. in 000’s)

Year ended
30 June 1999
(Rs. in 000’s)

8,006
456
1,281
—— 57

Note: Managerial remuneration excludes provision for leave encashment and gratuity. Perquisites have been valued

in accordance with provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961.

Payment to auditors
Statutory audit

Tax audit fees

Other services

Out of pocket expenses

CIF value of imports
Capital goods

Expenditure in foreign currency
Software development charges
Travel (on cash basis )

Rates and taxes

Interest on foreign currency loan
Annual maintenance contracts
Others

The expenditure re-imbursed by the customers in forei
in the profit and loss account and amounts to Rs. 194,

Earnings in foreign currency

Income from software and technical services

Interest
Exchange gain (net)
Royalty

30

1,300
500
2,095

3,895

57,793

57,793

765,401
404,902
80,444

5,599

1,256,346

3,966,060
70,869
59,366

541

4,096,836

1,100
300

70
1,470

37,899
37,899

873,692

144,279

11,157

914

3,958

4,879
1,038,879 _

gn currency has been netted off against the related expenses
569 thousands (previous year - Rs. 97,852 thousands).

2,726,979
24,568
26,672

264

2,778,483
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Year ended Year ended

30 June 2000 30 June 1999

(Rs. in 000’s) (Rs. in 000’s)

15. Dividend remitted in foreign currency

Number of non-resident shareholders 5 3
Number of shares held 34,780,290 2,224,744
Amount remitted (net of tax) 4,637 1,112
Year to which it relates 1999 1998

16. The Company had no amounts payable to small-scale industrial undertakings as defined under Section 3(j) of the
Industries (Development and Regulation) Act, 1951 as on 30 June 2000.

17. The name of the Company has been changed from HCL Consulting Limited to HCL Technologies Limited and a fresh
certificate of incorporation has been issued by the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi and
Haryana on 6 October 1999.

18. Previous year figures have been re-classified/ re-grouped to conform to current year's classification.

For HCL Technologies Limited

Shiv Nadar Vineet Nayyar Richard R Burt
Chairman, President and CEO Vice Chairman Director

Robin Abrams T S R Subramaniam

Director Director

Dennis Ing Allwyn Noronha

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th August, 2000
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

Registration details

Registration No. 55-46369 State Code 55
Balance Sheet Date 30 June 2000

Capital raised during the year (Rupees in thousands)

Public issue Rights issue
8,236,000 Nil

Bonus issue Private placement
165,972 269,713

Note: Capital raised during the year includes share premium

Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Rupees in thousands)

Total liabilities Total assets
12,424,490 12,424,490

Sources of funds

Paid-up capital Reserves and surplus
5,78,733" 11,845,757

Secured loans Unsecured loan

Nil Nii

* Includes Rs. 19.679 thousand in respect of share application money pending allotment
Application of funds

Net fixed assets Investments
696,971** 8,290,113

Net current assets Misc. Expenditure
3,437,406 Nil

Accumulated losses
Nil
** Includes Rs 109,520 thousands in respect of capital work in progress

Performance of company (Rupees in thousands)

Turnover Total expenditure
4,517,401 2,415,478

Profit before tax Profit after tax
2,101,923 1,999,090
Earnings per share (in Rs.) Dividend rate %

14.30 5
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Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

Product description: Software
ltem code (ITC code): 852490

For HCL Technologies Limited

Shiv Nadar Vineet Nayyar Richard R Burt
Chairman, President and CEO Vice Chairman Director

Robin Abrams T S R Subramaniam

Director Director

Dennis Ing Allwyn Noronha

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

4

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th August, 2000
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Auditors’ Certificate

We have examined the attached cash flow of HCL Technologies Limited (formerly known as HCL Consulting
Limited) for the year ended 30 June 2000. The statement has been prepared by the company in accordance
with the requirements of Clause 32 of the listing agreement with the stock exchanges and is based on and in

agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet of the company covered by our
report of 10 August 2000 to the members of the company.

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai

Rajesh Jain
Date: 10th August, 2000

Partner
h Y
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 30 June 2000

(All amounts in thousands of rupees)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjusted for:

Income from investments, interest and rent
Loss (gain) on sale of investments
Depreciation

Loss on sale of fixed assets

_ Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for doubtful advances

Decrease (increase) in sundry debtors

Decrease (increase) in other current assets

Decrease (increase) in loans and advances

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities and provisions

Net cash from (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in mutual funds (net)
Investment in subsidiaries
Proceeds from sale of investment in subsidiaries
Proceeds from sale of other investments
Advances to subsidiary
Purchase of fixed assets (including capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
_Income from investments, interest and rent
income taxes paid

Net cash from (used for) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of share capital (including share application money

pending allotment and net of share issue expenses)
Repayment of loans

Dividends paid (including corporate dividend tax)
Cash flows from (used for) financing

Unrealised exchange gain on cash and equivalents
held in foreign currency

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and equivalents at the end of the year

HEL TECHNOLOGIES

Year ended
30 June 2000

2,101,923

(625,530)
309,480
154,380

971
2,200
1,943,424

(578,040)
5,480
(150,097)
91,344

1,312,111

(7,859,924)
(290,499)

(653,881)
(443,340)
1,282
617,025
(47,290)

(8,676,627)

8,276,598

(18,257)
8,258,341

9,018
884,807
562,308

1,456,133
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Year ended
30 June 1999

1,030,306

(149,116)
(118,928)
164,692
6

531

927,491

(146,922)
(6,926)
203,244
4,579

981,466

(449,170)
383,670
52,500
(219,912)
(159,394)
953
148,870
(2,583)

(245,066)

(379,524)
(18,257)
(397,781)

(4,528)
343,147
223,689

562,308



HCL Technologies Lid.

Statement regarding Subsidiary Companies pursuant to section 212(3) and 21 2(5) of the Companies Act, 1956 As on 30th June, 2000

Net aggregate Holding
amount of Subsidi- | compa-
ary Company’s ny’s
s Name of the Financial |Holding Compe_my’s fnterest Net aggregate amount _of Subsidi- de di(r:(t)if:; ietl;t?c:ses :Stzze;é
o year to as at close of financial year ary Company’s Profits after or Vice varsamso farl  Junio
No. Subsidiary Company which of the Subsidiary Company | deducting its loses or vice versa, t ©rs8, 50 fa 2300
accounts so far as it concerns members of asbl con;:ﬁrr:csj_ .
relate holding company which are not r:em ;rs \(/)vhicoh ::g |n<;ct>‘rpo-
dealt with in the Company’s oégg“ x'th in th ct: rlwn%
accounts (All amount in thou- : , © anges
sands) Company’s since
accounts close of
financial
Forthe | Forthe year of
year year the
ended | ended | g psig.
_ Extentof |  For the year E , 30th 30th ary
‘ Shareholding | Holding ended 30th ; or p_relwous June, June, b ny
(No. Of Shares) (%) June, 2000 Inancial years | 2000 1999
1 |HCL Technologies Bermuda Ltd. l 30-Jun-00 | 1,531,170 100 US$ (1,670) US$ (1,520) Nil Nil N.A.
2 |HCL Technologies America Inc., USA* | 30-Jun-00 | 5,500,101 | 100 US$ (607) US$ (4,472) Nil Nil N.A.
3 |HCL Technologies Europe Ltd., U.K.* | 30-Jun-00 1,765,000 | 100 GBP (1,419) GBP (1,099) Nil | Nil N.A.
4 |HCL Technologies Sweden AB* 30-Jun-00 1,000 100 SEK (3,322) SEK (755) Nil ] Nit ! N.A.
5 |HCL Technologies (Netherlands) BV* | 30-Jun-00 400 100 NLG (748) NLG (431) Nit ' Nil N.A.
6 |HCL Technologies GmbH, Germany* | 30-Jun-00 1 100 | DM (604) DM (697) Nil i Nil N.A.
7 |HCL Technologies
| |Schweiz AG, Switzerland* 30-Jun-00 100,000 100 | CHF (15) CHF (135) Nil Nil N.A.
8 [HCL Technologies Italy SLR* 30-Jun-00 | 20,000,000 | 100 ITL (13,4786) ITL (18,669) Nil Nil N.A.
| 9 |HCL Technologies Belgium NV* | 30-Jun-00 I 2,750 | 100 BEF 273 BEF (1,033) Nil Nil N.A.
I 10 |HCL Technologies Australia (Pty.) Ltd.* | 30-Jun-00 39,500 100 AUS $ 305 AUS $ (149) Nil Nil N.A.
11 |HCL Technologies (New Zealand) Ltd* | 30-Jun-00 10 | 100 NZ$ (261) NZ$ 71 Nil Nil N.A.
12 |HCL Technologies (Hong Kong) Ltd.* | 30-Jun-00 ! 193,167 100 HK$ 22,888 HK $ (1,398) Nil Nil N.A.
13 |HCL Technologies Japan Ltd.” 30-Jun-00 1,000 | 100 | JY (75,459) JY (84,777) Nil Nil N.A.
14 |HCL Technologies South Africa | '
. (Proprietary) Ltd.* 30-Jun-00 896,100 100 | SAR (971) - Nil Nil N.A.
: 15 |HCL Holdings GmbH, Austria* 31-Dec-99 6,500,000 100 ATS (37) - LN | i No
| | Change
16 |Intelicent Inc., USA* 30-Jun-00 l 6,000,000 100 US$ (2,112) US § (2,755) Nil Nil N.A.
17 |HCL Capital Pvt. Ltd., Bermuda* 30-Jun-00 12,000 100 US$ (6) Uss$(2) Nil Nit N.A.
|
18 |Intelicent India Ltd., India* 30-Jun-00 106,070 100 Rs. 20,999 ‘ Rs. 28,319 Nil Nil N.A.
19 THCL Comnet Systems and | l
|Services Ltd., India 30-Jun-00 12,793,904 | 99.88 Rs. 133,673 - Nil Nil | N.A.
| - = - l = __JI__ . 1 . I — |

Note:

a) Subsidiaries marked with asterisk (*) are held indirectly through HCL Technologies Bermuda Ltd.

b) The Net agreegate amount of losses of HCL Technologies America Inc., USA as above includes the profits/(losses) of its subsidiaries HCL Technolo-
gies Europe Ltd., UK, HCL Technologies Sweden AB, HCL, Technologies (Netherlands) BV, HCL Technologies GmbH, Germany, HCL Technologies
Schweiz AG, Switzerland, HCL Technologies Italy SLR and HCL Technologies Belgium NV aggregating to (US$ 3,267,000) for the year ended 30th
June, 2000 and (US$ 2,567,000) for previous financial years.

For HCL Technologies Limited

Shiv Nadar Vineet Nayyar Richard R Burt
Chairman, President and CEO Vice Chairman Director

Robin Abrams T S R Subramaniam

Director Director

Dennis Ing Allwyn Noronha

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : August 10, 2000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HCL
Technologies America Inc and subsidiaries as of June 30, 1999 and 2000
and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholder’s
equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financia!l state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing

« standards in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Com-
pany and subsidiaries as of June 30, 1999 and 2000, and the results of
their operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

KPMG
New Delhi, India
July 25, 2000
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except number of shares)

As of June 30,
1999 2000
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,678 $ 2,805
Accounts receivable, net 23,667 26,866
Short-term loans 8 5,906
Deferred income taxes 1,569 856
Investments 62 22
Employee receivables 172 663
Prepaid expenses 170 328
Other dues 1,115 45
Other current assets 197 991
Total current assets 28,638 38,482
Property and equipment, net 764 845
Deferred income taxes - 286
Total assets m W
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 14,883 $ 24,652
Deferred revenue 300 20
Accrued employee costs 7,279 4,301
Short term borrowings 1,357 65
Other liabilities 3,930 8,277
Income taxes payable 93 24
Deferred income taxes - 27
Total current liabilities 27,842 37,366
Deferred income taxes, net of current portion - 9
Total Liabilities 27,842 37,375
Minority interest 7 7
Stockholder’s equity:
Common stock, no par value -
10,000,000 shares authorized as of
1999 and 2000;
5,500,101 shares issued and outstanding 5,500 5,500
Additiona! paid in capital 271 1,565
Accumulated other comprehensive income 254 245
Accumulated deficit (4,472) (5,079)
Total stockholder’s equity 1,553 2231
Total liabilities and stockhoider’s )
equity $ 29,402 $ 39,613

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except number of shares and per share data)
Years ended June 30,

1999 2000
Revenues $ 122,497 $129,615
Less: Stock based sales incentive - 672
Net Revenue 122,497 128,943
Cost of revenues 101,594 104,903
Gross profit 20,903 24,040
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing 8,994 9,181
General and administrative 12,459 13,860
Depreciation and amortization 342 385
Total operating expenses 21,795 23,426
Income/ (loss) from operations (892) 614
Interest expense 1,213 1,318
Interest and other income, net 609 1,152
Income/ (loss) before income taxes T (1,49) 448
Income tax expense 367 1,055
Net Loss m WG?)
Basic and diluted earnings per share $(0.34) $ (0.11)

Weighted average number of

common shares 5,500,101 5,500,101

The accompanying notes are
financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

an integral part of these consolidated

Year ended June 30

1999 2000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (1,863) $ (607)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 342 385
Stock based sales incentive - 67é
Deterred income taxes 99 463
Write down of marketable securities;
available for sale 228 40
Changes in assets and liabilities, net
Accounts receivable (1,522) (3,199)
Other assets (841) (372)
Accounts payable 3,385 9,489
Accrued employee costs 1,738 (2,977)
Other liabilities 1,390 4,908

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,956

8,802
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (681) (445)
Net cash used in investing activities ~(681)  (445)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES "
Repayment of bank line of credit (3,535) -
Payments of capital lease obligations - (6)
Increase / (decrease) in short term borrowings 1,397 (7,190)

Net cash used in financing activities (2,138)

Effect of exchange rate on
cash and cash equivalents

(7,196)

169 (34)
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Years ended June 30,
1999 2000

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 306 $1,127
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of the year $1,372 $1,678
End of the year $1,678 $2.805
Supplementary disclosure for cash activities

Cash paid for interest - 709
Cash paid for income taxes = 620

The accompanying notes are
financial statements.

an integral part of these consolidated



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY
(In thousands, except number of shares)

prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

in the United States to reflect the financial position and results of
operations of HCLA along with its subsidiaries, (hereinafter collec-
tively referred to as “the Company”).
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Equity shares Additional Accumulated other Total
No. of paid in Accumulated Comprehensive comprehensive Stockholder’s
shares Amount Capital deficit income income equity
Balance as of June 30, 1998 5,500,101 $ 5,500 $ 271 $ (2,609) $ - $377 $ 3,539
Net income (1,863) (1,863) (1,863)
Other Comprehensive income
Translation adjustment (123)
Other Comprehensive income (123) (123) (123)
Comprehensive income (1,986)
Balance as of June 30, 1999 5,500,101 $ 5,500 $271 $ (4,472) $ 254 $ 1,553
Net income (607) (607) (607)
Tax benefit on account of ESOP deduction 622 622
Compensation related to stock based sales incentive 672 672
Other comprehensive income
“Translation adjustment 9)
Other Comprehensive income 9) 9 9)
Comprehensive income (616)
Balance as of June 30, 2000 5,500,101 $ 5,500 $ 1,565 $ (5,079) $ 245 $ 2,231
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
NOTES TO CONSOLID ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Unless otherwise specified, all amounts are stated in (a) Principles of consolidation
United States Dollars) . . .
The consolidated financial statements present the accounts of the
1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS Company and all of its subsidiaries, which are more than 50% owned
HCL Technologies America Inc. (“HCLA”), formerly HCL America Inc., and controlled. All significant transactions and balances between the
was incorporated in California on November 7, 1988 as a wholly entities included in the consolidated financial statements have been
owned subsidiary of HCL Ltd., a corporation organized under the eliminated.
laws of India. HCLA is primarily engaged in providing a range of (b) Use of estimates
information technology services targeted at technology vendors, . . ) . o
software product companies and medium to large end user organiza- The preparation of fmarycna}l statemepts in conformity with generally
tions. In January 1995, HCL Lid. sold 100% of its ownership interest accepted accounting principles requires management to make
in HCLA to one of its affiliated companies, HCL Technologies Limited estimates aqd g_sgumphon§ that affect the r'eported amounts of
(*HCLT"), the ultimate parent company, formerly known as HCL a‘lssg.tg, and fiabilities and dls.closu‘re of contingent assets and
Consulting Limited. l|ablllt|§s at the_ date of the fl_nancua[ statements and the resu_lts of
) ) ) . operations during the reporting periods. Although these estimates
In February 1999, HCLT.sgld_ its entire 100% mte;rest in HCLA to one are based upon management's best knowledge of current events
of its wholly owned subsidiaries, HCL Technologies (Bermuda) and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Limited, Bermuda (“the Parent”). .
. ] (c) Exchange rate translation
Reorganization duing the year ended June foge000 The consolidated financial statements are reported in United States
The transfer by the Parent of its 100% ownership of HCL Europe and Dollars (“US Dollars”). The functional currency of each entity in the
its subsidiaries to HCLA without consideration. HCL Europe has the Company is its respective local currency. The translation of the
following subsidiaries: functional currency into US dollars is performed for balance sheet
a) HCL Technologies Sweden AB, Sweden; accounts using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet
. . date and for revenue and expense accounts using an appropriate
b) HCL Technologies GmbH, Germany; monthly weighted average exchange rate for the respective periods.
c) HCL Technologies Netherlands BV, The Netherlands; The gains or losses resulting from such transiation are reported as &
d) HCL Technologies Schweiz AG, Switzerland; separate component of stockholder's equity.
e) HCL Technologies Belgium NV, Belgium and Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies of the entities in
i the Company are translated info the functional currency at the rates
f)  HCL Technologies SLR, ltaly. of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in
Since all the businesses acquired in the reorganization were under foreign currencies of the entities in the Company are translated into
common control, the accompanying financial staterments retroactively the functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
reflect the accounts of the transferred businesses at the historical date of the transaction. The gains or losses resulting from foreign
costs. currency transactions are included in other income.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been (d) Revenue recognition

Revenues for time and material services are recognized as the
services are provided. Revenues from fixed price contracts are
recognized using the percentage of completion method of account-
ing, under which sales value of performance, including earnings




(e)

"

(9)

(h)

()

(k)

thereon is determined by relating the actual man hours of work
performed to date, to the estimated total man hours for each
contract. Any anticipated losses upon contract completion are
recognized immediately. Deferred revenue represents amounts
billed in excess of revenues earned.

Warranty costs on services provided are accrued based on manage-
ment estimates and historica) data.

Property and equipment

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements including assets
under capital lease agreements are stated at cost less accumuiated

appropriate. Individual assets costing less than US Dollars 1,000 are
depreciated in full, in the year of acquisition.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment, whenever
an event or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such assets may not be recoverabie. The carrying values
of long-lived assets are assessed for recoverability by reference to
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with them.
Where this assessment indicates a deficit, the assets are written
down to the market value. For assets that do not have a readily
determinable market value, the assets are written down to their fair
value, calculated by reference to their estimated future discounted
cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents represent highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of ninety days or less.

Income taxes

The current charge for income taxes is calculated in accordance with
the relevant tax regulations applicable to each entity. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respec-
tive tax bases and operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recog-
nized in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized in full, subject to a valuation allowance that
reduces the amount recognized to that, which is more likely than not
to be realized.

Earnings per share

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

(“SFAS”) No. 128, Earning Per Share, basic earnings per share is
computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is com-

would be anti-dilutive.

Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of trade receivables.
To manage its credit risk the Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers and maintains reserves for credit losses.
Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified wherever
necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.

ALLOWANCES FOR ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Company maintains an allowance for uncollectible receivables
based on the trade receivables at the end of the year. Factors
utitized by management in determining the adequacy of the allow-
ance include the present ang prospective financial condition of the
debtor and the aging of the trade receivables. Allowance for

40

uncollectible receivables aggregated $ 1,462,086 and $ 547,904 as
of June 30, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment comprise of the following (in thousands):

Estimated
Useful lives
(inyears) - As of June 30,
1999 2000
Equipment 2.5 $1272 $1,651
Furniture and fixtures 4 362 428
1,634 2,079
Less: Accumulated depreciation (870) (1.234)
Property and equipment, net $ 764 $845

Depreciation expense was $341,855 and $ 384,708 for the years
ended June 30, 1999 and 2000 respectively,

MARKETABLE SECURITIES

As of June 30, 1999 and 2000, there has been a decline in the fair
value of the securities, which in the opinion of management is an
other than temporary decline. Accordingly, the difference between
the carrying value and fair value of the securities amounting to
$228,000 and $40,000 are recorded through the statement of
operations for the years ended June 30. 1999 and 2000 respectively.

As of June 30, 1999 and 2000, the Company had an investment in
Reach Software (“Reach”). The Company accounts for ts invest-
ment in Reach on the cost method as its investment represented
less than 10% of Reach’s outstanding voting stock as of

June 30, 1999 and 2000. Reach had incurred significant losses
since inception, and accordingly, the Company’s investment in
Reach of $1,691 ;000 was fully written off in prior years.

LEASES
The Company leases computer equipment, vehicles and office

furniture and equipment under capital leases. Future minimum lease

payments under capital leases as of June 30, 2000 are as foliows (in
thousands):

Year ending June 30.
2001 $31
Total minimum payments 31
Less: Amount representing future interest

Present value of minimum payments

IOJ jw
A b

Less: Current portion
Long term capital lease obligation -
The Company leases its facilities under non-cancelable operating

lease agreements. Rental expense under those leases is $ 960,710

and $ 1,163,763, for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 2000
respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under such non-cancelabie
Operating lease agreements are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending June 30,

2001 $1,043
2002 914
2003 940
2004 171
2005 11
Total minimum payments $ 3,079

STOCK BASED SALES INCENTIVE

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company along with HCL
Technologies Limited ("HCLT), the ultimate parent company has
entered inio software consulting and engineering service agreements
obligating customers either to commit and / or project revenues over
periods ranging from 3 to 5§ years. On achievement of the revenues
and / or on fulfilment of necessary conditions, the Company has
agreed to grant stock options to these customers, with shares for the



a)

b)

option plan to be currently provided through the principal share-
holder.

The rights to acquire shares are normally exercisable in increments
at a price either being agreed in advance or t0 be determined as a
future date, after a specified minimum volume of services has been
availed by the customer. These rights vest over a period ranging
from 1 to 5 years and are exercisable within 10 years from the date
of vesting.

The Company accounts for these options in accordance with the
Emerging Issues Task Force Abstract No. 96-18, “Accounting for
Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for
Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services” (EITF
96-18"). Pursuant to EITF 96-18, the Company has valued the rights
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The cost is being
amortized ratably over the applicable service period. During the year
ended June 30, 2000, the Company has amortized a total of
$672,000 as sales incentive representing the pro-rata cost of stock
options over the service period.

GROUP COMPANY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into transactions with the following group
companies and related parties:

Companies in which HCL Technologies Limited (“HCL "), being the
ultimate parent company, has a significant ownership interest,
controlling interest or over which HCLT exercises significant
influence (*Group companies”);

Companies in which Mr. Nadar, a principal shareholder of HCL
Technologies Limited, has a significant ownership interest, controlling
interest or over which he exercises significant influence (“Related
parties”).

The related party transactions can be categorized as follows:
Revenues

The Company provides software services to Group companies.
During the years ended on June 30, 1999 and 2000 the Company
had income from software services provided to Group companies of
$ 80,000 and $ 211,000 respectively.

Cost of revenues and services

The Company uses the services of HCLT to execute some of its
contracts. During the year ended June 30, 1999 and 2000 the total
cost of revenues payable to HCLT was $ 38,678,003 and

$ 48,515,693 respectively.

The Company paid interest 10 HCLT at 8.5 % and 8 % for the year
ended June 30, 1999 and 2000 respectively. During the year ended
June 30, 1999 and 2000 the Company paid interest to HCLT
amounting 1o $ 556,918 and $ 1,293,074 respectively.

The Company recruits a majority of its software engineers from
HCLT. Amounts incurred for recruitment fees and miscellaneous
charges during the year ended June 30, 1999 and 2000 were
$2,511,711 and $3,189,954 respectively.

The Company also recruited engineers from other affiliates and
amounts incurred are classified as cost of service revenues in the
consolidated statements of operations. The details of transactions
during the years ended June 30, 1999 and 2000 are as follows

(in thousands):

1999 Consulting charges Other charges
Group companies $ 38,950 $2,512
Related parties 4,043 -
Total 7§ 42,993 $2512
2000 Consulting charges Other charges
Group companies $ 56,284 $ 319
Related parties 137 -
Total “§56,421 T$319 _

Transaction with parent company

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Parent transferred its
investments in HCL Technologies Europe amounting to $ 271,882 to
the Company without consideration. The same has been disciosed
as capital contribution in the statement of stockholder’s equity.

Short Term Loans

The Company has provided a short-term loan to Intelicent Inc
(formerly known as HCL James Martin Inc), an affiliated company,
during the year 2000. The amount of oan outstanding as at

June 30, 2000 is $750,000 and bears interest at the rate of 8 % per
annum. The total interest on the loan during the year ended

June 30, 2000 amounted to $26,650.

Employee receivables

The Company has advanced car and settlement loans to certain
employees. These loans are non-interest bearing and generally do
not exceed six months. The amounts outstanding on June 30, 1999
and 2000 are $172,230 and $663,011, respectively.

The balances receivable from and payable to related parties are as
follows:

At June 30, 1999 (in thousands):

Group Related Total

Companies Parties
Accounts receivable $783 $ 283 $ 1066
Other receivables $105 $9 $114
Accounts payable $ 12,422 $ 871 $ 13,293
Short term borrowings $1,357 $- $ 1,357

At June 30, 2000 (in thousands):

Group Related Total

Companies Parties
Accounts receivable $ 3,290 $17 $3.307
Other receivables $41 $- $ 41
Accounts payable $ 24,219 $- $ 24,219
Short term loans $ 65 $- $65

INCOME TAXES

The individua! entities within the Group file individual tax returns as
per regulations existing in their respective countries of domicile.

The income tax expense comprises the following (in thousands):

1999 2000
Current tax expense $268 $592
Deferred tax expense - 99 463
Total expense $ 367 $ 1,055

The net deferred tax asset is presented in the balance sheet
as follows:

1999 2000

Current deferred tax asset $1.569 $ 856
Non-current deferred tax asset 798 2,437
2,367 3,293

Less: Valuation allowance 798 gL5_1_
Total deferred tax assets 1,569 1,142
Current deferred tax liability - 27
Non-Current deferred tax liability S 9
Net deferred tax asset W —$—11—5§

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management
considers whether it is more likely than not, that some portion, or all,
of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realiza-
tion of deferred tax asset is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the projected future
taxable income and tax planning sirategies in making this assess-
ment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections
for future taxable incomes over the periods in which the deferred tax
assets are deductible, management believes that it is more likely
than not, the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible
differences, net of existing valuation allowances. The amount of the




10.

11.

12.

13.

deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be
reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during
the carry forward period are reduced.

Management has considered the tax losses of the European
subsidiary for the post acquisition period i.e. April 1, 2000 to June 30,
2000 for the purpose of tax provision.

At June 30, 1999 the Company had a valuation allowance of
approximately $700,000 with respect to the investment in Reach
which was written off for book purposes, but would be deductible for
tax purposes only when it is sold or disposed of, and if the Company
has offsetting capital gains. Given these uncertainties, the Company
has fully reserved the tax benefit due to writing-off the investment in
Reach. In 1999 and 2000, the Company has created an additional
valuation allowance of $98,000 and $31,000 respectively, for certain
other investments that have been written down for book purposes.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities comprise of the following:
As of June 30

1999 2000
Provision for Consulting charges $1,512 $ 5,505
Provision for legal and professional costs 508 891
Others 1,910 1,881
$ 3,930 $8,277

BORROWINGS

The Company has a line of credit agreement with a bank in the US,
which allows for a borrowing of 60% of the eligible account receiva-
bles subject to a ceiling of $5,000,000, as of June 30, 1999 and
2000. The line of credit bears interest at the bank’s prime lending
rate pius 0.75% per annum and is secured by certain assets of the
Company. There were no borrowings outstanding as of June

30, 1999 and 2000.

CONTINGENCIES

In December 1998, a customer had filed a claim against a subsidiary
alleging breach of contractual obligations between the parties under
a software development agreement. The customer has claimed all
losses, expenses, costs, damages and indemnification from the
subsidiary for its alleged breach of the agreement in an amount not
less than $10,000,000 as well as restitution for amounts paid to the
subsidiary in an amount not less than $308,000.

in management's opinion, the resolution of this issue will not have an
adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or resuits of
operations. However, final outcome of this litigation cannot be
predicted with certainty and, accordingly, no assurance can be given
that the ultimate resolution of the matter will not have a materia
impact on the Company’s financial position or result of operations.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a Savings and Investment Plan under Section
401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. This is a defined contribution
plan where employees above the age of 21 years, having completed
one year of service may choose to contribute up to 15% of their
compensation or $7,000, whichever is lower. The Company makes
a contribution equal to 50°% of the employee’s contribution, uptoa
maximum of 5% of the empioyee’s annual compensation. For the
years ended June 30, 1999 and 2000 the Company contributed

$ 815,000 and $ 704,342 respectively to the plan.

14.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company provides software services to customers in various
geographies. The Company views the geographic divisions of its

business as operating segments. The following is the information
about the Company’s revenue by reportable segments

(in thousands):

199

2000

Revenues

15.

16.

United States
Europe

$ 107,992
14,517
(12)

$1186,119
13,527

Less: Inter-segment transfers (31)

Total revenues $ 122,497

Revenues are attributed to individual geographies based on where
the contract for providing services is entered into. No single cus-
tomer accounted for more than 10 % of the revenues of the Group
during the years ended June 30, 1999 and 2000.

YEAR 2000

To date, the Company has not encountered any material Year 2000
issues concerning its respective computer programs. The Company’s
plan for the Year 2000 included replacing or updating existing
systems (which were not year 2000 compliant), assessing the Year
2000 preparedness of customers and counter-parties and formulat-
ing a contingency plan to ensure business continuity in the event of
unforeseen circumstances. All costs associated with carrying out the
Company’s plan for Year 2000 problem have been expensed as
incurred.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

During June 2000, the Company has entered into an agreement and
plan of merger with Intelicent Inc (formerly known as HCL James
Martin Inc, “Intelicent’) 1o take effect from July 1, 2000.

Intelicent, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent, is primarily
engaged in the business of providing information technology
consulting services.

In accordance with the plan of merger, the Company will succeed to
all of the assets and liabilities of Intelicent, without consideration as
contribution from the shareholder, including the cancellation of all
shares of capital stock of intelicent.

The unaudited proforma combined results of the Company and
Intelicent as if the acquisition had occurred on the date of the
financial statement is presented below:

(In thousands)

Current assets $ 41,519
Goodwill, net 7,135
Other assets 1,383

Total Assets

Liabilities $ 39,620

The unaudited proforma consolidated statement of operations for the
year ended June 30, 2000

(In thousands, except per share data)

Net Revenue $ 141,620
Net Loss $ (2,541)
Earnings per share- Basic and Diluted $ (0.46)

$ 129,615

$ 50,037

~



HCL Technologies Europe Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial state-
menits for the year ended 30 June 2000.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the company is that of software consultancy. The
company operates in the UK, and through its branch, in France.

Results for the year
The results for the year are set out below.
Year 2000

The directors have considered the risks and uncertainties associated with
the Year 2000 problem. The company has implemented a plan to address
these issues and its relationships with customers, suppliers and other rel-
evant parties. The costs incurred to date have been written off to the profit
and loss account and these and future costs are not expected to be signifi-

~=cant.

The company has not experienced any problems as a result of year 2000
issues on computer systems, applications or products and do not believe
results and operations have been adversely affected. The directors do not
know of any inability of third parties to manage their Year 2000 problems
which may adversely affect the company nor of any potential liability to third
parties as a result of Year 2000 failures.

Directors and directors’ interests
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:

A Chanana
S Bhattacharya
A Jain

None of the directors who held office at the end of the financial year had any
disclosable interest in the shares of the company.

Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.
Auditors

in accordance with Section 384 of the Companies Act 1985, a resolution for
““1e reappointment of KPMG as auditors of the company is to be proposed at
1e forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board
A Chanana City Gate House
Director 39-45 Finsbury Square
London
EC2AIUU

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the profit or loss for that period. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985. They have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Report of the auditors to the members of HCL Technologies
Europe Limited

We have audited the financial statements.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and, as de-
scribed on page 3, the financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our responsibilities, as in-
dependent auditors, are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the
Auditing Practices Board and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the Compa-
nies Act. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not
consistent with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explana-
tions we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and transactions with the group is not disclosed.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test ba-
sis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial state-
ments, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the com-
pany’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence 1o give reasonable assurance that the financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the company’s affairs as at 30 June 2000 and of its loss for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985.

Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditors

Profit and loss account
for the year ended 30 June 2000

Notes 2000 1999
£ £
Turnover 4,541,619 3,012,389
Cost of sales (3,932,688) (2,376,083)
Gross profit 608,931 636,306
Distribution costs (80,086) (226,336)
Administrative expenses (1,921,208) (1,344,347)
Operating loss (1,392,363) (934,377)
Interest receivable 5 4,056 4,686
Interest payable and similar charges 6 (30,746) (1,513)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 2-4 (1,41 9,053) (931,204)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities
Loss for the financial year (1,419,053)  (931,204)

The profit and loss account contains the only gains and losses of the com-
pany for the current and prior year. All amounts relate to continuing activi-
ties.




Balance sheet

at 30 June 2000
Note 2000 1999
£ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 7 240,315 158,469
Investments 8 1,075,708 _87.637
1,316,023 246,106
Current assets
Debtors 9 945,402 853,584
Cash at bank and in hand 240,926 40,214
1,186,328 893,798
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year 10 (3,237,530) (2,052,478)
Net current liabilities (2,051,202) (1,158,680)
Total assets less current liabilities (731,179) (912,574)
Creditors : amounts falling due
after more than one year 11 (17,399) (20,951)
Net liabilities (752,578) (933,525)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 12 1,765,000 165,000
Profit and loss account 13 (2,517,578) (1,098,525)
Equity sharehoiders’ deficit 14 (752,578) (933,525)

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on and
date were signed on its behalf by:

A Chanana
Director

Notes
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 Accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing
with items which are considered material in relation to the company’s finan-
cial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards, and under the historical cost accounting rules. The
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis de-
spite the company having net current liabilities and net liabilities, since the
company’s ultimate parent HCL Technologies Limited has confirmed that it
will provide any necessary financial support for a minimum of one year from
the date of approval of these financial statements.

The company is exempt by virtue of 5248 of the Companies Act 1985 from
the requirement to prepare group accounts. These financial statements
present information about the company as an individual undertaking and
not about its group.

Under Financial Reporting Standard 1 the company is exempt from the re-
quirement to prepare a cash flow statement on the grounds that a parent
undertaking includes the company in its own published consolidated finan-
cial statements.

As the company is a wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Technologies Limited,
the company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8
and has not disclosed transactions or balances with entities which form part
of the group. The US GAAP consolidated financial statements of HCL Tech-
nologies Limited, within which this company is included, can be contained
from the address given in note 18.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less the estimated residual
value of tangible fixed assets by equal instalments over their estimated use-
ful economic lives as follows:
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Motor vehicles - 3-5 years
Office fixtures and fittings - 4 years
Computer software - 2 years
Computer equipment - 3 years

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denomi-
nated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date and the gains or losses on translation are in-
cluded in the profit and loss account.

Leases

Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and the outstanding
future lease obligations are shown in creditors. Operating lease rentals are
charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the pe-
riod of the lease.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into
account taxation deferred because of timing differences between the treat-
ment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. Provision is
made for deferred tax only to the extent that it is probable that an actual
liability will crystallise.

Post-retirement benefits

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the company in an depend-
ently administered fund. The amount charged against profits represents the
contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting period.
Turnover

Turnover, which excludes value added tax, represents the chargeable value
of services and goods installed or accepted. The amount included in re-
spect of long term contracts is ascertained in a manner appropriate to the
risk and stage of completion of each contract.

2 Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
2000 1999
£ £
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
is stated after charging/(crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration - audit work 12,250 12,700
- other services 3,500 =
Depreciation - owned assets 64,975 49,863
- assets held under
finance leases 9,938 4,141
Exchange (gains)/losses (30,404) (7,853)
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 341 3,666
3  Remuneration of directors
Directors’ emoluments 2 63,100, _
One director exercised share options in a
group company in the year (1999 : none)
4  Staff numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the company (including
directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:
Number of employees
Technical 12 13
Sales and marketing 8 5
Administration and general 5 5
25 23
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
Wages and salaries 1,390,488 978,349
Social security costs 162,039 52,313
Pension costs 17,442 -
1,569,969 1,030,662
5 Interest receivable
Bank interest receivable 4,056 4,686




6 Interest payable and similar charges

2000 1999
£ £
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 28,401 -
Finance charges payable in respect of
finance leases and hire purchase contracts 2,345 1,513
30,746 1,513
7 Tangible fixed assets
Motor Computer Fixtures Computer Total
vehicles equipment and software
fittings
£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At beginning of year 60,312 37,343 85,882 20,900 204,437
Additions - 44,899 5,736 106,466 157,101
Disposals - - - (910) (910)
Atend
of year 60,312 82,242 91,618 126,456 360,628
Jepreciation
At beginning of year 14,763 14,668 14,384 2,154 45,969
Charge for year 9,937 21,061 23,313 20,602 74,913
Disposals - - - (569) (569)
At end of year 24,700 35,729 37,697 22,187 120,313
Net book value
At 30 June 2000 35,612 46,513 53,921 104,269 240,315
At 30 June 1999 45,549 22,675 71,498 18,746 158,469

Included within motor vehicles is an asset held under a finance lease with a
cost of £49.690 (1999: £49,690) and accumulated depreciation of £14,079
(1999: £4,141). Depreciation of £9,938 (1999: £4,141) has been charged in
respect of this asset in the year.

8 Fixed asset investments

Shares in Loans to Total
group group
undertakings  undertakings
£ £ £
Cost
At beginning and end of year 127,097 60,000 187,097
4dditions 240,941 747,130 988,071
368,038 807,130 1,175,168
Provisions
At beginning of year 39,460 60,000 99,460
Additions - - -
39,460 60,000 99,460
Net book value
At 30 June 2000 328,578 747,130 1,075,708
At 30 June 1999 87,637 - 87,637

The principal undertakings in which the company’s interest at the year end
is more than 20% are as follows:

Country of Class % of shares
incorporation of shares heid
Subsidiary undertakings
HCL Technologies Belgium NV Belgium Ordinary 100
HCL Technologies Sweden AB Sweden Ordinary 100
HCL Technologies Schweiz AG ~ Switzerland Ordinary 100
HCL Technologies EDV
Vertreibs-und Service GmbH Germany Ordinary 100
HCL Technologies (Netheriands) BV Netherlands Ordinary 100
HCL Technologies ltaly SRL ltally Ordinary 100

All of the above companies are engaged in the business of providing soft-
ware consultancy services.
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9 Debtors

2000 1999
£ £
Trade debtors 639,119 675,434
Amounts owed by group undertakings 130,225 143,435
Other debtors 166,586 32,029
Prepayments and accrued income 9,472 2,686
945,402 853,584
10 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2000 1999
£ £
Trade creditors 169,018 457,773
Obligations under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts (note11) 3,198 2,844
Amounts owed to group under
takings 2,599,057 1,390,302
Taxation and social security 80,549 108,801
Other creditors 40,634 1,658
Accruals and deferred income 345,074 91,100
3,237,530 2,052,478
11 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2000 1999
£ £
Obligations under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts 17,399 20,951
The maturity of obligations under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts is as follows:
2000 1999
£ £
Within one year 5,144 5,144
In the second to fifth years 18,858 23,572
24,002 28,716
Less future finance charges (3,405) (4,921)
20,597 23,795
12 Called up share capital
2000 1999
£ £
Authorised
Equity: Ordinary shares of £1 each 5,000,000 1,000,000
Allotied, called up and fully paid
Equity: Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,765,000 165,000

The authorised share capital was increased on 1 April 2000 from 1,000,000
Ordinary £1 shares to 5,000,000 Ordinary £1 shares. 1,600,000 Ordinary

£1 shares were issued at par on 1 April 2000.
13 Profit and loss account

2000

£

At beginning of year (1,098,525)
Retained loss for the year (1,419,053)

At end of year
14 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

1999

£
(167,321)
(931,204)

(2,517,578) (1,098,525)

2000 1999

£ £

Loss for the year (1,419,053) (931,204)

issue of share capital 1,600,000 -
Net increase/(reduction) in

shareholders’ funds in the year 180,947 (931,204)

Deficit at the beginning of year (933,525) (2,321)

Deficit at end of year (752,578) (933,525)




15 Commitments

Annuai commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases are as foilows:

2000 1999
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buildings
£ £ £ £
Operating leases which expire
Within one year - - - -
in the second to fifth
years inclusive 75,000 - 75,000 -
Over five years - - - -
75,000 - 75000 -

16 Related party transactions

The company carried out the following transactions with companies of which
Mr. Shiv Nadar, the company’s ultimate controlling party (see note 18), has
significant ownership interest, controlling interest or exercises significant
influence.

30 June 2000
Income Expenditure = Amount Amount
owing to the owing by
company company
£ £ £ £
NIIT Benelux Limited 10,877 - 10877 -
HCL Infosystems Limited - - 4,358 -
NIIT Europe Limited 60,895 82,781 - -
30 June 1999
Income Expenditure  Amount Amount
owing to the owing by
the company  company
Year ended 30 June 1999 £ £ £ £
NIIT Benelux Limited 35,625 - 35,625 -
HPS Europe Limited - 32,665 - 24,759
HCL Infosystems Limited - 39,190 4,358 39,190
NIIT Europe Limited - 173,544 - 302,386

17 Pension scheme ;

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pen-
sion cost charge for the period represents contributions payable by the com-
pany to the fund and amounted to £ 17,442 (1999:€nil).

18 Ultimate parent company and parent undertaking of larger group of
which the company is a member

The company is a subsidiary undertaking of HCL Technologies America Inc.,
a company incorporated in United States of America. The company’s ulti-
mate parent is HCL Technologies Limited, a company incorporated in India.
HCL Technologies Limited is controlled by Mr. Shiv Nadar who owns the
majority of its ordinary shares.

The smallest group in which the results of the company are consolidated is
that headed by HCL Technologies America Inc., incorporated in United States
of America. The consolidated accounts of the group are available to the
public and may be obtained from 330 Potrero Avenue, Sunnyvale, Califor-
nia 94086, United States of America. The largest group in which the results
of the company are consolidated is that headed by HCL Technologies Lim-
ited, incorporated in India. The US GAAP consolidated accounts of this group
are available to the public and may be obtained from HCL Technologies
Limited, A-10, Sector 3, Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India.
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The Board of Directors and the Managing Director of HCL Technologies
Sweden AB submit the following Annual report for the financial year July 1,
1999 - June 30, 2000.

Administration Report
Operations

HCL Technologies Sweden AB (HCLT)is a part of HCL Technologies Group.
HCLT have been active in the Swedish market since 1998. The company
offers a wide range of iT-related setvices. The customer base includes well-
known large Swedish and \celandic companies with a need for qualified
Software Engineering expertise.

Proposed profit appropriation
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director propose that the unap-

propriated eamings: 2000-06-30
shareholders’ unconditional contribution 3300771
accumulated loss -3 277 790
Total 22 981
be distributed as follows:

carry forward 22 981
Total 22 981

For further information on the company's results of operations and financial
position of 2000-06-30 and 1999-06-30, refer to the following income state-
ment and balance sheet.

Income Statement (in SEK)
1999-07-01 1998-01-12
2000-06-30 1999-06-30
Net sales Note 1 _ 5487056 _ 6326136
5487056 6325136
Operating expenses
Other external costs Note 4 -6475456 -4290329
Personnel costs Note2 -2230983 -2767998
Depreciation of tangible assets Note 3 -13773 -13 505
Operating Loss -3 233 156 -746 696
Result from financial investments
interest income and similar income 15 525 3102
Interest expense and similar loss items -92 397 -24 168
Loss After Financial items -3 322 451 755 339
Income taxes N -
Loss For The Year -3 322 451 -755 339
Balance Sheet (in SEK)
Assets 2000-06-30 1999-06-30
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Equipment Note 3 22 946 32 624
22 946 32 624
Financial fixed assets
Deposits 43 800 43 800
43 800 43 800
Total fixed assets 66 746 76 424
Current assets
Current receivables
Trade debtors 1134010 835 432
Receivables from group companies 800000 1435000
Other receivables 20 375 40 306
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 62 297 70 834
2651682 1746572

HCL Technolog
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Cash and bank 540 217 468 855
Total current assets 3191899 2215427
Total Assets 3258645 2291 851
. Ee———
Equity and Liabilities (in SEK)
Shareholders’ equity Note 5 2000-06-30 - 1999-06-30
Restricted equily:
Share capital (1000 share, par value SEK 100) 100 000 100 000
100 000 100 000
Nonrestricted equity
Retained earnings 3345432 800 000
Loss for the year -3 322 451 -755 339
22 981 44661
Total shareholders’ equity 122 981 144 661
Current liabilltles
Trade creditors 34 261 427 473
Liabilities to group companies 2930605 1394348
Other liabilities 27 339 84 551
Accrued expenses and
deferred income 143 459 240 818
Total current liabilities 3135664 2147190
Total Equity And Liabilities 3258645 2291851
Assets pledged None None
Contingent liablilities None None

Notes to the Annual Accounts (SEK unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles
The company adheres to the Annual Accounts Act and to the recommenda-
tions of the Swedish Financiat Accounting Standards Council.

Assets and liabilities are stated at acquisition value unless otherwise stated
below.

Assets and liabllities dencminated in foreign currency are stated at year-
end exchange rates.

Recelvables:

Receivables are stated at the amount expected to be collected.
Depreciation of fixed assets:

Depreciation is based on the asset's acquisition value and the estimated

useful economic lie.

The following depreciation periods are applied:

Equipment 3-5 years

Group affiliation

HCL Technologles Sweden AB is a wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Tech-
nologies Europe, Lid. located in England. HCL Technologies Europe, Ltd is
a member of a group of companies recognising as its ultimate parent com-
pany HCL Technologies Ltd, located in India, preparing consolidated annual
accounts for the entire group.

Out of the company's total purchases
(59%) of the purchases (costs of services supplied) and
cern other group companies.

and sales measured in SEK, 97%
0% of sales con-

1. Netsales
1999-07-01 1998-01-12
2000-06-30  1999-06-30
Net sales by geographic market:
Sweden 976 784 3014 800
Iceland 4510272 3310336
5 487 056 6325 136
2. Personnel
Average number of employees:
Female - -
Men 20 15
Total _ 2.0 15
Employees (temporarily) for fulfilling client assignment has also
occurred.




1999-07-01 1998-01-12
2000-06-30  1999-06-30
Salaries and other remunerations:
Board and Managing Director 1329 200 1322 320
Other employees 225 324 749 935
1554 524 2072 255
Social security cost:
Board and Managing Director 459 569 402 306
Other employees 43 261 236 275
Pension costs:
Board and Managing Director 142 800 -
Other employees - 24 898
645 630 663 479
Total salaries and remunerations, pension
costs and social security costs 2200 154 2735734
Tangiblie fixed assets 2000-06-30 1999-06-30
Equipment:
From previous owner transferred
acquisition cost 67 905 52210
Purchases 4 095 15 695
Acquisition cost at end of year 72 000 67 905
From previous owner transferred
accumulated depreciation -35 281 -21776
Depreciation for year -13773 -13 505
Accumulated depreciation at end of year ~49 054 -35 281
Residual value at end of year 22 946 32624
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4,

Fees to auditors

1999-07-01 1998-01-12
2000-06-30  1999-06-30
KPMG, audit assignments 67 140 48 000
Shareholders’ equity
The year’s change in Shareholders equity
Statutory Profit brought Loss for
Share capital reserve forward the year
Balance at
July 1, 1999 100 000 800 000 -755 339
Shareholders
unconditional 3300 771
contribution
Appropriation of profit -755 339 755 339
Loss for the year -3 322 451
Balance at
June 30, 2000 100 000 3345432 -3 322451

Stockholm July 7, 2000

Anders Olsson
Managing Director

Sanjay Kalra

George Pettersson
Authorised public account
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DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(NLG in thousands)

Years Ended June 30

2000 1999

Software Services 4,831 10,697
Other income 353 26

Profit /(Loss) before depreciation and tax (705) (426)
Depreciation 42 40
Profit /(Loss) after depreciation and tax (747) (466)
PERFORMANCE:

The revenue from software and related technical services reduced from
NLG 10.69 millions in fiscal 1999 to NLG 4.83 millions in fiscal 2000.
Losses before depreciation and tax increased from NLG 0.43 millions in
fiscal 1999 to NLG 0.71 millions in fiscal 2000. Loss after depreciation
and tax increased from NLG 0.47 millions in fiscal 1999 to NLG 0.75
millions in fiscal 2000.

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
Your directors are not declaring any dividend for the fiscal 2000. There
has been no transfer to reserves during the year 2000.

AUDITORS:

M/s BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants continue to remain in office as
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed their eligibility and willing-
ness to accept office, if reappointed.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

The Directors wish o thank the government authorities, customers,
vendors and employees for their cooperation and assistance extended to
the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Director

-Place: New Delhi
Jate: July 31, 2000

Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
HCL Technologies Netherlands BV, Netherlands

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Technologies
Netherlands BV, Netherlands as at 30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss
Account for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the company so far as appears from our examination
of the books;

(c) the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section
(3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent
applicable; and

{e) in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the accounts give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view:

(i) inthe case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as
at 30 June 2000; and
(i) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the loss of the company for
the year ended on that date.
For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000
( All amounts in NLG )

Schedule As at As at
No. 30 June 2000 30 June 1999

Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 1 40,000 40,000

Loan funds

Unsecured loans 2 1,104,105 -
1,144,105 40,000

Application of funds ~Timwn o S WO O

Fixed assets 3

Gross block 161,846 146,521

Less: Accumulated depreciation (74,960) (40,221)

Net block 86,886 106,300

Current assets, loans

and advances

Sundry debtors 4 724,385 891,398

Cash and bank balances 5 100,455 518,185

Loans and advances 6 245,945 1,625,219

Other current assets 7 37,256 -
1,108,041 3,034,802

Current liabilities

and provisions 8 (1,230,257) (3,532,588)

Net current liabilities (122,216) (497,786)

Profit and loss account 1,179,435 431,486

40,000

1,144,105
Notes to the accounts 12 =a
As per our report attached

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountanis

For HCL Technologies Netherlands BV

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner
Place: New Delhi

Date: August 2, 2000

Place: Leidschendam, Netherlands
Date: July 31, 2000

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000
( All amounts in NLG )

Schedule Year ended Year ended
No. 30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Income
Software services 4,831,164 10,697,643
Other income 9 352,607 26,454
5,183,771 10,724,097
Expenditure — S
Cost of software development 10 4,603,562 10,315,046
Administration and other
expenses 11 1,255,207 834,791
Finance Cost 30,250 -
Depreciation 42,701 40,686
5,931,720 11,190,523
Loss for the year (747,949) j
Balance brought forward (431,486) 34,940
Balance carried forward to
the Balance Sheet (1,179,435) (431,486)




Notes to the accounts 12
As per our report attached

For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies Netherlands BV
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Place: Leidschendam, Netherlands
Date: July 31, 2000

Schedules forming part of the accounts
(Al amounts in NLG )

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 1: Share capital
Authorised
2,000 (previous year 2,000) equity
shares of NLG 100 each 200,000 200,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
400 (previous year 400) equity shares of
NLG 100 each fully paid up, 40,000 40,000
held by HCL Technologies Europe Limited,
United Kingdom. The ultimate holding
company is HCL Technologies
Limited, India. 40,000 40,000
Schedule 2: Unsecured loan
From HCL Technologies Europe Limited, 1,104,105 -
United Kingdom - the holding company 1,104,105 -
Schedule 3: Fixed assets
As at Additions Disposal As at
1 July 1999 during the year 30 June 2000
Gross block
Computers 84,879 27,050 14,621 97,308
Furniture, fixtures and
other equipment 61,642 2,896 - 64,538
146,521 29,946 14,621 161,846
Previous year - 148,911 2,390 146,521
Accumulated Depreciation
Computers 24,943 32,771 7,962 49,752
Furniture, fixtures and
other equipment 15,278 9,930 - 25,208
40221  _42.701 —7.962 74,960
Previous year - 40,686 465 40,221
Net block 106,300 _86,886
Previous year - - - 106,300
As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999

Schedule 4: Sundry debtors (unsecured)
Outstanding for less than six months

- Considered good 724,385 891,398

- Considered doubtful 112,434 25,228

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (112,434) (25,228)
724,385 891,398

Schedule 5: Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand 18 1,574

Balances with non-scheduled bank

- In current account

ABN Amro Bank, Netherlands

( maximum balance outstanding 100,437 516,611

during the year NLG 1,019,030,

previous year NLG 3,892,532) 100,455 518,185

Schedule 6: Loans and advances (unsecured and considered good)
Advances receivable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received (refer note) 245,945

245,945

1,625,219

Note:

Loans and advances include loans to HCL Tech

United Kingdom - nil

(previous year NLG 1,276,488) [maximum balance o

nologies Europe Limited,

utstanding during the

year NLG -1,104,105 (previous year -1 ,276,488) and HCL Technologies
Schweiz AG, Switzerland nil {previous year NLG 33,023) [maximum
balance outstanding during the year NLG-33,023 (previous year NLG -
33,023)], the corporates under the same management under section

370(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Schedule 7: Other current assets
Income accrued but not due

37,256

37.256

( All amounts in NLG )

Schedule 8: Current liabilities and provisions

1,625,219

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Current liabilities
Sundry creditors 1,150,336 2,380,413
Advances from customers -
515,763
Other liabilities 79,921 617,598
1,230,257 3,513,774
Provisions -
For income tax - 18,814
1,230,257 3,532,588
Schedule 9: Other income
Exchange gain 62,871 15,780
Interest income 12,833 -
Excess provision for doubtful debts
written back 53,208 -
Miscellaneous income 223,695 10,674
352,607 26,454
Schedule 10: Cost of software development
Salaries, wages, allowances and bonus 2,291,105 4,736,652
(includes remuneration to directors
NLG-Nil, previous year NLG-430,147)
Software development charges 2,312,457 5,578,394
4,603,562 10,315,046
Schedule 11: Administration and other expenses
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Rent 94,266 74,132
Electricity 5,358 7,507
Insurance charges 3,470 2,362
Repairs and maintenance e
- Plant & Machinery 16,435 20,687
- Buildings 9,993 13,848
- Others - 1,501
Communication 96,544 120,126
Travel and conveyance 412,216 362,071
Entertainment and business promotion 7,251 16,703
Audit fees 12,500 12,293
Legal and professional charges 432,524 75,370
Printing and stationery 22,030 18,952
Bank charges - 12,653
Advertising and publicity 6,268 5,204
Loss on sale of assets 3,831 -
Provision for doubtful debts 112,434 25,228
Miscellaneous expenses 20,087 66,154
1,255,207 834,791



Adjustments in Opening Balance of Retained Earnings

Entity : HCLT Netherlands

(For entry passed as on 30th June, 1999 at the time of final consolidation)
figures in NLG

S. Account Amount
No. Dr. Cr.
1 Retained Earnings 12,293

Sundry Creditors (Audit Fee 1999) 12,293
2 Retained Earnings 943

Admn and other Expenses 943
3 *Audit fees 12,500

Legal and professional charges 12,500
4 **Advances from customers 45,384

Sundry Debtors 45,384

Remarks

N Rectification of Audit fee wrongly recorded in Legal & Prof.

*  Reversal of income in respect of OAB/Omega wrongly credited to
Advances from customers now rectified

Schedules forming part of the accounts
Schedule 12: Notes to the accounts

1.  Significant accounting policies
(i) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the Compa-
nies Act, 1956 as adopted consistently by the company. All income
and expenditure having a material bearing on the financial state-
ments are recognised on the accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of
compliance with the provisions of section 212 of the Companies Act,
1956.

(ii) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Examples of
such estimates include estimates of expected coniract costs to be
incurred to complete software development, provision for doubtiul
debts and estimated useful life of fixed assets. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

(iii) Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition including incidental
costs related to acquisition and installation.

(iv) Depreciation
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straight-line method
based on estimated useful lives as estimated by the management.
Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/

sold during the year. The management's estimates estimate of the
useful life of the various fixed assets is as follows:

Life
(in years)
Computers and software
Furniture and fixtures 4

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue from software developed on time and material basis is
recognised as the services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price
contracts is recognised on the basis of percentage completion
method under which the sales value of performance including
earnings thereon are recognised on the basis of effort incurred in
respect of each contract as a proportion of total effort expected to be
incurred. Anticipated losses, if any, upon completion of contract are
recognised immediately.

(vi) Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are
made for all known losses and liabilities. Provisions are made for
future unforeseeable factors, which may affect the ultimate profit on
fixed price software development contracts. The cost of services for
software development is charged to revenue in the same year.

(vii) Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities are translated at year end rates and resultant gains/losses
on foreign exchange translations other than those relating to fixed
assets are recognised in the profit and loss account.

(viii) Retirements benefits

The company and employees contribute to the social security
scheme in accordance with the local statutory requirements.

2. The company has incurred significant losses in the post operation
period resulting in complete erosion of net worth. The company has
continuing financial support from the holding company hence, these
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

3. No provision for tax has been made as the company has not earned
any taxable income during the year.

4. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to conform
to current year’s classification.
For HCL Technologies Netherlands BV
Director Director
Place: Leidschendam, Netherlands
Date: July 31, 2000

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

l. Registration details

Registration No. Not applicable
State Code Not applicable
Balance Sheet Date 30 June 2000

Il. Capital raised during the year (Netherlands Guilders in thousands)

Public issue Rights issue

Not applicable Not applicable
Bonus issue Private placement
Not applicable Not applicable

lil. Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Netherlands
Guilders in thousands)

Total liabilities Total assets

1,144 1,144
Sources of funds
Paid
-up capital Reserves and surplus
40 Nil

Secured loans Unsecured loans
Nil 1,104

Application of funds Net fixed assets

Investments

87 Nil

Net current assets Misc. expenditure
(122) Nil

Accumulated losses

1,179




IV. Performance of company (Netherlands Guilders in thousands)

Turnover Total expenditure
5,184 5,931
Loss before tax Loss after tax
747 747
Earnings per share
(Netherlands Guilders) Dividend rate %
Nif Not applicable

V. Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as per
monetary terms)

Product description: Software
item code (ITC code): 852490

For HCL Technologies Netherlands BV

Director Director
Place: Leidschendam, Netherlands

Date: July 31, 2000
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HCL Technologies GmbH, Germany

DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Deutsche Mark in thousands)
Years Ended June 30
2000 1999
Software Services 4,554 4,222
Other Income 139 6
Profit /(Loss) before Depreciation & Taxes (586) (621)
Depreciation 17 8
Profit /(Loss) after Tax (604) (629)

PERFORMANCE:

The revenue from software and related technical services increased by
8% from DEM 4.22 millions in fiscal 1999 to DEM 4.55 millions in fiscal
2000. Losses bafore Depreciation and Tax reduced by 6 % from DEM
0.62 millions in fiscal 1999 to DEM 0.58 millions in fiscal 2000. Loss after
depreciation and tax reduced from DEM 0.63 millions in fiscal 1999 to
DEM 0.60 millions in fiscal 2000.

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the fiscal 2000.
There has been no transfer to reserves during the year 2000.

AUDITORS:

M/s BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants continue to remain in office as
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed their eligibility and willing-
ness to accept office, if reappointed.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

The Directors wish to thank the government authorities, customers,
vendors, and employees for their cooperation and assistance extended to
the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Frankfurt, Germany Director
Date: July 31, 2000

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
HCL Technologies GmbH, Germany

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Technologies GmbH
as at 30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on
that date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the company so far as appears from our examination of
the books;

the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C)
of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable;
and

in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the accounts give the information required
by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view:

(b)

(c)
(d)
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(i) in the case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company
as at 30 June 2000; and

(it} in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the loss of the company
for the year ended on that date.

For BSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi Rajesh Jain
Date: August 2, 2000 Partner

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000
( All amounts in Deutsche mark )

Schedule As at As at
No. 30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 1 50,000 50,000
Loan funds
Unsecured loans 2 1,076,029 38,857
1,126,029 88,857
Application of funds
Fixed assets 3
Gross block 45,861 33,821
Less: Accumulated depreciation (25,385) (8,167)
Net block 20,476 25,654
Current assets, loans and advances
Sundry debtors 4 1,759,887 2,248,184
Cash and bank balances 5 49,891 161,959
Loans and advances 6 125,976 44,253
1,935,754 2,454,396
Current liabilities 7 (2,130,555)  (3,087,921)
Net current liabiiities (194,801) (6383,525)
Profit and loss account 1,300,354 696,728
1,126,029 88,857
Notes to the accounts 11

As per our report attached

For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies GmbH , Germany
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Place: Frankfurt, Germany
Date: July 31, 2000

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000
( All amounts in Deutsche mark )

Schedule Year ended Year ended
No. 30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Income

Software services 4,553,884 4,221,907
Other income 8 139,344 5,778
4,693,228 4,227,685

Expenditure
Cost of sottware development 9 4,551,788 4,281,988
Administration and other expenses 10 724,269 567,177
Finance Cost 3,579 -
Depreciation 17,218 __ 8,167
5,296,854 4,857,332




Loss for the year (603,626) (629,647)
Balance brought forward 696,728 67,081)
Balance carried forward to the balance sheet (1,300,354) (696,728)

Notes to the accounts
As per our report attached

11

For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies GmbH , Germany
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Place: New Delhi

Place: Frankfurt, Germany
Date: August 2, 2000

Date: July 31, 2000

Schedules forming part of the accounts
{ All amounts in Deutsche Mark )

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 1: Share capital
Authorised
1 (previous year 1) equity
share of DM 50,000 50,000 50,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up v
1 {previous year 1) equity share
of DM 50,000, fully paid up, 50,000 50,000
held by HCL Technologies Europe Limited,
United Kingdom. The ultimate holding company
is HCL Technologies Limited, India.
50,000 50,000
Schedule 2: Unsecured loans
From bank
- overdraft - 38,857
From HCL Technologies Europe Limited, 1,076,029 -
United Kingdom - the holding company. 1,076,029 38,857
Schedule 3: Fixed assets
As at Additions As at
1July 1999  during the year 30 June 2000
Gross block
Computers 2,744 2,400 5,144
Furniture, fixtures and
other equipment 31,077 9,640 40,717
33,821 12,040 45,861
Previous year - , 33,821
Accumulated depreciation
Computers 584 720 1,304
Furniture, fixtures and
other equipment 7,583 16,498 24,081
8,167 17,218 25,385
Previous year - 8,167 8,167
Net block 25,654 20,476
Previous year - 25,654
As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999

Schedule 4: Sundry debtors

Unsecured - considered good
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding

six months 172,249 2,248,184

Other Debts 1,587,638 -

Unsecured - considered doubtful

Debts outstanding for a period

exceeding six months - 10,150

Other debts - 86,139

Less: Provision for doubtful debts - (96,289)
1,759,887 2,248,184
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{ All amounts in Deutsche Mark )

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 5: Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand 87 1,325
Balances with non-scheduled banks
- In current accounts 7,947 160,634
- In deposit accounts 41,857 -

Dresdner bank AG, Germany
(maximum balance outstanding during the
year DM 1,048,755, previous

year DM 589,826) 49,891 161,959
Schedule 6: Loans and advances (unsecured and considered good)
Advances receivable in cash or in kind

or for value to be received (refer note) 125,976 44,253
125,976 44,253

Note: Loans and advances include DM-nil (previous year-nil) recoverable
from HCL Technologies Europe Limited, United Kingdom, [maximum
balance outstanding during the year 1,076,029 (previous year-nil)], a
corporate under the same management within the meaning of Sec.
370(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956,

Schedule 7: Current liabilities

Sundry creditors 1,918,088 2,754,176
Other liabilities 212,467 333,745
2,130,555 3,087,921
Scheduie 8: Other income
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation - 3,000
Interest income 1,937 -
Excess provision for doubtful
debts written back 96,289 -
Miscellaneous income 41,118 2,77
139,344 5,778
Schedule 9: Cost of software development
Salaries, wages, allowances and bonus 1,022,310 631,119
(includes remuneration to
director-DM 392,734 , previous year-DM 241,715)
Software development charges 3,529,478 3,650,869
4,551,788 4,281,988
Schedule 10: Administration and other expenses
Rent 68,647 71,653
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 7,887 5,970
- Buildings 100 3,065
- Others - 1,002
Communication 53,957 48,500
Insurance 5,344 -
Electricity 269 -
Travel and conveyance 141,523 103,786
Business promotion 13,055 8,925
Legal and professional charges 320,830 42,902
Audit fees 18,000 10,872
Printing and stationery 3,660 6,957
Bank charges 866 2,503
Advertising and publicity 7,940 -
Recruitment expenses 10,831 103,808
Bad debts 25,034 -
Provision for doubtful debts - 96,289
Miscellaneous expenses 46,326 60,945
724,269 567,177

Schedule 11: Notes to the accounts
1. Significant accounting policies
(i) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost conven-
tion, in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, as

—



adopted consistently by the company. All income and expenditure having
a material bearing on the financial statements are recognised on the
accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of compli-
ance with the provisions of section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(ii) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Examples of such estimates include estimates of
expected contract costs to be incurred to complete software development,
provision for doubtful debts and estimated useful life of fixed assets.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

(iii) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition including incidental costs
related to acquisition and installation.

(iv) Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straight-line method based
on estimated useful lives as estimated by the management. Depreciation
is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.
The management’s estimate of the useful life of the various fixed assets is
as follows:

Life
(in years)
Computers and software 3
Furniture and fixtures 4

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue from software developed on time and material basis is recog-
nised as the services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is
recognised on the basis of percentage completion method under which
the sales value of performance including earnings thereon are recognised
on the basis of effort incurred in respect of each contract as a proportion
of total effort expected to be incurred. Anticipated losses, if any, upon
completion of contract are recognised immediately.

(vi) Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made
for all known losses and liabilities. Provisions are made for future
unforeseeable factors, which may affect the ultimate profit on fixed price

- software development contracts. The cost of services for software
Jevelopment is charged to revenue in the same year.

(vii) Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities are translated at year end rates and resultant gains/losses on
foreign exchange transiations other than those relating to fixed assets are
recognised in the profit and loss account.

(viii) Retirements benefits
The company and employees contribute to the social security scheme in
accordance with the local statutory requirements.

2. The company has incurred significant losses in the post operation
pericd resulting in complete erosion of net worth. The company has
continuing financial support from the holding company hence, these
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

3. No provision for tax has been made as the company has not earned
any taxable income during the year.
4. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to conform

to current year’s classification.

For HCL Technologies GmbH, Germany
Director Director

Place: Frankfurt, Germany
Date: July 31, 2000
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business
Profile

I.  Registration details

Registration No.  Not applicable State Code Not applicable
Balance Sheet
Date 30 June 2000

Il. Capital raised during the year (Deutsche Mark in thousands)
Public issue Rights issue
Not applicable Not applicable
Bonus issue Private placement
Not applicable Not applicable

lll. Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds
{Deutsche Mark in thousands)
Total liabilities

1,126

Sources of funds
Paid-up capital

Total assets
1,126

Reserves and

surplus
50 Nil
Secured loans Unsecured loans
Nil 1,076
Application of funds
Net fixed assets Investments
20 Nil
Net current assets Misc. expenditure
(195) Nil
Accumulated losses
(1,301)

IV. Performance of company (Deutsche Mark in thousands)
Turnover Total expenditure
4,693 5,297
Loss before tax Loss after tax
(604) (604)

Earnings per share (Deutsche Mark) Dividend rate %
Nil Not applicable
V. Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as

per monetary terms) :
Product description:
Iltem code (ITC code):

Software
852490

For HCL Technologies GmbH, Germany
Director Director

Place: Frankfurt, Germany
Date: July 31, 2000



HCL Technologies Schweiz AG, Switzerland

DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Swiss Francs in thousands)

Years Ended June 30,

2000 1999

Profit /(Loss) after Tax (15) (115)

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the fiscal 2000.
There has been no transfer to reserves during the year 2000.

AUDITORS:

M/s BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants continue to remain in office as
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed their eligibility and willing-
ness to accept office, if reapp sinted.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

The Directors wish to thank the government authorities, customers,
vendors and employees for their cooperation and assistance extended to
the Company.

Place: Zurich, Switzerland
Date: July 31, 2000

For and on behalf of the Board
Director

Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
HCL Techonologies Schweiz AG, Switzerland

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Technologies
Schweiz AG, Switzerland as at 30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss
Account for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:
(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the company so far as appears from our examination of the
books;

the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C)
of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable;
and

(e) inour opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the accounts give the information required
by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view:

(i) inthe case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as
at 30 June 2000; and
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(i)

in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the loss of the company for
the year ended on that date.

For BSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi Rajesh Jain
Date: August 2, 2000 Partner

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000

( All amounts in Swiss franc )

Schedule No. As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 1 100,000 100,000
Loan funds
Unsecured loan 2 25,000 -
125,000 100,000
Application of funds
Current assets, loans and advances
Bank balances 3 8,183 15,955
Loans and advances 4 56 117
8,239 16,072
Current liabilities 5 (32,846) (51,095)
Net current liabilities (24,607) (35,023)
Profit and loss account 149,607 135,023
125,000 100,000
Notes to the accounts 8

As per our report attached

For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies Schweiz AG
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Place: Zurich, Switzerland
Date: July 31, 2000

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000

(All amounts in Swiss franc)

Schedule No. Year ended Year ended
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Income
Miscellaneous income 13 -
13 =
Expenditure
Personnel expenses 6 - 58,471
Administration and other
expenses 7 14,597 56,887
14,597 115,358
Loss for the year (14,584) (115,358)



Balance brought forward (135,023) (19,665)
Balance carried forward to
the balance sheet (149,607) (135,023)
Notes to the accounts 8
As per our report attached
For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies Schweiz AG
Chartered Accountants
Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner
Place: New Delhi Place: Zurich, Switzerland
Date: August 2, 2000 Date: July 31, 2000
Schedules forming part of the accounts
As at As at

30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 1: Share capital
Authorised
100,000 (Previous year 100,000)
equity shares of Swiss franc 1 each) 100,000 100,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up
100,000 (Previous year 100,000) equity
shares of Swiss franc 1 each fully paid up 100,000 100,000

(Held by HCL Technologies Europe Limited,

United Kingdom, the holding company. The ultimate holding
company is HCL Technologies Limited,

India).

Schedule 2: Unsecured loan

From HCL Technologies Europe Limited, ~ 25,000 -
United Kingdom - the holding company.

Schedule 3: Bank balances
Balances with non-scheduled banks

- In current accounts

Credit Suisse, Switzerland (maximum
balance outstanding 8,183 15,955
during the year Swiss franc 15,955,
previous year Swiss franc 79,881)

Schedule 4: Loans and advances (unsecured and considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 7 117
or for the value to be received

Advance tax 49 -
% Kivd
Schedule 5: Current liabilities
Sundry creditors 32,846 51,095
32,846 51,095
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 6: Personnel expenses
Salaries, wages, allowances and bonus - 58,471

Schedule 7: Administration and other expenses

Rent 2,000 19,456
Communication 837 7,720
Travel and conveyance - 5,834
Entertainment and business promotion - 9,613
Legal and professional charges 1,195 11,106
Audit fees 1,637 1,782
Printing and stationery = 420
Bank charges 37 263
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Rates and taxes 691 -

Miscellaneous expenses 8,200 693

Schedule 8: Notes to the accounts

1.
®

(in)

(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the Compa-
nies Act, 1956 as adopted consistently by the company. All income
and expenditure having a material bearing on the financial state-
ments are recognised on the accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of
compliance with the provisions of section 212 of the Companies Act,
1956.

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are
made for all known losses and liabilities.

Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities are translated at year end rates and resultant gains/losses
on foreign exchange translations other than those relating to fixed
assets are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Retirements benefits

The company and employees contribute to the social security
scheme in accordance with the iocal statutory requirements.

The company has incurred significant losses in the post incorpora-
tion period resulting in complete erosion of net worth. The company
has continuing financial support from the holding company hence,
these financial statements have been prepared on the going concern
basis.

No provision for tax has been made as the company has not earned
any taxable income during the year.

Previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified to
conform to current year’s classification.

For HCL Technologies Schweiz AG

Director Director

Place: Zurich, Switzerland
Date: July 31, 2000

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

Registration details
Registration No.  Not applicable State Code Not applicable

Balance Sheet

Date 30 June 2000

Capital raised during the year (Swiss Franc in thousands)
Public issue Rights issue

Not applicable Not applicable

Bonus issue Private placement

Not applicable Not applicable

Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Swiss Franc
in thousands)

Total liabilities Total assets

125 125

Sources of funds

Paid-up capital Reserves and surplus
100 Nil

Secured loans Unsecured loans

Nil 25




Application of funds

Net fixed assets Investments

Nil Nil

Net current assets Misc. expenditure
(25) Nil

Accumulated losses

150

Performance of company (Swiss Franc in thousands)

Turnover Total expenditure
1 15

Loss before tax Loss after tax

14 14

Earnings per share (Swiss Franc)  Dividend rate %
Nil Not applicable

Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as
per monetary terms)

Product description: Software
ltem code (ITC code): 852490

For HCL Technologies Schweiz AG, Switzerland

Director Director
Place: Zurich, Switzerland
Date: July 31, 2000
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DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(ltalian Lira in thousands)
Years Ended June 30
2000 1999
Other Income 170 210
Profit /(Loss) Before Depreciation & Taxes (13,476) (18,668)
Profit /(Loss) after Tax (13,476) (18,668)

PERFORMANCE:

Other income reduced from ITL 0.21 millions in fiscal 1999 to ITL 0.17
millions in fiscal 2000. Loss after Depreciation and Tax reduced from ITL
18.67 millions in fiscal 1999 and to ITL 13.48 millions in fiscal 2000.

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the fiscal 2000.
There has been no transfer to reserves during the year 2000.
AUDITORS:

M/s BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants continue to remain in office as
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed their eligibility and willing-
ness to accept office, if reappointed.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

The Directors wish to thank the government authorities, customers,
vendors and employees for their cooperation and assistance extended to
the Company.

Place: Milan, ltaly
Date: July 31, 2000

AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of
HCL Technologies Italy SLR, Italy

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Technologies Italy
SLR, ltaly as at 30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss Account for the
year ended on that date, annexed thereto.

For and on behalf of the Board
Director

We report as follows:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

{b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the company so far as appears from our examination
of the books;

(c) the Baiance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C)
of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable;
and

(e) in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the accounts give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view:

(i) inthe case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company
as at 30 June 2000; and

(i) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss of the company
for the year ended on that date.

For BSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi Rajesh Jain
Date: August 2, 2000 Partner

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000
( All amounts in ltalian lira )

Schedule As at As at
No. 30June 2000 30 June 1999
Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital 1 20,000,000 20,000,000
Loan funds
Unsecured loans 2 28,458 -
20,028,458 20,000,000
Application of funds
Current assets, loans and advances
Cash and bank balances 3 13,141,291 14,050,736
Loans and advances 4 3,699,174 645,534
16,840,465 14,696,270
Current liabilities 5 (28,956,984) (13,364,935)
Net current (liabilities)/assets (12,116,519) 1,331,335
Profit and loss account 32,144,977 18,668,665
20,028,458 20,000,000

Notes to the accounts 7
As per our report attached

For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies italy SLR
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Place: Milan, ltaly
Date: July 31, 2000

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000
( All amounts in ltalian fira )

Schedule Year ended For the period
No. 30 June 2000 2 July 1998 to
30 June 1999
Income
Interest income 169,994 210,492
169,994 210,492
Expenditure
Administration and
other expenses 6 13,646,306 18,879,157
13,646,306 18,879,157
Loss for the year / period (13,476,312) (18,668,665)
Balance brought forward (18,668,665) .
Loss for the period carried forward =Sy >
to the balance sheet (32,144,977) (18,668,665)

Notes to the accounts 7
As per our report attached

For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies Italy SLR
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Piace: Milan, ltaly
Date: July 31, 2000

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000




Schedules forming part of the accounts

(All amounts in ltalian lira )

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 1: Share capital
Authorised
20,000,000 (Previous period 20,000,000)
equity shares of ltalian lira 1 each 20,000,000 20,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
20,000,000 (Previous period 20,000,000)
equity shares of Italian Lira 1 each,
fully paid up. 20,000,000 20,000,000
(Of the above, 19,800,000 shares of
Iltalian lira 1 each, fully paid up, are
held by HCL Technologies Europe
Limited, United Kingdom, the holding
company. The ultimate holding company
is HCL Technologies Limited, India) 20,000,000 20,000,000
Schedule 2: Unsecured loans
From bank
- overdraft 28,458 -
28,458 -
Schedule 3: Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand 51,140 1,011,391
Balances with non-scheduled banks
- In current account
Banca Popolare di Sondrio, Italy
(maximum balance outstanding
during the year ltalian
lira 13,090,151, 13,090,151 13,039,345
previous period ltalian
tira 20,000,000) 13,141,291 14,050,736

Schedule 4: Loans and advances (unsecured and considered good)

Advances receivable in cash or in

kind or for vaiue to be received - 645,534
VAT recoverable 3,699,174 -
3,699,174 645,534

Schedule 5: Current liabilities

Sundry creditors 28,956,984 13,364,935
28,956,984 13,364,935

Schedule 6: Administration and other expenses

Legal and professional charges 11,443,410 13,990,477

Audit fees 2,035,000 2,152,479

Miscellaneous expenses 167,896 2,736,201
13,646,306 18,879,157

Scheduie 7: Notes to the accounts

1. Significant accounting policies
(i) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the Compa-
nies Act, 1956 as adopted consistently by the company. All income
and expenditure having a material bearing on the financial state-

ments are recognised on the accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of
compliance with the provisions of section 212 of the Companies Act,

1956.
(i} Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are

made for all known losses and liabilities.
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The company has incurred significant losses in the post incorporat-
ing period resulting i complete erosion of net worth. The company
has continuing financial support from the holding company hence,
these financial statements have been prepared on the going concern
basis.

No provision for tax has been made as the company has not earned
any taxable income during the year.

Previous period figures have been regrouped/reclassified in order to
conform to current year’s classification.

For HCL Technologies ltaly SLR
Director Director
Place: Milan, Italy

Date: July 31, 2000

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

Registrations details

Registration No.  Not applicable  State Code Not applicable
Balance Sheet

Date 30 June 2000

Capital raised during the year (ltalian Lira in thousands)

Public issue Rights issue

Not applicable Not applicable
Bonus issue Private placement
Not applicable Not applicable

Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds
(ltalian Lira in thousands)

Total liabilities
20,028
Sources of funds

Total assets
20,028

Paid-up capital Reserves and
surplus
20,000 Nil

Secured loans Unsecured loans

Nil 28
Application of funds

Net fixed assets Investments

Nil Nil

Net current assets Misc. expenditure
(12,117) Nil

Accumulated losses

32,145

Performance of company (ltalian Lira in thousands)

Turnover Total expenditure

170 13,646

Loss before tax Loss after tax
13,476 13,476
Earnings per share (ltalian Lira) Dividend rate %
Nil Not applicable

Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as
per monetary terms)

Product description:
Item code (ITC code) :

Software
852490

For HCL Technologies Italy SLR, ltaly
Director Director
Place: Milan, italy

Date: July 31, 2000



HCL Technologies Belgium NV, Belgium

DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Belgium Francs in thousands)
Years Ended June 30

2000 1999
Software Services 46,211 45,800
Profit /(Loss) before Depreciation & Taxes 375 (641)
Depreciation 78 91
Provision for Tax 23 -
Profit /(Loss) after Tax 273 (732)

PERFORMANCE:

The revenue from software and related technical services increased by
8% from BEF 45.8 million in fiscal 1999 to BEF 46.2 million in fiscal 2000.
Profit before Depreciation and Tax increased by BEF 1.02 million, from a
loss of BEF 0.64 million in fiscal 1999 to a profit of BEF 0.38 million in
fiscal 2000. Profit after tax provision increased by BEF 1.01 million, from
a loss of BEF 0.73 million in fiscal 1999 to BEF 0.27 million in fiscal 2000.

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the fiscal 2000.
There has been no transfer to reserves during the year 2000.
AUDITORS:

M/s BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants continue to remain in office as
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed their eligibility and willing-
ness to accept office, if reappointed. .
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:
The Directors wish to thank the government authorities, customers,
employees and vendors for their cooperation and assistance extended to
the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Zaventem, Belgium Director

Date: July 31, 2000

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of

HCL Technologies Belgium NV, Belgium

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Technologies
Belgium NV, Belgium as at 30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:

(a)we have obiained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

(b)in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the company so far as appears from our examination of the
books;

(c)the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C) of
section 211 of the Companies Act, 19586, to the extent applicable; and

(e) in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the accounts give the information required by
the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view:
(i} in the case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company
as at 30 June 2000; and

(iiy in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the
company for the year ended on that date.

For BSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi Rajesh Jain
Date: August 2, 2000 Partner

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000
(All amounts in Belgium francs)

Schedule As at As at
No. 30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 1 2,750,000 2,750,000
Loan funds
Unsecured loans 2 - 1,091,065
2,750,000 3,841,065
Application of funds
Fixed assets 3
Gross block 234,667 219,378
Less: Accumulated depreciation (169,634) (91,410)
Net block 65,033 127,968
Current assets, loans and advances
Sundry debtors 4 8,426,731 17,784,206
Bank balances 5 7,711,070 7,578,215
Loans and advances 6 8,826.070 3,149,930
24,963,871 28,512,351
Current liabilities and provisions 7 (23,038,908) (25,832,283)
Net current assets 1,924,963 2,680,068
Profit and loss account 760,004 1,033,029
2,750,000 3,841,065
Notes to the accounts 10

As per our report attached

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For HCL Technologies Belgium NV

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner
Place: Zaventem, Belgium

Date: July 31, 2000

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000



Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000
( Al amounts in Belgium francs )

Schedule Year ended Year ended
No. 30June2000 30 June 1999
Income
Software services 46,211,154 45,800,242
46,211,154 45,800,242
Expenditure
Cost of software development 8 28,847,023 38,790,229
Administration and other expenses 9 16,878,420 7,651,132
Finance cost 111,101 -
Depreciation 78,224 91,410
45,914,768 46,532,771
Profit/(loss) before tax 296,386 (732,529)
Less: Provision for income tax 23,361 -
Profit/(loss) after tax 273,05 {732,529)
Balance brought forward (1,033,029) (300,500)
Balance carried forward to the balance sheet (760,004) (1,033,029)
Notes to the accounts 10
As per our report attached
For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies Belgium NV
Chartered Accountants
Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Place: Zaventem, Beigium
Date: July 31, 2000

Schedules forming part of the accounts
(All amounts in Belgium francs )

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 1: Share capital

Authorised
2,750 (Previous period 2,750)

equity shares of Belgium franc 1,000 each 2,750,000 2,750,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
2,750 (Previous period 2,750) equity shares 2,750,000 2,750,000
of Belgium franc 1,000 each fully paid up,
held by HCL Technologies Europe Limited,
United Kingdom, the holding company.
The ultimate holding company is
HCL Technologies Limited, India. 2,750,000 2,750,000
Schedule 2: Unsecured loans
From bank
- Overdraft - 1,091,065
- 1,091,065
Schedule 3: Fixed assets
As at Additions As at
1 July 1999 during the year 30 June 2000
Gross block
Computers 170,709 15,289 185,998
Furniture, fixtures and
other equipment 48,669 - 48,669
219,378 15,289 234,667
Previous year - 219,378 219,378
Accumulated depreciation
Computers 71,130 62,000 133,130
Furniture, fixtures and
other equipment 20,280 16,224 36,504
91,410 78,224 169,634
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Previous year - 91,410 91,410
Net Block 127,968 65,033
Previous year - 127,968

Schedules forming part of the accounts
( All amounts in Belgium francs )

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999

Schedule 4: Sundry debtors (unsecured)
Outstanding for less than six months

-Considered good 8,426,731 17,784,206
-Considered doubtful - 455,017
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - (455,017)
8,426,731 17,784,206
Schedule 5: Bank balances
Balances with non-scheduled
banks in current accounts
Bank Brussels Lambent, Belgium 7,711,070 7,578,215
{maximum balance outstanding during
the year Belgium franc 16,055,073, previous
year Belgium franc 10,053,776)
7,711,070 7,578,215

Schedule 6: Loans and advances (Unsecured and considered good)

Advances receivable in cash or in kind

or for value to be received 8,826,070

8,826,070

3,149,930
3,149,930

Loans and advances include:

1. Belgium franc 2,444,161 (previous year - nil} recoverable from HCL
Technologies GmbH, Germany [maximum balance outstanding during
the year Belgium franc 2,444,161 (previous year-nil)], Belgium franc
1,094,400 (previous year-nil) from HCL Technologies Europe [maxi-
mum balance outstanding during the year Belgium franc 2,444,161
(previous year-nil)], and Belgium franc 5,014,196 (previous year-nil)
recoverable from HCL Technologies America Inc., [maximum balance
outstanding during the year Belgium franc 2,444,161 (previous year-
nil)], corporates under the same management within the meaning of
Sec. 370(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

. Due from Managing director - nil (previous year - nil). Maximum
balance outstanding during the year from Managing director Belgium
franc 700,000 (previous year-nil).

Schedule 7: Current liabilities and provisions
Current Liabilities

Sundry creditors 22,069,644 24,025,639
Other liabilities 945,903 1,806,644
23,015,547 25,832,283
Provisions
Provision for income tax 23,361 -
23,361 -
23,038,908 25,832,283
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 8: Cost of software development
Salaries, wages, allowances and bonus 22,456,121 22,163,090
(includes remuneration to directors
Belgium franc 6,495,004,
previous year Belgium franc 545,310 )
Software development charges 6,390,902 16,627,139
28,847,023 38,790,229




Year ended Year ended
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 9: Administration and other expenses
Rent 448,000 267,180
Repairs and maintenance
-others 1,634 8,105
Communication 628,557 724,195
Travel and conveyance 2,023,397 1,085,025
Entertainment and business promotion - 5,520
Legal and professional charges 3,220,314 609,389
Audit fees 364,800 224,231
Printing and stationery 170,260 26,437
Bank charges - 58,928
Management fees 10,000,000 4,103,301
Provision for doubtful debts - 455,017
Miscellaneous expenses 21,458 83,804
16,878,420 7,651,132

Schedules forming part of the accounts
Schedule 10: Notes to the accounts

1.

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost con-
vention, in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as
adopted consistently by the company. Allincome and expenditure hav-
ing a material bearing on the financial statements are recognised on
the accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of com-
pliance with the provisions of section 21 2 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the gener-
ally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect ihe reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Examples of such estimates
include estimates of expected contract costs to be incurred to com-
plete software development, provision for doubtful debts and estimated
useful life of fixed assets. Actual results could differ from these esti-
mates.

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition including incidental
costs related to acquisition and installation.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straight-line method
based on estimated useful lives as estimated by the management. De-
preciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased/sold
during the year. The management’s estimate of the useful life of the
various fixed assets is as follows:

Life

(in years)
Computers and software 3
Furniture and fixtures 4

Revenue recognition

Revenue from software developed on time and material basis is recog-
nised as the services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price con-
tracts is recognised on the basis of percentage completion method
under which the sales value of performance including earnings thereon
are recognised on the basis of effort incurred in respect of each con-
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tract as a proportion of total effort expected to be incurred. Anticipated
losses, if any, upon completion of contract are recognised immediately.

(vi) Expenditure
Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are
made for all known losses and liabilities. Provisions are made for fu-
ture unforeseeable factors, which may affect the ultimate profit on fixed
price software development contracts. The cost of services for soft-
ware development is charged to revenue in the same year.

(vii) Foreign exchange transactions
Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets and li-
abilities are translated at year end rates and resultant gains/losses on
foreign exchange translations other than those relating to fixed assets
are recognised in the profit and loss account.

(viii) Retirements benefits
The company and employees contribute to the social security scheme
in accordance with the local statutory requirements.

2. The company has incurred significant losses in the post operation pe-
riod. The company has continuing financial support from the holding
company hence, these financial statements have been prepared on
the going concern basis.

3. No provision for tax has been made, as the company has not earned
any taxable income during the year.

4. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to conform to
current year’s classification.

For HCL Technologies Belgium NV,

Director Director

Piace: Zaventem, Belgium
Date: July 31, 2000

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s Generat Business Profile

I Registration details

Registration No. Not applicable  State Code Not applicable
Balance Sheet
Date 30 June 2000

Il. Capital raised during the year (Belgium Francs in thousands)

Public issue Rights issue

Not applicable Not applicable
Bonus issue Private placement
Not applicable Not applicable

Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds

(Belgium Francs in thousands)

Total liabilities
2,750

Sources of funds

Paid-up capital
2,750

Secured loans
Nil

Application of funds

Net fixed assets
65

Net current assets
1,925

Accumulated losses

760

Total assets
2,750

Reserves and
surplus

Nil
Unsecured loans
Nil

Investments

Nil

Misc. expenditure
Nil



Performance of company (Belgium Francs in thousands)

Turnover Total expenditure
46,211 45,915

Profit before tax Profit after tax
296 273

Earnings per share (Belgium Franc) Dividend rate %
99.28 Not applicable

Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company
(as per monetary terms)

Product description: Software
Item code (ITC code): 852490

For HCL Technologies Belgium NV

Director Director

Place: Zaventem, Belgium
Date: July 31, 2000
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HCL Technologies Australia Pty Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present their report together with the financial report of HCL
Technologies Australia Pty Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 30
June 2000 and the auditor’s report thereon.

Directors
The directors of the Company at any time during or since the financial
year, are:

Anil Kumar Chanana
Glenn Thomas Merchant

Director since 4 November 1998
Director since 22 April 1999

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company during the course of the year was to
provide value added software services to clients. There were no signifi-
cant changes in the nature of the activities of the Company during the
year.

Review and result of operations

The operating profit after income tax amounted to $305,292 (1999: loss,
$8,691). The Company generated operating revenue of $17,602,072 in
the current year. This was largely the result of an increase in offshore
software development work. In addition, a new office was established in
Canberra during the year.

Dividends

No dividend has been paid or declared since the commencement of the
year and the directors do not recommend the declaration of a dividend.

Environmental regulation

The Company’s operations are not subject to significant environmental
regulations under either Commonwealth or State legislation. However,
the Board believes that the Company has adequate systems in place for
the management of its environmental requirements and is not aware of
any breach of these environmental requirements as they apply to the
Company.

Events subsequent to balance date

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year
and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and
unusual nature likely in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to
affect significantly the operations of the Company, the results of those
operations, or the state of affairs of the Company, in future financial years.

Likely developments

The Company will continue to pursue its policy of increasing profitability
and market share during the next financial year. The Company will
continue to focus on emerging technology areas such as e-commerce,
Internet services and enterprise wide software development.

Further information about likely developments in the operations of the
Company and the expected results of those operations in future financial
years has not been included i_p'this report because disclosure of the
information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
Company.

State of affairs

In the opinion of the directors there were no significant changes in the
state of affairs of the Company during the financial year under review.

Risk management
Millennium issue

The Company is not reliant on complex computer systems and has not
been affected by the impact of the Year 2000 on its business processes.
All software is purchased off-the-shelf and is not modified by the Com-
pany in its use. All software has been checked with the respective
supplier to be Year 2000 compliant and no matters have arisen to date
that would appear to contradict these assurances. The Company’s
hardware has also not manifested any adverse conditions with regards to

the Year 2000 issue.
Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

The Company has not, since the end of the previous financial year, in

respect of any person who is or has been an officer or auditor of the

Company:

« indemnified or made a relevant agreement for indemnifying against a
liability incurred as an officer, including costs and expenses in
successfully defending legal proceedings; or

* paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuring
against a liability incurred as an officer for the costs or expenses to
defend legal proceedings.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

Anil Kumar Chanana
Director

Dated at New Delhi this 19th day of July 2000.

Profit and loss statement
For the year ended 30 June 2000

Note 2000 1999

$ $

Revenue 2 17,660,143 8.969.471
Operating profit/(loss) before

income tax 498,108 (12,594)

Income tax (expense)/benefit

attributable to operating profit £3) (192.816) 3.903
Operating profit/(loss) after income tax 305,292 (8,691)
Retained profits/(losses) at the

beginning of the financial year (149,479) (140,788)
Total available for appropriation 155,813 (149,479)
Dividends provided for or paid = =
Retained profits/(losses) at the

end of the financial year 155.813 (149.479)

The profit and loss account is to be read in conjunction with the notes to
and forming part of the financial statements set out below.

Balance sheet

As at 30 June 2000

Note 2000 1999

$ $

Current assets
Cash 6 1,258,175 524,840
Receivables 3,124,643 1,850,770
Other 8 45,755 29,765
Total current assets 4,428,573 2,405,375
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 142,013 205,503
Other 225,012 130,006
Total non-current assets 367.025 335.509
Total assets 4,795,598 2,740,884
Current liabilities
Accounts payabie 10 3,965,408 2,531,327
Borrowings 13 32,031 52,448
Provisions 12 523,375 156.412
Total current liabilities 4,520.814 2,740.187




Note 2000 1999
$ $
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 13 63,885 110,647
Provisions 12 15,557 -
Total non-current liabilities 79,442 110,647
Total liabilities 4,600,256 2,850.834
Net assets (liabilities) 195,342 (109,950)
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 14 39,529 39,529
Accumulated profits (losses) 155.813 (149.479)
Total shareholders’ equity (deficiency) 195,342 (109.950)

The balance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and
forming part of the financial statements set out below.

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2000

Note 2000 1999
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations 16,239,516 7,950,364
Cash payments in the course of operations (15,444,229) (7,412,365)
Interest received 33,171 8,093
Interest paid (10.729) (17.235)
Net cash provided by
operating activities 17(ii) 817,272 528,857
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 58,071 14,985
Payments to term deposit (1,259) (81,983)
Payments for plant and equipment (73.571) (8,054)

Net cash (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

(16.759) 25,052

Lease payments (67.178) (64,316)
Net cash used in financing activities (67.178) (64.316)
Net increase in cash held 733,335 439,489
Cash at beginning of the

financial year 17(i) 524,840 85,351
Cash at end of financial period 17(i) 1.258,175 524,840

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to
and forming part of the financial statements set out below.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2000

1 Statement of significant accounting policies

The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this
financial report are:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been
prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group
Consensus Views, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Law.

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and except where
stated, does not take into account changing money values or current
valuations of non-current assets.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied and, except where
there is a change in accounting policy, are consistent with those of the
previous year.

(b) Revenue recognition
Sales revenue

Sales revenue represents revenue earned from the provision of software
services to clients.

Income from software contracts, where revenue is linked to time and/or
material is recognised on a periodic basis as the services are provided
according to the terms of the contract. income from fixed price contracts
is recognised on the basis of the percentage of labour units incurred and
their relationship to the total estimated units of labour for the contract.
Adjustments to estimates of labour units required are made in the period
in which such revisions become known. When the cost estimates for the
total labour units indicate a loss, such loss is recognised in its entirety.

Interest
Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues.
Asset sales

The gross proceeds of asset sales are included as revenue, and profit or
loss on sale recognised, when an unconditional contract of sale is signed.

(c) Foreign currency
Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated to Australian currency at the
rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions. Amounts
receivable and payable in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling on that date.

Exchange differences relating to amounts payable and receivable in
foreign currencies are brought to account in the profit and loss account in
the financial year in which the exchange rates change.

(d) Income tax
The Company adopts the liability method of tax effect accounting.

Income tax expense is calculated on operating profit adjusted for perma-
nent differences between taxable and accounting income. The tax effect
of timing differences which arise from items being brought to account in
different periods for income tax and accounting purposes, is carried
forward in the balance sheet as a future income tax benefit or a provision
for deferred income tax.

Future income tax benefits are not brought to account unless realisation of
the asset is assured beyond reasonable doubt. Future income tax
benefits relating to tax losses are only brought to account when their
realisation is virtually certain.

(e) Non current assets

The carrying amounts of all non-current assets are reviewed to determine
whether they are in excess of their recoverable amount at balance date. If
the carrying amount of a non-current asset exceeds the recoverable
amount, the asset is written down to the lower amount. In assessing
recoverable amounts the relevant cash flows have not been discounted to
their present value.

(f) Cash and short term deposits

Cash and short term deposits are carried at face value of the amounts
deposited or drawn. The carrying amounts of cash and short term
deposits approximate net fair value. Interest revenue is accrued at the
market or contracted rates and is receivable quarterly.

(g) Receivables
Trade debtors

Trade debtors are generally settled within 60 days and are carried at
amounts due. The collectability of debts is assessed at year end and
specific provision is made for any doubtful accounts. In addition, a
general provision of trade debtors outstanding is maintained. The
carrying amount of trade debtors approximates net fair value.

(h) Plant and equipment

Acquisition

ltems of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost and depreciated
as outlined below.

Subsequent additional costs

Costs incurred on property, plant and equipment subsequent to initial
acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will
flow to the Company in future years. Where these costs represent
separate components of a complex asset, they are accounted for as
separate assets and are separately depreciated over their useful lives.

Costs incurred on property, plant and equipment which do not meet the
criteria for capitalisation are expensed as incurred.



Depreciation

ltems of plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. The depreciation rates and methods used for fixed assets, for the
current and previous years, are as foliows:

Depreciation rate
Property, plant and equipment 25-33%
Assets are depreciated from the daie of acquisition.

Depreciation method
Straight line

Leased plant and equipment

Leases of plant and equipment under which the Company assumes
substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are classified as
finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and a lease liability equal to
the present value of the minimum lease payments are recorded at the
inception of the lease. Contingent rentals are written off as an expense of
the accounting period in which they are incurred. Capitalised lease assets
are amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease,
or where it is likely that the Company will obtain ownership of the asset,
over the life of the asset. Lease liabilities are reduced by repayments of
principal. The interest components of the lease payments are charged to
the profit and loss statement.

Payments made under operating leases are charged against profits in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term.

(i) Accounts payable
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods
and services received, whether or not billed to the Company. Trade

accounts payable are normally settled within 60 days. The carrying
amount of accounts payable approximates net fair value.

(j) Employee entitlements
Wages, salaries and annual leave

The provision of employee entitlements to wages, salaries and annual
leave represents the amount that the Company has a present obligation to
pay resulting from employees’ services provided up to balance date. The
provision has been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current
wage and salary rates and includes related oncosts. The carrying amount
of the provisions approximate net fair value.

Superannuation fund

Contributions to employee superannuation funds are charged against
income as they are made.

2000 1999
$ $
~2 Revenue
Revenue from operating activities
Sales revenue 17,568,901 8,946,393
Interest income 33,171 8,093
Revenue from outside operating activities
Gross proceeds from the sale of plant
and equipment 58,071 14.985
7.660,143 8.969.471

3 Operating profit / (loss)

Operating profit / (loss) before income tax has been arrived at after
charging (crediting) the following items:

Interest paid or due and payable to:

- Other persons 10,729 17,235
Depreciation of plant and equipment 81,806 87,490
Amounts set aside to provision for:

Doubtful debts 206,993 95,057
Employee entitiements 95,954 85,042
Operating lease payments 112,209 111,581
Foreign exchange gain / (loss) 123,010 (18,372)
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2000 1999
$ $
4 Auditors’ remuneration
Auditing services 22,000 18.000
22,000 18.000
5 Income tax
Income tax benefit
Prima facie income tax expense (benefit) calculated at
36% on the operating loss 179,319 (4,534)
Increase in income tax expense due to non deductible items:
Entertainment 3,132 2,299
Add: income tax under (over) provided in prior year = (1,668)
Restatement of deferred tax balances due to
change in company tax rate 10.365 LA
Income tax expense (benefit) on operating loss 192,816 (3.903)
Total income tax expense is made up of:
Current income tax provision 271,009 18,068
Future income tax benefit (93,750) (20,303)
Deferred income tax liability 15,657 =
Under (over) provision from previous year - (1.668)
192,816 (3.903)

Future income tax benefit comprises the estimated future benefit, at 34%
(1999: 36%), on the following items:

Provision for doubtful trade debtors 108,739 34,221

Other 6,973 14,332

Difference in depreciation for accounting

and income tax purposes 2,992 (334)

Provisions for employee entitlements 84,347 49,804

Effect of change in tax rate (11.281) =
191.770 98,023

Provision for deferred income tax comprises the estimated expense at
34% (1999: 36%), on the following items:

Prepayments 16,472 =
Effect of change in tax rate (916) £
15,5657 e
6 Cash
Cash at bank 1,257,175 524,840
Petty cash 1.000 -
1,258,175 524,840
7 Receivables
Current
Trade debtors 2,868,067 1,538,682
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 302.050 95,057
2,566,017 1,443,625
Employee advances 59,548 104,590
Amounts owing by related entities 499.078 302,555
3,124,643 1,850,770
8 Other assets
Current
Prepayments 45,755 29.765
Non current
Term deposit 33,242 31,983
Future income tax benefit 191.770 98.023
225,012 130.006
9 Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment, at cost 295,632 312,014



2000 1999

$ $

Accumulated depreciation 153,619 106.511

Total plant and equipment 142,013 205,503
10 Accounts payable

Current

Accruals 419,288 297,191

Amounts owing to related entities 3,546,124 2,234,136

3.965.408 2,531,327

11 Foreign currencies

The Australian dollar equivalents of unhedged amounts payable and
receivable in foreign currencies, calculated at year end exchange rates,
are as follows:

United States Dollars
Amounts payable

Current 1,789,953 463,427

Amounts receivable

Current 1,199,437 561,552

12 Provisions

Current

Income tax 289,077 18,068

Employee entitlements 234,298 138.344
523,375 156,412

Non-current

Deferred income tax 15,557 -

13 Borrowings

Current

Lease liabilities 32.031 52.448

Non-current

Lease liabilities 63,885 110,647

14 Share capital

Issued and paid up capital

39.529 ordinary shares, fully paid 39,529 39.529

Movements during the year

Balance at beginning of year 39,529 39,529

Shares issued during the year - ~ -

Balance at end of year 39.529 39.529

15 Segment information
Industry segments

The Company operates predominantly in one industry which is the
software industry.

Geographical segment

The Company operates predominantly in Australia.
16 Commitments

Finance lease commitments

Finance lease rentals are payable as follows:

Not later than one year 40,457 64,811
Later than one year but not later than five years
74,275 117,355
Less: Future lease finance charges 18.816 19.071
95,916 163,095
Lease liabilities provided for in the financial statements:
Current 32,031 52,448
Non-current 63.885 110.647
95916 163.095
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2000 1999

Operating lease commitments

Future operating lease rentals not provided for in the financial statements
and payable:

Not later than one year 76,413 94,092
Later that one year but not later than five years 23,000 92.005
99.413 186.097

17 Commitments
(i) Reconciliation of cash

For the purposes of the Statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on
hand and at bank and short term deposits at call, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in the
statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the balance
sheet as follows:

Cash 1,258,175 524.840
(ii) Reconciliation of operating profit after income tax to

net cash provided by operating activities

Operating profit (loss) after income tax 305,292 (8,691)
Add (less) items classified as investing/financing activities:

(Profit) on sale of non-current assets (2,821) (3,305)
Add (less) non-cash items:

Depreciation 81,806 87,490
Amounts set aside to provisions 302,947 180,099
Transfer of assets from related entity - -
Increase in income tax payable 271,009 18,068
(Increase) in deferred tax (78.190) (21.970)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating

activities before change in assets and liabilities 880,043 251,691
Change in assets and liabilities during

the financial year:

(Increase) in trade debtors (1,329,385) (996,029)
(Increase) in employee advances 45,042 (104,590)
Increase in accruals 122,097 273,462
Increase in loans from related entities 1,311,988 1,389,630
(Increase) in loans to related entities (196,523) (302.555)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (15,990) 17.248
Net cash provided by operating activities 817,272 528.857

18 Directors remuneration
Directors’ income

The number of directors whose income from the Company or related
bodies corporate falls within the following bands:

2000 1999
$0 - $9,999 2 1
$40,000 - $49.999 - -
$130,000 - $139,999 - 1
$ $
Total income paid or payable, or otherwise
made available, to all directors from
the Company or any related party
Nil 133.264

19 Related parties
Directors

The names of each person holding the position of Director of the Com-
pany during the financial year are Messrs Anil Kumar Chanana and Glen
Thomas Merchant.

Details of Directors’ remuneration is set out in note 18.



Transactions with related entities

During the year the Company purchased consulting services at a cost of
$8,830,994 (1999: $3,161,600) from various related entities within the
HCL Technologies group of companies. Additionally the Company paid
aggregate recruitment fees to the amount of $439,740 (1999: $1,058,121)
to related entities. These purchases were on normal commercial terms
and conditions.

Ultimate parent entity

The ultimate parent entity is HCL Technologies Limited, a Company
incorporated in India.

Directors’ declaration
In the opinion of the directors of HCL Technologies Australia Pty Limited:

(a) the financial statements and notes, set out above, are in accordance
with the Corporations Law, including:

(i} giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 30 June 2000 and of its performance, as represented by the
results of its operations and its cash flows, for the year ended on
that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Regulations; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able
to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

Anil Kumar Chanana
Director

Dated at New Delhi this 19th day of July 2000.

Independent auditors’ report to the members of

HCL Technologies Australia Pty Limited

Scope

We have audited the financial report of HCL Technologies Australia Pty
Limited for the year ended 30 June 2000 consisting of the profit and loss
account, balance sheet, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes,
and the directors’ declaration set out above. The Company’s directors are
responsible for the financial report. We have conducted an independent
audit of this financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the
members of the Company.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
_Standards to provide reasonable assurance whether the financial report is

oy

free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examination, on a
test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in
the financial report, and the evaluation of accounting policies and
significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been under-
taken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the financial
report is presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards and
other mandatory professional reporting requirements and statutory
requirements in Australia so as to present a view which is consistent with
our understanding of the Company’s financial position and performance
as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above
basis.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of HCL Technologies Australia Pty
Limited is in accordance with:

(a) the Corporations Law, including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as
at 30 June 2000 and of its performance for the year ended on that
date; and

(ify complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Regulations; and

(b) other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

KPMG
Chartered Accountants

R Amos
Partner

Dated at Sydney this 19th day of July 2000.



HCL Technologies (New Zealand) Limited

Financial Statements
As at June 30, 2000

Statutory Information

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report for the year
ended 30th June 2000.

Due to an agreement by the shareholders, the Company has elected to
apply all disclosure exemptions available to it per section 211(3) of the Com-
panies Act 1993.

R Mahajan
Director

A K Chanana
Director

Audit Report

To the Shareholders of HCL Technologies
(New Zealand) Limited

We have audited the financial statements, set out below. The financial state-
ments provide information about the past financial performance of the com-
pany and its financial position as at 30 June 2000. This information is stated
in accordance with the accounting policies.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at
30 June 2000 and the results of its operations for the year ended on that
date.

Auditors’ responsibilities

It is our responsibility to express an independent opinion on the financial
statements presented by the Directors and report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes assessing:

* the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the
preparation of the financial statements;

¢ whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s cir-
cumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We conducted our audit in accordance with New Zealand Auditing Stand-

ards. We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information

and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us

with sufficient evidence to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial

statements are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud

or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of

the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Other than in our capacity as auditors we have no relationship with or inter-
ests in the company.

Unqualified opinion

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion:

¢ proper accounting records have been kept by the company as far as ap-
pears from our examination of those records;

» the financial statements
- comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice;
- give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at 30
June 2000 and the resulis of its operations for the year ended on that
date.

Our audit was completed on 2 August 2000 and our ungualified opinion is
expressed as at that date.

KPMG

Wellington
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Statement of financial performance
for the year ended 30th June 2000

Last year

2,532,745 SALES 1,611,989
881,963 Direct Wages 743,558
1,650,782 GROSS PROFIT 868,431
9,676 Interest Received 4,564
1,584 Exchange Gain %
1,661,942 872,995

Less EXPENSES

4,835 Accident Compensation 3,505
26,035 Accountancy Fees 30,291
2,736 Advertising 589
7,000 Audit Fees 10,902
10,722 Bad Debts -
652 Bank Fees & Charges 798
1,762 Cleaning 820
681,624 Consultancy Fee (Offshore) 255,810
90 Computer Support Services 315
4,900 Depreciation 7,336
3,872 Entertaining Expenses 5,784
- Exchange Loss 36,450
3,496 Equipment Rental 3,717
5,594 Fringe Benefit Tax 4,717
1,184 General Expenses 3.298
1,245 GST on Fringe Benefit & Entertaining 3
5,377 Insurance 1,681
5,394 Interest 3.914
1,745 Internet Costs 5,417
7,632 Legal Fees - Deductible -
12,275 Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -
273 Motor Vehicle Expenses 698
9,270 Medical Insurance 11,413
- Office Services 455
4,396 Postage & Stationery 6,060
542 Power & Light -
7,000 Professional Fees -
49 Reference Materials & Publications 162
1.587 Removal Expenses -
218,667 Recruitment Costs 318,791
47,389 Rent & Rates 33,674
1,879 Repairs & Maintenance 1,700
124,226 Salaries 195,169
2.500 Settlement-Employment Dispute -
228,361 Share of HQ Expenses -
47,389 Rent & Rates 33,674
1,879 Repairs & Maintenance 1.700
124,226 Salaries 195,169
2,500 Settlement-Employment Dispute -
228,361 Share of HQ Expenses -
1,372 Subscriptions 1,945
6,853 Taxis & Local Transport 15,929
24,380 Telephone & Tolls 27,825
78,719 Travelling Expenses 101,127
34,244 Visa & Settlement Costs 43,889
1,579,877 1,134,214
82,065 Net Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (261,219)
31,366 Provision for Taxation -
$50,699 Profit (loss) for the year ($261,219

This report is to be read in conjunction with the ‘notes to the Financial Sta*
ments.



Statement of Movements in Equity for the year
ended 30th June 2000

1999 2000
66,850 Equity at start of year 117,549
50,699 Net surplus (deficit) for the year (261,219)
$117, 549 Equity (Deficiency) at the end of the year  ($143,670)
Statement of financial position
As at 30th June 2000
Last year
Share capital and reserves
46,414 10 Ordinary Shares 46,414
Reserves -
Retained Earnings (Accumulated
71,135 Losses) (190.084)
$117,549 ($143,670)
Represented by -
CURRENT ASSETS
907 ANZ Bank Account 96,029
1,615 Wellington Imprest Account 1,615
11,549 Auckland Imprest Account S
Auckland Imprest Account 19,166
= ANZ Imprest - Biswajit Rath 4,993
- Taxation refund due 7,784
203,920 Business Call Account 44,689
19,589 Advances to Overseas Employees 33,558
2,348 Advance - N Venkatesh &
285,123 Accounts Receivable 391,990
10,722 Less Provision for Doubtful Debts 10,722
274,401 381,268
110,758 ANZ Bank - US Account 50,685
40,518 HCL Technologies Pty (Australia) Ltd. -
665,605 639,787
10,4086 Fixed Assets 13,111
676,011 Total Assels 652,898
Less -
Current Liabilities
15,254 Accounts Payable 51,824
1,642 N Venkaesh Imprest -
57,582 NIIT Asia Pacific Lid .
19,382 Provision for Taxation -
152,613 HCL Technologies Ltd 177,209
222,199 HCL Technologies (Hong Kong) 258,506
- HCL Technologies Pty (Australia) Ltd. 200,728
32 HCL Infosystems Lid -
+1,912 Other Accrued Liabilities 78,186
36,821 GST 28,936
10,825 Finance Lease Commitments 1_;!2
558,462 Total Liabilities 796,568
$117,549 Net Assets (Deficiency) ($143,670)

R Mahajan, Director

A K Chanana, Director
This report is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the
year ended 30th June 2000

1.  Statement of Accounting Policies

HCL Technologies (NZ) Limited is registered under the Companies Act 1993.
The Company is a reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Report-
ing Act 1993. These Financial Statements have been prepared according to
1e Financial Reporting Act 1993.
he Company qualifies for certain exemptions from financial reporting stand-
rds under the framework of differential reporting because it is not publicly
scountable and it's owners and governing body are the same. The Com-
iny has taken advantage of all differential accounting exemptions avail-
e to it.

e measurement base adopted is that of historical cost. Accrual account-
is used to recognise expenses and revenue when they occur.
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The company operates as a Computer Consultancy. It commenced activity
on 1 April 1998.

Particular Accounting Policies

Accounts Receivable - Accounts Receivable are valued at expected real-
isable value. No additional provision has been made for doubtful debts this
year.

Fixed Assets - Fixed assets are stated at cost less aggregate depreciation,
calculated on a straight line basis. Depreciation has been provided at the
following rates:

Office Furniture & Equipment - Wellington 25.00%
Office Equipment - Auckland 25.00%
Leased Assets 33.33%

Goods & Services Tax - The Financial Statements have been prepared
exclusive of Goods & Services Tax, with the exception of accounts payable
and accounts receivable.

Leases - Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the company sub-
stantially all of the risks and benefits incident to ownership of the leased
item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased property, and
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The leased assets and
corresponding liabilities are amortised over the period the entity is expected
to benefit from their use.

Operating Lease payments, where the lessors effectively retain substan-
tially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased items, are included
in the determination of the operating surplus in equal instalments over the
lease term.

Going Concern - The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis,
given group support that intercompany advances will not be required to be
repaid until such time as the company can meet third party obligations as
and when they fall due.

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the
year ended 30th June 2000

Foreign Currency Transactions - The company converts foreign exchange
transactions at the rate applying on the date of the transaction. Where an
exchange gain or loss arises, this is shown separately in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

Foreign currency denominated balances at balance date are converted at
the exchange rates applicable at that date.

Income Tax - Income Tax is accounted for on the basis of actual results for
the year.

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies. All policies have been
applied on bases consistent with those used in previous years.

2. Retained Profits

The profit for the year after taxation is (261,219)
Accumulated Losses brought forward are 71,135
Giving Retained Profits carried forward of ($190,084)

3. Related Parties

The Company is a subsidiary of HCL Technologies Private Limited, and a
sister company to HCL Technology Limited, HCL Technologies (Australia)
Pty Limited, HCL Perot Systems Limited, and HCL Technologies (Hong Kong)
Limited and a related company to HCL Infosystems Limited, all of which are
related parties within the meaning of SSAP 22. The nature of related party
transactions that have occurred during the accounting period are as follows:

Recruitment and Consultancy Fees were paid to related party companies.
Travel and other expenses were paid on the Company’s behalf by it's sister
companies, and subsequently reimbursed. Funds were remitted to related
companies in reduction of advances received in the prior year.

4. Fixed & Leased Assets
Last Year Cost Accum Depn

Office Equipment -
462 Wellington 5,484 1,219 4,265

Office Equipment -
6,499 Auckland 15,156 7,786 7,370
3,445 Leased Assets 5,905 4,429 1,476
10,406 26,545 13,434 13,111




HCL Technologies (Hong Kong) Limited

Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited accounts for the year ended 30 June 2000.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the company is the provision of computer consulting
services.

Accounts

The profit and cash flows of the company for the year ended 30 June 2000
and the state of the company’s affairs at that date are set out in the accounts
below.

Fixed assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 7 on
the accounts.

Directors
The directors during the financial were:

Raj Kumar Mahajan
Anil Kumar Chanana

In accordance with article 106 of the company’s articles of association, both
existing directors retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No contract of significance to which the company, its holding company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the company
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

At no time during the year was the company, any of its holding companies or
any of their subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
of the company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the company or any other body corporate.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A reso-
lution for the reappointment of KPMG as auditors of the company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the board

A. Chanana
Hong Kong, 15 July 2000

R. K. Mahajan

Auditors’ report to the shareholders of HCL Technologies (Hong
Kong) Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a
true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently, that judgements and estimates are made
which are prudent and reasonable and that the reasons for any significant
departure from applicable accounting standards are stated.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit,
on those accounts and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Stand-
ards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant o the amounts and dis-
closures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the com-
pany’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts
are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evalu-
ated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of the
company’s affairs as at 30 June 2000 and of its profit and cash flows for the

year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the ™

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 15 July 2000

Profit and loss account for the year ended 30 June 2000
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2000 1999
Turnover 2 $31,350,827  $ 8,860,094
Other revenue 3 78,025 40,467
Other net income 3 753,895 -
Consulting fees (4,518,703) (2,129.189)
Staff costs (3,548,089) 6,281,625)
Depreciation (20,961) (17,014)
Other operating expenses (1,207,173) (1,990,804)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 4 $22.887,821 $(1,518,071)
Taxation 6 (a) . 4,631
Profit/(loss) after taxation $22,887,821  $(1.513,440)
(Accumulated losses)/retained profits
brought forward (1,397,780) 115, 660
Retained profits/(accumulated losses)
carried forward $21,490,041  $(1,397,780)

No separate statement of recognised gains and losses has been prepared\'
as the profit/(loss) after taxation would be the only component of this state-
ment.

The notes attached herewith form part of the accounts.

Balance Sheet at 30 June 2000
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2000 1999
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 7 $ 28,495 $ 43,857
Current assets
Trade debtors $2,521,214 $1,298,692
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 1,385,321 182,430
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 9 1,071,369 922,745
Amount due from a related company 10 938,075 240,601
Amount due from immediate
holding company 9 19,450,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents 758,467 532,380

$26,124,446 $ 3,176,848

Current liabilities
Creditors, accrued charges
and provisions $ 141,949 $1,234,42!
Amount payable to a director - 304,19
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 9 2,493,247 686,32
Amounts due to related companies 10 425,656 634,45



11 1,408,881 1,548,000
6(b) : 17,909

Loan from a fellow subsidiary
Taxation payable

$4,469,733 §$4,425,318

Net current assets/(liabilities) $21,654,713 $ (1,248,470)

Net assets $ 21,683,208 $ (1,204,613)
Share capital 12 $193,167  $193,167
Profit and loss account 21,490,041 (1,397,780)

$21,683,208 $ (1,204,613)

Approved by the board of directors on 15 Jul 2000
The notes attached herewith form part of the accounts.

Cash flow statement for the year ended 30 June 2000
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2000 1999
Net cash inflow/(outflow)
from operating
activities (note) $ 171,570 $ (889,154)
Returns on investments
and servicing of finance
Interest received $ 78,025 $ 40,467
Net cash inflow from returns on investments
.and servicing of finance 78,025 40,467
Taxation
Hong Kong profits tax paid $ (17,909) $-
Taxation paid (17,909) -
Investment activities
Purchase of fixed assets $ (5,599) $ (28,408)
Net cash outflow from
investing activities (5,599) (28,408)
Increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents $ 226,087 $ (877,095)
Cash and cash 532,380 1,409,475
equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash $ 532,380

$ 758,467
equivalents at end of year ==
Note to cash flow statement for the year ended 30 June 2000
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to net cash inflow/(out-
‘low) from operating activities

2000 1999
Profit/(loss) before taxation $ 22,887,821 $ (1,518,071)
Depreciation 20,961 17,014
Interest income (78,025) (40,467)
(Increase)/decrease in trade debtors (1,222,522) 1,317,010
Increase in other debtors, deposits
and prepayments (1,202,891) (182,430)
Increase in amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries (148,624) (922,745)
Increase in amount due from
immediate holding company (19,450,000) B
Increase in amounts due from a
related company (697,474) (240,601)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors,
accrued charges and provision (1,092,476) 755,162
(Decrease)/increase in amount
payable to a director (304,198) (304,198)
Increase in amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries 1,806,918 530,414
Decrease in amount due to
related company (208,801) (2,456,638)
(Decrease)/increase in loan from
a fellow subsidiary (139,119) 1,548,000
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities $ 171,570 $ (889,154)
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Notes on the accounts
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant accounting poli-

cies adopted by the company is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the accounts
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the accounts is
historical cost.

(b)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attribut-
able costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the fixed assets have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs,
are normally charged to the profit and loss account in the period in
which they are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demon-
strated that an expenditure has resulted in an increase in the fuiure
economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the fixed
asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis at annual rates
estimated to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful
life. The annual rates are as follows:

Computer equipment 33%
Office equipment 25%

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated deprecia-
tion are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting
from their disposal is included in the profit and loss account.

(c)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the com-
pany and the revenue and cost, if applicable, can be measured reli-
ably, revenue from the provision of consulting services is recognised
when the related services are rendered.

(d)

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided using the liability method in respect of the
taxation effect arising from all timing differences between the accounting
and tax treatment of income and expenditure, which are expected with
reasonable probability to crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Future deferred tax benefits are not recognised unless their realisation
is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

(e)

®)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the
profit and loss account.

(9)

Operating leases

Rental payable under operating ieases are accounted for in the profit
and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the relevant
leases.

Related parties

For the purposes of these accounts, parties are considered to be re-
lated to the company if the company has the ability, directly or indi-
rectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party
in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the company and the party are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other enti-
ties.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from the disclo-
sure requirements of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 2.120
“Related party disclosures” (“SSAP 20") as it is a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary and the consolidated accounts in which the company is inciuded
contain related party disclosures comparable to those required by SSAP
20.

h)



(a)

(b)

()

Turnover

The principal activity of the company is the provision of computer con-
sulting services. Turnover represents the invoiced value of consulting
services rendered, net of discounts,

Income
2000 1999

Other revenue
Interest income $ 78,025 $ 40,467
Other net income = ¥
Net exchange gain $ 56,421 $-
Recovery of bad debt written off 697,474 -

$753,895 $

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2000 1999
Operating lease rental of
office premises $ 240,000 $294,449
Auditors remuneration
- Provision for the year 62,240 30,000
- Under/(over) provision for previous year 23,932 (60,000)

Directors’ remuneration
Directors/ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2000 1999
Fees $- $-
Other emoluments 695,400
$ 695,400
Taxation
Taxation in the profit and loss account represents:
2000 1999
Underprovision in respect of prior year $- $ (69)
Deferred Taxation - 4.700
8- _$4,631

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the esti-
mated assessable profits of the company for the year are fully offset by
tax losses brought forward from prior years.

Taxation in the balance sheet represents:
2000

Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax provision

relating to prior year $-

1999

$ 17,909

No provision for deferred taxation has been made as the company has
a net deferred taxation asset, which comprises principally the future
benefit of the accumulated tax losses carried forward which amounted
to $ 201,000 (1999: $243,000), the future realisation of which is uncer-
tain.

Fixed assets

Office Computer Total
equipment equipment

Cost:
At 1 July 1999 $14,295 $ 49,300 $ 63.595
Additions 5,599 - 5,599
At 30 June 2000 $ 19,894 $ 49,300 $ 69,194
Aggregate depreciation:
At 1 July 1999 $3,220 $ 16,518 $ 19,738
Charge for the year 4,530 16,431 20,961
At 30 June 2000 $ 7,750 $ 32,949 $ 40,699
Net book value:
At 30 June 2000 $12,144 $ 16,351 $ 28,495
At 30 June 1999 $ 11,075 $ 32,782 $ 43,857

Current assets and current liabilities
Included under current assets and current liabilities are amounts which
are expected to be recovered/settied after more than one year as fol-
lows:

2000
$ 38,000

1999
$ 38,000

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments

74

10

1

12

13

14

All of the other current assets and liabilities are expected to be recov-
ered/settled within one year.

Amounts due to/from fellow subsidiaries and immediate holding com-
pany

The amounts due to/from fellow subsidiaries and immediate holding
company are unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year.

Amounts due to/from related companies
The amounts due to/from related companies are unsecured, interest
free and repayable within one year.

Loan from a fellow subsidiary
Loan from a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and repay-
able within one year.

Share capital

2000 1999
Authorised:
3,000,000 ordinary shares
of $1 each $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,0000
Issued and fully paid:
193,167 ordinary shares
of $1 each $ 193,167 $ 193,167

Comparative figures

The presentation and classification of items in the accounts have been
changed due to the adoption of the requirements of SSAP 1 (revised)
“Presentation of financial statements” . As a result, additional line items
have been included on the face of the profit and loss account as re-
quired by SSAP 1 (revised), such as other revenue and analysis of
expenses. Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

Ultimate holding company
The directors consider the uitimate holding company at 30 June 2000
to be HCL Technologies Limited, which is incorporated in India.



HCL Technologies Japan Limited

DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Yen in thousands)
Years Ended June 30

2000 1999

Software Services 498,856 739,720
Other Income 8,718 2,681
Profit /(Loss) before Depreciation & Taxes (72,248) (85,775)
Depreciation 3,211 1,877
.Provision for Tax = (1,125)
2rofit /(Loss) after Tax (75,459) (88,777)

PERFORMANCE:

The revenue from software and related technical services reduced from
JPY 740 million in fiscal 1999 to JPY 499 million in fiscal 2000. Losses
before Depreciation and Tax reduced by 16 % from JPY 86 million in fiscal
1999 to JPY 72 million in fiscal 2000. The charge for depreciation was
higher by JPY 1.33 million in fiscal 2000. Loss after tax provision reduced
from JPY 89 million in fiscal 1999 to JPY 75 million in fiscal 2000.

During the current fiscal, net receivables reduced significantly from JPY
160.38 million in fiscal 1999 to JPY 78.09 million in fiscal 2000. DSO
reduced from 79 days in 1999 to 57 days in fiscal 2000

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your directors have not declared any dividend for the fiscal 2000. There
has been no iransfer to reserves during the year 2000.

AUDITORS:

M/s BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants continue to remain in office as
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed their eligibility and willing-
ness to accept office, if reappointed.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

..The Directors wish to thank the government authorities, customers,

‘endors and employees for their cooperation and assistance extended to

the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000

Auditors’ Report

To the Members of

HCL Technologies Japan Limited, Japan

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Technologies Japan
Limited as at 30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year
ended on that date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the company so far as appears from our examination of
the books;

(c) the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C)
of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable;
and

(e) in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the accounts give the information required
by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view:

(i) in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
company as at 30 June 2000; and

(i) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the loss of the company
for the year ended on that date.

For BSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi Rajesh Jain
Date: August 2, 2000 Partner

Balance sheet as at 30 June 2000
(All amounts in Yen)
Schedule As at As at
No. 30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Sources of funds
Share holders’ funds

Share capital 1 50,000,000 50,000,000

Loan Funds

Unsecured loans 2 53,250,000 -
103,250,000 50,000,000

Application of funds '

Fixed assels 3

Gross block 11,554,027 11,554,027

Less: Accumulated depreciation (5,087,568) (1,876,767)

Net biock 6,466,459 9,677,260

Current assets, loans and advances

Sundry debtors 78,094,778 160,375,669

Cash and bank balances 55,335,197 64,233,673

Loans and advances 6 6,240,193 28,450,152
139,670,168 253,059,494

Current liabilities 7 (203,122,127) (297,513,317)

Net current liabilities (63,451,959) (44,453,823)

Profit and loss account 160,235,500 84,776,563
103,250,000 50,000,000

Notes to the accounts 11
As per our report attached

For BSR & Co. For HCL Technologies Japan Limited
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000



HCL Technologies South Africa (Proprietary) Limited

Balance sheet
at 30 June 2000

Capital employed

Share capital
Accumulated loss

Employment of capital
Fixed assets
Net current liabilities

Current assets
Accounts receivable
Bank balances

Current liability
Accounts payable

Income statement

Note

2000

896 100
(971 284)

(75 184)

43218
(118 402)

242 838

158 50

84 329

361 240

(75 184)

for the period 4 June 1999 (date of incorporation) to 30 June 2000
For the period
ended 30 June

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Selling and administration expenses

Operating loss
Interest received

Accumulated loss at end of period
Cash flow statement

Note

2000
R

86 400

77 760

8640
980 914
(972 274)
990

{971 284)

for the period 4 June 1999 (date of incorporation) to 30 June 2000
For the period

ended 30 June
Note 2000
R
Cash absorbed by operations 9.1 (766 307)
Interest received 990
Net cash outflow from operating activities (765 317)
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Investment to expand operations (46 454)
Additions to fixed assets
Net cash inflow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 896 100
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 84 329

Notes to the financial statements
for the period 4 June 1999 (date of incorporation) to 30 June 2000

2000
R
1. Share capital
Authorised
1 000 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 1 000 000
Issued
896 100 ordinary shares of R1 each 896 100
2. Fixed assets
2000
Depreciation Accumulated Carrying
rate Cost depreciation value
% R R R
Computer equipment 33 43340 3 001 40 339
Computer software 50 3114 235 2 879
46 454 3236 43218

80

The carrying value of fixed assets can be reconciled as follows:

Carrying
value
at end
Additions Depreciation of period
R R R
Computer equipment 43 340 (3 001) 40 339
Computer software 3114 (235) 2879
46 454 (3 236) 43 218
2000
3. Accounts payable usb R
Included in accounts payable are the following
amounts owing to related parties:
HCL Technologies Limited Bermuda 4088 27 899
HCL Technologies Limited 5000 215341
7243240
4, Operating loss
is arrived at after taking into account
Auditors’ remuneration 63505
Audit fee 20 000
Other services |__ 43505
Depreciation of fixed assets 3236
Fereign exchange losses ~—
- realised 67973 ~
Operating lease charges 68 875
- property rentals 67 890
- office equipment 985
Share issue expenses 7 220

5. Taxation
Provision for taxation has not been made as the company has a calcu-
lated tax loss of R964 064 which is available for set off against future
taxable income.

2000

6. Lease commitments R
Future operating lease charges for premises

- payable within one year 65 600

7.  Financial instruments

7.1. Currency risk
The company incurs currency risk as a resuit of advances and charges
by related parties which are denominated in US Dollars.

7.2. Credit risk
Reputable financial institutions are used for investing and cash han-
dling purposes.

7.3. Fair values
The fair values of all financial instruments are substantially identical to
carrying values reflected in the balance sheet.

8. Related parties

8.1 Parent company
The holding company of HCL Technologies South Africa (Proprietary)
Limited is HCL Technologies Limited Bermuda, incorporated in Ber-
muda, which holds 100% of the company’s ordinary shares.

8.2. Types of related party transactions
HCL. Technologies South Africa (Proprietary) Limited has received
advances and has been charged for costs borne by related parties on
its behalf.

8.3. Material related party transactions
Advances from related parties

S

- refer note 3

For the period

ended 30 June
2000
R
9. Note to the cash flow statement
9.1. Cash absorbed by operations
Operating loss before interest (972 274)
Adjustment for -
Depreciation 3236
Operating loss before working capital changes (969 038)
Increase in accounts receivable (158 509)
Increase in accounts payable 361 240
(766 307)



HCL Holdings GmbH, Vienna

Financial Statements
As of December 31, 1999

Balance Sheet as of December 31, 1999

Translation
(compared to prior year)

Assets Dec. 31,1999 Dec. 31, 1998
ATS TATS
A. Fixed Assets
1. Financial assets
|. Participations 28,114,288 22,419
B. Current Assets
|. Receivables and other assets 140,500 -
1. Accounts due from affiliated
companies 13,667 13
2. Other Receivable 83,458 585
Il. Cash in banks 237,625 598
Total Assets 28,351,913 23,017

Equity and Liabilities Dec. 31, 1999 Dec., 31, 1998
ATS TATS
A. Shareholders’ Equity
1. Share Capital 6,500,000 6,500
IIl. Capital reserve 25,029,568 19,338
lll. Accumulated loss (3,450,369) 3,174
thereof loss carried forward
ATS 3, 173.658 (Previous year: TATS 2.929)
B. Accruals 50,000 271
1. Other accruals
C. Liabilities 222,714 82
1. Other liabilities
Total Liabilities and Equity 28,351,913 23,017

Signed by the management according to
§ 194 of the Austrian Commercial Code
Vienna, May 31, 2000

The Management

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 1999 TO DECEMBER 31, 1999
Translation
(compared to prior year)

1999
ATS
1. Other operating income
a) Income from reversal of accruals 130,000
b) Other 52,360
2. Other operating expenses
a) Taxes, other than income taxes (410,527)
b) Others (75,698)
3. Subtotal 1 to 2 (Operating profit)  (303,865)
4. income from interest and similar items 52,154

1998
TATS

131

(6)
(345)

(220)

81

1999

ATS
5. Subtotal of item 4 (Financial result) 52,154
6. Result from ordinary operations  (251,711)
7. Taxes on income (25,000)
8. Loss of the year (276,711)
9. Loss carried forward (3,173.658)
10. Accumulated loss

(3,450,369)

(245)

(2,929)

(3,174)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Translation)

General Comments

The financial statements as of December 31, 1999 are in compliance
with the Regulations of the Austrian Commercial Code. The financial
statements were prepared in accordance with (Austrian) generally
accepted accounting principies underlying the general rule to give a
true and fair view.

Especially, the principle of going-concern, the principle of prudence
and the principle of individual vaiuation of assets and liabilities were
considered. The principle of caution was considered by taking into
account all risks recognizable and impending losses. Only profits
realised at the balance sheet date have been recorded.

In order to achieve a comprehensive statement some items of the
balance sheet and of the income statement were summarised. The
income statement has been prepared by the cost-summary method.

3.3

34

NLG 8.015.000. The result of the above mentioned company of the
year ended at June 30, 1999 shows a profit.

2 Capital reserve

The shareholder, Vama Sundari investment Private Limited, has
waived receivables against HCL Holdings GmbH. This transaction
has to be shown as capital reserve.

Other accruals

Other accruals were calculated according to the legal requirements
to provide for all foreseeable risks and all liabilities uncertain in the
amount.

Liabilities
Liabilities are valued at their repayment amount.

4. Additional Information
2. Group Relationship During the financial year no persons were employed by the com-
The Company is a 100% owned subsidiary of HCL Technologies pany.
Ltq._, Bermudas a_nd i.s therefore wjth its_shareholder as well as the in the business year the Company was represented by the following
affiliated companies in group relationship. managing directors:
HCL Technologies Limited, !ndia prepares the widest consolidated - Mr. Sivaprasad Sivasubramaniam Nadar, New Delhi, india
financial statement concerning the group. . i )
3. Accounting Policies and Valuation Methods - Mr. Subroto Bhattacharya, Noida, ln.dua (until November 30, 1999)
. ) - Mr. Anit Kumar Chanana, New Delhi, India (from December 1,
3.1 Financial assets 1999)
The “participations” refers to an.in.ves_tment in HCL Perot Systems 5. Composition of and comments on the Balance Sheet
N.V., Amsterdam (NL). The participations are valued at cost.
HCL Holding GmbH, Austria holds 50 of the issued share capital of
5.1 Balance sheet
5.1.1.Classification and development of fixed assets
Acquisition cost
Depreciation in
Balance Balance | Accumulated | Net book value | Netbook value| the reporting
01/01/1999| Additions | Disposals | Reclassification |31/12/1999 | Depreciation 31/12/1999 31/12/1999 period
ATS ATS ATS ATS ATS ATS ATS ATS ATS
1. Financial assets
_1. Participations 22.418.662| 5.695.626 ‘ - - 28.114.288 N 28.114.288 22.418.662 ] - J
The investment in the HCL Perot Systems N.V., Amsterdam increased to 50% shareholding
5.2. Liabilities
5.2.1.0ther liabilities
Liabilities are valued at the amount repayable.
6. Composition of and comments on profit and loss account
6.1 Other operating income, others
The other operating income refers to differences in exchange rates.
6.2. Other operating expenses, others
Composition:
1999 1998
ATS ATS
Legal and tax advice rates 71.032 328
Bank charges 4.666 17
Total 75.698 345




Intelicent Inc.

Intelicent Inc.

(FORMERLY HCL JAMES MARTIN & CO. INC.)
Independent auditors’ report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder

Intelicent Inc. (formerly 'HCL James Martin & Co. Inc.)’

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Intelicent Inc. and its subsidiary as of June 30, 1999 and 2000 and the
related statements of operations, stockholder’s equity and cash flows for
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and the
isclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
«he accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion. .
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects the financial position of the Intelicent Inc. and its
subsidiary as of June 30, 1999 and 2000, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

KPMG
New Delhi, India
July 25, 2000

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY
(In thousands, except number of shares)

As of June 30

1999 2000
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
-Group Companies $ 973 $ 329
-Others 67 388
Deferred income taxes 43 60
Accrued employee costs 790 344
Current portion of capital lease obiigations 32 13
Short term borrowings from group companies 500 750
Other amounts due to group companies - 96
Other current liabilities 861 265
Total current liabilities 3,266 2,245
Capital lease obligations 27 -
Total liabilities 3,293 2,245

Stockholder’s equity:

Common stock, $1 par value- 10,000,000 shares authorized;

6,100,614 and 6,000,000 shares issued and outstanding as of

June 30, 1999 and 2000, respectively 6,101 6,000
Additional paid-in-capital 252 108

Accumulated deficit (2,755) (5,064)
Total stockholder’s equity 3,598 1,044
Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity $ 6,891 $ 3,289

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years ended June 30

As of June 30

1999 2000
ASSETS
‘urrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 981 $ 24
Accounts receivable
-Group companies 531 507
-Others, net 3,913 982
Deferred income taxes . 1,214
Employee receivables 143 83
Other current assets 515 227
Total current assets ?5,—05 —3_,03—7
Property and equipment, net 353 163
Intangible assets, net 88 -
Deferred income taxes, net of current portion 354 77
Other assets 13 12
Total assets $6,891 $ 3,289

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Revenues
Less: Stock based sales incentive
Net Revenue
Cost of revenues
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Income / (loss) from operations
Interest expense
Interest and other income, (net)
Income / (loss) before taxes
Income tax (expense) benefit
Net income (loss)
Basic and diluted net loss per share

Weighted average number of
common shares

1999 2000

$ 18,527 $ 13,296
. 108
18.527 13,188
9.971 7.487
8,556 5,701
1,746 1,760
4,990 6,376
1,431 339
8,167 8,475
389 (2,774)

39 92

122 94

472 (2,772)
(415) 838

$ 57 $ (1,934)

- 0.32
6,016,769 6,051,042

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss)

(In thousands)
Years endgd June 30

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Stock based sales incentive

Stock compensation arising out of
re-purchase of shares and options

Changes in assets and liabilities, net
Accounts receivable
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued employee costs
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

1999 2000
57 $ (1,934)
1,431 339
395 (920)

- 108

- 421

166 2,084
(882) 1,219
151 (323)
385 (446)
137 (222)
1,840 326
(238) (61)
(238) (61)

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of capital lease obligations
Net proceeds from bank line of credit
Repayment of long term debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Re-purchase of stock options
Repurchase of private placement of shares
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of the year
End of the year
Supplementary cash flow information
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

(In thousands)
Years ended June 30

1999

(27)
(375)
(600)

353

1649)

$ 953

$ 28
$ 981

$ 36
$38

2000

@7

(651)
(544)

(1,222)

$ (957)

$ o981
§ 24

$44
$82

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Balance as of June 30, 1998
Common stock issued

Net income

Balance as of June 30, 1999
Repurchase of privately placed stock
Repurchase of stock options
Compensation related to stock
based sales incentive

Tax benefit on employee
stock option

Net income
Balance as of June 30, 2000

Common stock
No. of shares

6,000,000
100,614

6,100,614

(100,614)

6,000,000

(In thousands, except number of shares)

Additional

Amount paid-in-capital
6,000 -
101 252
_$6,101 $ 252
(101) (252)
- 108
__$6,000 $ 108

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated Total

deficit Shareholders
Equity™

(2,812) 3,188

- 353

57 57

$ (2,755) $3,598

(76) (429)

(3486) (346)

- 108

47 47

(1,934) (1,934)

$ (5,064) $1,044




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are stated in United States
Dollars) ()

1.

(@

(b)

c)

(d)

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Intelicent, Inc. (the “Company”) (formerly known as HCL James

Martin & Co. Inc.) was incorporated in Virginia on March 27, 1996, ®
and commenced operations on July 1, 1996. The Company was
incorporated as a 60:40 joint venture between the HCL Group

(“HCL”), and James Martin & Co. Inc. (“JM & Co”). In February

1999, the interest of JM & Co was purchased by HCL. The

Company’s primary business is to provide information technology
consulting services.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

In June 2000, the Company and HCL Technologies America Inc.
(“a company under common control”) have entered into an
agreement whereby the Company shall be merged into HCL
Technologies America Inc. with effect from July 1, 2000. Thereaf-
ter, HCL Technologies America Inc. will continue to carry on the
existing business of Intelicent.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States to reflect the financial position and
results of operations of the Company along with its subsidiary in
Mexico.

(9

()

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles requires management to

make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods. Although, these esti-

mates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current

events and actions, actual results could differ from those esti- ()
mates.

Exchange rate translation

The consolidated financial statements are reported in United

States dollars (“US dollars”). The functional currency of the

Company’s foreign subsidiary is its local currency. The translation

of the functional currency into US dollars is performed for balance

sheet accounts using the exchange rates in effect at the balance

sheet date and for revenue and expense accounts using a

monthly weighted average exchange rate for the respective

periods. The gains or losses resulting from such translation are

reported as a separate component of stockholder’s equity. 0

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the date of the transaction. The gains or losses
resulting from such foreign currency transactions are included in
other income.

Revenue recognition

Revenues for time and material services are recognized as and

when the services are provided. Fixed price contract revenue is (k)
recognized using the percentage of completion method of

accounting, under which sales value of performance, including

earnings thereon is determined by relating the actual man-hours

of work performed to date to the estimated total man hours for

each contract. Any anticipated losses upon contract completion

are recognized immediately.
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Warranty costs on sale services provided are accrued based on
management estimates and historical data.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents represent highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of ninety days or less.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment including assets under capital lease
agreements are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method and is charged to income over the estimated useful lives of
the respective assets. Assets under capital leases are amortized
over the shorter of their useful life or the lease tenure.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent identified intangible assets such as
customer relationships, existing contracts, an assembled work
force and product trademarks. Values have been assigned o the
identified intangible assets based on an evaluation by manage-
ment. The intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the periods estimated to be benefited.

Income taxes

The current charge for income taxes is calculated in accordance
with the relevant tax regulations applicable. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases and operating loss carry forwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in the period that includes the
enactment date. Deferred tax assets are recognized in full, subject
to a valuation allowance that reduces the amount recognized to
that which is more likely than not to be realized.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment, whenever
an event or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such assets may not be recoverable. The carrying
values of long-lived assets are assessed for recoverability by
reference to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows
associated with them. Where this assessment indicates a deficit,
the assets are written down to the market value. For assets that do
not have a readily determinable market value, the assets are
written down to their fair value, calcuiated by reference to their
estimated future discounted cash flows.

Software

Software product development costs are expensed as incurred
until technological feasibility is achieved. Costs of enhancements
to software products do not represent significant modifications to
the underlying software, and are accordingly recorded as a period
expense.

Software acquired or internally developed for meeting the needs of
the Company is capitalized or expensed in accordance with
Statement of Position 98-1. The capitalized costs of such software
are amortized over the estimated useful fife of the sofiware.

Earnings per share

In accordance with Statement of Financial Standards (‘SFAS”) No.
128, Earning Per Share, basic earnings per share are computed
using the weighted average number of common and dilutive
common equivalent shares outstanding during the period, using
the treasury stock method for options and warrants, except where
results would be anti-dilutive.
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Accounting for stock options

The Company uses the intrinsic value based method of Accounting
Principles Board (‘APB’) Opinion No.25 to account for its empioyee
stock-based compensation plan. The Company has therefore
adopted the pro forma disclosure provisions of SFAS No.123,
‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation’.

Financial instruments and concentration risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of trade receivables.
Trade receivables are not collateralized. To manage its credit risk,
the Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and maintains reserves for credit losses.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation.

STOCKHOLDER'’S EQUITY

At initial capitalization of the Company, HCL contributed a
$3,600,000 non-interest bearing note receivable for a 60% interest
in the Company, and JM & Co. contributed its systems redevelop-
ment business division, including the System Redevelopment
Methodology (“TSRM”) contained in software format, existing
contracts, trademark- and certain employees, for a 40% interest in
the Company and a $1,100,000 liability to JM & Co. The liability
was to be paid by the Company as cash flow permitted, based on
an agreed schedule during the two-year period ended June 30,
1998. The payment schedule was subsequently revised to be
repaid by June 30, 1999. Accordingly, the entire liability of
$1,100,000 was paid during the year ended on June 30, 1999.
The Company assigned a fair value of $3,500,000 to the non-cash
assets contributed, with $3,150,000 allocated to the TSRM
software and the remainder allocated to cther intangible assets.

Cash capital contributions of approximately $2,975,000 and
$625,000 were received against the $3,600,000 note receivable
from HCL during the years ended June 30, 1997 and 1998,
respectively.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of June 30, 1999 and 2000 property and equipment comprise
the following (in thousands):

Estimated useful

lives (in years) 1999 2000

Computer equipment 3 $ 388 $ 395
Software 3t03.5 3,223 3,277
Furniture and fixtures 4 146 146
3,757 3.818

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,404) (3.655)
Property and equipment, net $ 353 §$ 163

Computer equipment includes equipment under capital leases
aggregating to $372,700 as of June 30, 1999 and 2000. Accumu-
lated depreciation and amortization includes accumulated amorti-
zation for software of approximately $3,058,000 and $3,205,905
as of June 30 1999 and 2000 respectively.

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 1999 and 2000
is $1,431,000 and $338,508 including $1,244,000 and $146,029
respectively, for amortization of software and $75,400 and $44.653
respectively, on assets under capital leases.

In 1999, the Company had written down the value of the TSRM
software by $550,000 on account of impairment. The impairment,
which has been measured by considering future cash flows, was
adjusted through the statement of operations. The impairment cost
was included in the depreciation expense for the year ended June
30, 1999.
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ALLOWANCE FOR ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

The Company maintains an allowance for uncollectible receivables
based on the trade receivables at the end of the year. Factors
utilized by management in determining the adequacy of the
allowance include the present and prospective financial condition
of the debtor and the aging of the trade receivables. Allowance for
uncollectible receivables aggregated $25,249 and $97,439 as of
June 30, 1999 and 2000, respectively. The charge to the statement
of income with respect to uncollectible receivables was $60,100
and $72,190 for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 2000,
respectively.

LEASES

The Company acquired $92,200 of equipment under capital lease
obligations during the year ended June 30, 1999. Interest paid for
capital lease obligations during the years ended June 30, 1999 and
2000, was approximately $10,100 and $3,851, respectively.

Future lease commitments as of June 30, 2000 are as follows (in
thousands):

2001
Total minimum payments

e

$13

Less: Amount representing future interest
Present value of minimum payments

S P
W Wi w

Less: Current portion
Long term capital lease obligations

&
i

The Company has taken operating leases on certain office space,
computer equipment, and furniture from JM & Co. For the years
ended June 30, 1999 and 2000, total rent expense under the
operating leases was $313,200 and $362,357, respectively.
Future lease rentals as of June 30, 2000 are as follows (in
thousands):

2001
2002 12

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of customers relationships, existing
contracts, an assembled work force and product trademarks
associated with the TSRM business division contributed to the
Company. The intangibles are being amortized over a period of 4
years. For each of the years ended June 30, 1999 and 2000,
amortization expense was $87,500 and $88,984 respectively. At
June 30, 1999 and 2000, accumulated amortization for intangible
assets was approximately $262,000 and $350,000 respectively.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

Historically, the Company has derived a significant portion of its
revenues from a relatively limited number of clienis. In the years
ended June 30, 1999 and June 30, 2000 the Company has derived
almost 56% and 62 % of its revenues respectively from its four
largest customers.

LINE OF CREDIT

The Company had a working line of credit agreement with Silicon
Valley Bank. Under the agreement, the Company could borrow the
lesser of $2,500,000 ($2,000,000 tili October 28, 1999) or 80%
(75% until October 27, 1999) of eligible billed domestic trade
accounts receivable. The agreement required repayment in 36
equal monthly installments and the borrowings bore interest at the
rate of prime plus 1.5 percent and were collateralized by a first
position lien and security interest on all business assets and
guaranteed by HCL. The line of credit arrangement has ceased to
exist with effect from June 2, 2000 and the Company has repaid all
dues including the unpaid interest dues by June 9, 2000. The
effective interest rate was 8.5% per annum.



11.

INCOME TAXES

The income tax benefit for the years ended June 30, 1999 and
2000, consists of the following (in thousands):

1999 2000
Current tax expense $ 20 $ 82
Deferred tax expense 395 (920)
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 415 $ (838)

The income tax benefit for the years ended June 30, 1999 and
2000, varied from the amount computed by applying the

U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34 percent to the income (loss)
before income taxes as follows (in thousands):

1999 2000
Income tax benefit (expense) at federal
statutory rate $ 160 $ (942)
State income tax benefit (expense), net 19 (181)
Non deductible amortization expense 467 55
Change in valuation allowance - 116
Other (231) 114
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 415 $ (838)

The components of the Company’s net deferred tax asset as of
June 30. 1999 and 2000, consist of the following (in thousands):

1999 2000
Net operating loss carry forwards $354 $1,067
Allowance for doubtful debts - 40
Accrued employee costs - 107
Stock based sales incentive S 44
Amortization of Intangible assets - 149
Less: Valuation allowance - (116)
Net deferred tax asset $354 $1,291
The Company’s current deferred tax liability
as of June 30, 1999 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands):

1999 2000
State taxes $ (43) $ (60)

The net deferred tax asset is presented in the balance sheet as
follows (in thousands):

1999 2000
Current deferred tax asset $ - $1,214
Non current deferred tax asset 5 77
Total deferred tax assets 54 1,291
Current deferred tax liability 43 60
Net deferred tax assets $ 311 $ 1,231

Pursuant to the scheme of proposed merger of Intelicent Inc. into
HCL Technologies America Inc., the operating losses of Intelicent
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will be absorbed/ adjusted against the operating profits of HCL
Technologies America Inc. in future. Management believes it is
more likely than not that the entire net deferred tax asset will be
realized in future by HCL Technologies America Inc.. Accordingly,
the Company has not recorded a valuation allowance against the
remaining deferred tax asset.

GROUP COMPANY TRANSACTIONS
System Redevelopment Services

During the normal course of business, the Company performs
system redevelopment services directly for and subcontracts
systems redevelopment services from the group companies. In
addition, the Company subcontracts certain system redevelopment
work to group companies. During the years ended June 30, 1999
and 2000, revenues from services performed for group companies
were approximately $3,096,000 and $511,320, respectively. Costs
of services received from group companies were approximately
$503,000 and $936,897 during the years ended June 30, 1999 and
2000, respectively.

Leases

The Company subleases certain office space, computer equip-
ment, and furniture from JM & Co. (a related party until February
1999). The details of these expenses are given in note 7.

Loans

The Company has borrowed short-term ioans from HCL Technolo-
gies America Inc. (a company under common control) during the
years ended June 30, 1999 and June 30, 2000. The details are
hereunder (in thousands):

Years ended

1999 2000
Borrowings outstanding at the
beginning of the year - $500
Short term borrowings during the year $500 $750
Repayments during the year - $(500)
Borrowings outstanding at year end $500 $750
Rate of interest 8% 8%

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

In July 1996, the Company adopted a Savings and Investment
Pian under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan
covers substantially all fuli-time employees who are at least 21
years of age. Participants may contribute up to 15% of pretax
compensation, subject to certain limitations. For participants with
at least one year of service, with Intelicent, or an affiliated com-
pany, the Company will match 50 percent of the participants’
annual contribution up to a maximum of $5,000. For the years
ended June 30, 1999 and 2000, the Company contributed $66,700
and $127,349, respectively, to the pian.



14. STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company had adopted a stock option plan in August 1997. Under the plan, the Company may grant options to its employees and directors.
Options granted will be exercisable at the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at the date of the grant and expire_ten years afte_r
the date of the grant. The vesting period of these options is 3 years. The Company has folliowed APB Opinion No.25 in accounting for the options
issued under the plan. Details of options issued and outstanding under the plan are as follows:
As of June 30 1999 2000
Shares arising Weighted average Shares arising Waighted average
out of options exercise price out of options exercise price
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 237,500 $1.00 642,500 $1.63
Granted during the year 616,500 $1.82 78,500 $ 5.81
Forfeited during the year (206,500) $1.52 (258,962) $2.53
Exercised during the year - $ - E $ -
Re-purchased during the year (5,000) $1.00 (145,039) $1.99
Cancelled - $ - (316,999) $1.06
Outstanding at the end of the year 642,500 $1.63 - -
Exercisable at the end of the year 124,333 $1.24 -
Weighted average fair value s
of the grants during the year - $1.82 - $5.81
During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company re-purchased 16.  STOCK BASED SALES INCENTIVE
145,039 options for cash consideration. The Company has During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company along with its
followed “FASB Interpretation No. 44—Accounting For Certain ultimate parent Company has entered into a software consuiting
Transactions Involving Stock Compensation” in accounting for the and engineering service agreements obligating the customers
re-purchase of options. Accordingly, the consideration paid to the either to commit and/or project revenues over a period of 5 years.
employees for the re-purchase of options within six months from On achievement of the revenues and/or on fulfillment of necessary
the dates of their vesting aggregating to $346,249 has been conditions, the ultimate holding Company has agreed to grant
accounted for as stock compensation and the consideration paid stock options to these customers, with shares for the option plan to
for the re-purchase of options after six months from the dates of be currently provided through its principal shareholder.
thejr gesting agg_rggatmg fo $ 305,124 has been added to the The rights to acquire shares are normaily exercisable in incre-
aceamiAggidelicl? ments at a price either being agreed in advance or to be deter-
During the year ended June 30, 2000, the HCL. Group adopted a mined as a future date, after a specified minimum volume of
scheme whereby options granted in Intelicent Inc. were surren- services has been availed by the customer. These rights vest over
dered by the employees and such surrendered options were a period ranging from 1 to 5 years and are exercisable within 10
immediately cancelled. Simultaneously, fresh options were years from the date of vesting.
granted to purchase shares in HCL Technologies Limited. The Company accounts for these options in accordance with the
Since the options granted in Intelicent Inc. have either been re- Emerging Issues Task Force Abstract No. 96-18, “Accounting for
purchased or cancelied, the proforma disclosure provisions of Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Empioyees for
SFAS No. 123 have not been adopted. Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services” (‘E
15.  PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF SHARES TO THE EMPLOYEES 96-18"). Pursuant to EITF 96-18, the Company has valued the ™
. _ ) rights using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The cost is
In May 1999, the Company haq privately issued 100,614 eqyny being amortized ratably over the applicable service period. During
shares to its employees at a price of $3.70 per share and raised $ the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company has amortized a total
872,272 in cash. The offering price was established on the basis of $108,000 as sales incentive representing the pro-rata cost of
of an lndepgndent fair market yaluanon of the Companys shar_es stock options over the service period.
and accordingly no compensation cost was recognized at the time
17.  YEAR 2000

of issue of these shares. During the year ended June 30, 2000,
the Company has re-purchased the entire lot of 100,614 shares
issued to the employees at various prices.

The Company has followed “FASB Interpretation No. 44—
Accounting For Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensa-
tion” in accounting for the re-purchase of shares. Accordingly, the
difference between the issue price and the re-purchase reconsid-
eration aggregating to $ 116,377 has been accounted as stock
compensation in cases where shares have been re-purchased
within six months from the date of issue and the difference
aggregating to $ 75,600 has been added to accumulated deficits
wherever the shares have been re-purchased after six months
from the date of issue.
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To date, the Company has not encountered any material Year
2000 issues concerning its respective computer programs. The
Company’s plan for the Year 2000 included replacing or updating
existing systems (which were not year 2000 compliant), assessing
the Year 2000 preparedness of computers and counter-parties and
formulating a contingency plan to ensure business continuity in the
event of unforeseen circumstances. All costs associated with
carrying out the Company’s plan for Year 2000 problem have been
expensed as incurred.



HCL Comnet Systems & Services Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Members,

The Directors of your company have pieasure in presenting the Seventh
Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the
year ended June 30th, 2000.
Financial Highlights
The Financial performance of your company for the year ended 30th June
2000 is summarised as follows :

Rupees in Lacs

Period ended
30th June 1999
(Six months)

Year ended
30th June, 2000

Turnover 11639.07 5075.88
P=it before Depreciation, Interest & Tax 2814.78 661.79
I wiit before Depreciation & Taxes 2544.05 484.14
Profit before Tax 1940.47 401.78
Profit after Tax 1470.17 391.55

Operations Review

The year under review was an eventful year for COMNET as your
Company attained new heights and the diversification steps taken by the
company into different areas / technologies of networking solutions during
1998 & 1999 paid rich dividends. The Profit before Interest Depreciation &
Tax {PBIDT) grew by 113%, the Profit Before Depreciation and Taxes
(PBDT) increased by 163%. Profit Before Tax (PBT) grew by 141% and
inspite of a large incidence of Income Tax this year, the Profit After Tax
(PAT) grew by 88%. Such a large scale growth in botiom line has been
made possible through (A) An improvement in revenue mix with service
and software going up from 42% to 56% and; (B) A rigid control on
“Administration and other expenses” which have been contained at the
previous year level. The philosophy of the company has always been the
stress on the bottom line and this has been truly reflected in the results of
the current year.

Future Outlook

To survive a new-age battlefield, the Indian business enterprise needs to
ev=lye an e-strategy. The road map to e-enablement entails evolving of
f.  step approach:

1. Create a reliable and flexible network

2. Ensure that the network is secure

3. Monitor and manage the network round the clock; and
4. Add e-commerce application to the network.

Your company has been following the same road map in diversifying its
service offerings. Having achieved considerable progress in the area of
Enterprise Networking and e-secure, your company has already taken
initiatives in the area of monitoring and management of information
Technology Networks and has also undertaken development of network-
ing related softwares. We are pleased to inform you that your company
has received encouraging response in both these areas and visions itself
to grow these businesses by leaps and bounds as it has done in the case
of Enterprise Networking and e-secure. Having proven its presence in all
four layers as stated above your company is seen by the customers as a
One-stop-shop in e-enablement.

As a subsidiary of global enterprise i.e. HCL Technologies Ltd. your
company has gained larger access into the global market and has already
started making inroads in the global e-business. You will be pleased to
know that your company has established units in the Software Technology
Parks in the five cities in India.

Finance

We are pleased to inform that your company has been successiul in
making itself a “Zero Debt Company” through its internal accruals.This has
been achieved despite pressing need to maintain higher working capital
level to cater to increased business volume. Company’s present business
requires extensive usage of Non-fund based banking facilities like Letter of
Credit and Bank Guarantees. Our bankers have always supported us in
extending these increased requirements at very competitive rates.

Directors

Shri Vineet Nayyar retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible offers himself for reappoiniment. Board
recommends his reappointment.

Shri Ajai Chowdhry resigned from the Board during the year.

Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for the valuable services
provided by Shri Ajai Chowdhry to the growth of the Company.

Auditors

M/s BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi retires at the conclu-
sion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible offers
themselves for reappointment.

Personnel

The Board wishes to place on record their appreciation of the contribution
made by all the employees to the operations and achievements of the
Company during the year under review. Information required Under
Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 as amended by the Compa-
nies Act, 1988 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules,
1975 is appended hereto and forms part of this report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings/Outgo

The information required Under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act,
1956 read with the Companies (Disclosures of Particuiars in the Report of
the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 with respect to this matter is ap-
pended hereto and forms part of this Report.

Acknowledgement

The Directors wish to thank the Government Authorities, Financial
Institutions, Bankers and Shareholders for their co-operation and assist-
ance extended to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Place : Noida Chairman
Date : 17th July, 2000

Information relating to conservation of Energy, Technology Absorp-
tion and Foreign Exchange earning / outgo, forming part of the
Directors’ Report in terms of section 217 (1) (e) of the Companies
Act, 1956.
A Conservation of Energy

The Company’s operations do not involve energy consumption.
B. Technology Absorption

The companies operations are not based on any outside

technology.

C. Total Foreign Exchange (Rs. In lacs)

Year Ended  Period ended
30, June 2000 June 30, 1999
(Six Months)

18.45
98.86

257.22
124.00

Earned :
Used:




AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of

HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Comnet Systems
and Services Limited as at 30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss Account
of the Company for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:

1.

Place: San Diego
Date: July 7, 2000

As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 1988, issued by the Company Law Board in terms
of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4
and 5 of the said Order.

Further to the comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph
1 above:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by the
law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of the books;

(c) the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d} in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss

Account comply with the Accounting Standards referred to
in sub section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act,
1958, to the extent applicable; and

(e} in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the accounts
give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956,
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view:

(i) in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 30 June 2000; and

(ii) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Rajesh Jain
Partner

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date)

1.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of its fixed
assets. According to the information and explanations given to us,
the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
during the year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
1o the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. The
discrepancies noticed on verification were materiat and have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

The fixed assets of the Company have not been revalued during
the year.

The stocks of finished goods have been physically verified by the
management during the year. In respect of stock lying with third
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of stocks
followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and nature of its business.

The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of stocks as
compared to book records were not material and have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.
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10.

11.

12.
13.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

On the basis of our examination of stock records, we are of the
opinion that, the valuation of stocks is fair and proper in accord-
ance with the normally accepted accounting principles, and is on
the same basis as in the preceding year.

The Company has not taken or granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956, or from the companies under the same management as
defined by sub-section (1B) of section 370 of the Companies Act,
1956.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans except loans to employees, who are repaying
principal and interest thereon, wherever applicable, as stipulated.
In one of the cases, where principal amount is not being paid as
stipulated, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for
recovering the principal.

in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, having regard to the explanations that certain items
finished goods, plant and machinery, equipment and other assets—
purchased are specific to the Company's technical requirements,
in respect of which comparable alternative quotations are not
considered necessary, there are adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business for the purchase of finished goods, plant
and machinery and other assets and for the sale of goods.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the transactions for sale of goods and services made
in pursuance of contracts and arrangements entered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
and aggregating during the year to Rs. 50,000 or more in respect
of each party, have been made at prices which are reasonable
having regard to prevailing market prices for such goods or
services. The Company has no transactions for purchase of
goods made in pursuance of contracts and arrangements entered
in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

As explained to us, the Company has a regular procedure for the
determination of unserviceable or damaged stocks. Adequate
provision has been made in these accounts for the loss on the
items so determined.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Company’s operations do not generate any scraps or by-
products.

The Company has an internal audit system. In our opinion, the
scope of work needs to be strengthened to be commensurate with
its size and nature of its business.

As informed to us, the provisions of clause 4A(xvi) regarding
maintenance of cost records are not applicable to the Company.

The Company regularly deposited Provident Fund and Employees
State Insurance dues with the appropriate authorities during the
year.

As informed to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, wealth tax, sales tax and customs duty were out-
standing, as at 30 June 2000, for a period more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, no personal expenses
have been charged to the revenue accounts, other than those
payable under contractual obligations or in accordance with
generally accepted business practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company within the meaning
of clause (o) of sub-section (1) of section 3 of the Sick Industrial
Companies {Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

In respect of Company’s service activities, we further report as
follows:



20.1  in our opinion, the Company has a reasonable system of recording Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000
receipts, iﬁsues and consumption of material and stores commen- (All amounts in Indian rupees)
surate with its size and nature of its business. The Company does .
not have a system of allocation of materials consumed to the Sched:‘l)e 30Yj:;:r;ggg 1'?; nt::aerpirs')gg
GEIEHYE jous, ' 10 30 June 1999
20.2 as the services rendered are billed to customers at pre-determined Income
rates, the allocation of man-hours utilised to the relative jobs has Sales and services 1 1144375138 471.081.038
not been considered necessary by the Company. Other income 12 ) 19:531 :366 34:220:313
20.3 in our opinion, there is a reasonable system of authorisation at 1,163,906,504 505,301,351
proper levels, and an adequate system of internal control com- Expenditure
mensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its Cost of sales 13 494,519,958 260,634,228
business, for issue of stores to jobs. Personnel expenses 14 96,561,941 39,319,365
21.  Inrespect of Company’s trading activities, damaged goods have Administration and
been determined and adequate provision has been made in the other expenses 15 291,346,349 139,168,669
accounts for the loss arising on items so determined. Finance charges 16 27,073,240 17,764,482
Depreciation 60,357,693 8,236,906
969,859,181 465,123,650
For BSR & Co, Profit before tax 194,047,323 40,177,701
Chartered Accountants Provision for income tax (47,000,000) -
Place : San Diego Rajesh Jain Provision for wealth tax 4 ((;3106,;84750% i (14;:;519(?2)
Data1-.Jgly 7., 2000 Rarpes Earlier years income tax paid - (977,615)
Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000 Profit after tax 147,016,453 39,155,487
(All amounts in Indian rupees) Balance brought forward (191,944,503) (231,099,990)
Balance carried forward
Sched,'j"f_ 20 Jin egg:; a0 gt eﬁ;;; o the balance sheet (44,928,050) (191,944,503)
Sources of funds Notes to the accounts 17
As per our report attached
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 1 128,093,690 127,630,890
Reserves and surplus 2 195,500,000 195,500,000 For BSR & Co. For HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited
323,593,690 323,130,890 Chartered Accountants
Loan funds
Secured loans 3 . 153,202,368 Rajesh Jain Vineet Nayyar Vineet Nayar
Unsecured loans 4 177,733 5,177,733 Partner Director Wholetime Director
323,771,423 481,510,991 4 !
Application of funds Verinder Khashu Sandlp Gupta
Company Secretary Associate Vice
Fixed assets 5 President (Finance)
Gross block 245,302,880 219,402,618
Less: Accumulated Place: San Diego Place: Noida
“apreciation (79,005,553) (34,532,127) Date: July 7, 2000 Date: July 4, 2000
.et block 166,297,327 184,870,491
Capital work in progress 773,004 93,500
Capital goods in transit 8,164,593 -
175,234,924 184,963,991 Schedules forming part of the accounts
Current assets, loans and advances (All amounts in Indian rupees)
Inventories 6 115,253,811 66,176,222 As at
Sundry debtors 7 382,785,466 212,029,179 30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Cash and bank balances 8 99,900,714 89,410,848 Schedule 1: Share capital
Loans and advances 9 55,515,506 48,336,217 .
653455497 415952466  Authorised
Less: Current liabilities 20,000,000 (Previous period
and provisions 10 (549,847,048) (311,349,969) 20,000,000) equity shares of
Net current assets 103,608,449 104,602,497  Rs.10each 200,000,000 _ 200,000,000
Profit and loss account 44,928,050 191,944,503 Issued, subscribed and paid up
323,771,423 481,510,994 12,809,369 (Previous period
Notes to the accounts 17 12,763,089) equity shares of
As per our report attached Rs 10 each, 128,093,690 127,630,890
For BSR & Co. For HCL Comnet Systems and fully paid up
Chartered Accountants Services Limited [Out of the above, 12,793,904
Rajesh Jain Vineet Nayyar Vineet Nayar ﬁg:gt%;?{%isfégﬁ‘gﬁ)ﬁeze"°d nil ) are
Partner Director Wholetime Director Limited, the holding company]
128,093,690 127,630,890

Place: San Diego
Date: July 7, 2000

Verinder Khashu
Company Secretary

Place: Noida
Date: July 4,

Sandip Gupta
Associate Vice

President (Finance)
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Schedule 2: Reserves and surplus

As at Additions Deductions As at
1 July 1999 30 June 2000
Share premium
account 185,500,000 - - 195,500,000
(195,500,000) (195,500,000)
Note
Previous period figures are in brackets.
As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 3: Secured loans
From financial institutions
Term loan - 76,000,000
From banks
Term loan - 8,965,498
Foreign currency loan - 67,857,817
Others - 323,336
Interest accrued and due - 55,717
- 153,202,368

Notes

1 Term loans from a financial institutions and a bank are secured by
equitable mortgage of the Company's property at Mumbai and all
movable properties except book debts subject to prior charge by
hypothecation of tangible current assets in favour of Company’s
working capital for fund and non fund facilities.The term loans are also
secured by personal guarantee of two directors.

2 Short term loans, cash credit and non fund based facilities for working
capital from the banks are secured by hypothecation and/ or pledge of
entire tangible current assets of the Company, book debts and other
receivables in respectof six banks and in addition, second charge on
movable properties including plant and machinery in favour of two
banks. Both fund and non fund base facilities are guaranteed by two
directors in favour of one bank and by one director in favour of an
another bank.

3 The charge ranks pari passu respectively amongst the lenders stated
in 1 & 2 above.

Schedule 4: Unsecured ioans

Inter corporate deposit - 5,000,000
Interest accrued and due 177,733 177,733
177,733 5,177,733
Schedule 5: Fixed assets
As at Additions Disposal/ As at
1 July 1999 during the year adjustments 30 June 2000
Gross block
Building 62,211,530 - - 62,211,530
Plant and
machinery 89,837,997 63,285,040 45,683,684 107,439,353
Office
equipment 50,570,445 17,129,945 11,591,220 56,109,170
Furniture
and fixtures 9,717,522 2,506,465 1,229,132 10,994,855
Motor
vehicles 7,065,122 2,360,317 877,467 8,547,972
219,402,616 85,281,767 59,381,503 245,302,880
Previous
period 213,719,937 22,771,348 17,088,666 219,402,619
Accumulated depreciation
Building 3,509,887 3,559,402 - 7,069,289
Plant and
machinery 13,867,222 24,234,859 9,704,616 28,397,465
Office
equipment 12,522,669 25,527,838 5,106,287 32,944,220
Furniture
and fixtures 3,359,689 4,321,312 859,603 6,821,398

Motor
vehicles 1,272,661 2,714,282 213,762 3,773,181
34,532,128 60,357,693 15,884,268 79,005,553
Previous
period 27,432,768 8,236,906 1,137,546 34,532,128
Net block 184,870,488 166,297,327
Previous
period 186,287,169 184,870,491
As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 6: Inventories
Project items 70,222,988 54,283,836
Work in progress 103,371 934,681
Goods in transit 44 927 452 10,957,705
115,253,811 _ 66,176,222
Schedule 7: Sundry debtors (Unsecured)
Considered good
Outstanding for more
than six months 55,069,344 19,029,294
Other debts (refer note) 327,716,122 192,999,885
Considered doubtful
Outstanding for more
than six months 6,464,925 35,005,619
Other debts 3,938,754 1,917,000
Less: Provision for
doubtful debts (10,403,679) (36,922,619)
382,785,466 212,029,179

Note
Includes Rs. 20,011,015 recoverable from HCL Technologies America Inc.
(previous period Rs Nil), a company under the same management within
the meaning of section 370(1-B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Schedule 8: Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand 252,905 244,113
Cheques in hand 20,019,946 1,556,609
Balances with scheduled banks
- On current accounts 63,750,162 41,149,156
- On fixed deposit accounts
(refer note) 15,877,701 46,460,970
99,900,714 89,410,848

Note
Includes Rs. 15,877,701 (previous period Rs 39,960,970) pledged with
banks in respect of guarantees issued by them.

Schedule 9: Loans and advances

(unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances receivable in cash or in kind
or value to be received

- Considered good (refer note) 55,192,967 36,344,105

- Considered doubtful 2,261,635 2,261,635

Interest accrued but not due 322,539 1,406,908

Advance income tax

(net of provision for income-tax) - 10,585,204
57,777,141 50,597,852

Less: Provision for doubtful

advances (2,261,635) (2,261,635)
55,515,506 48,336,217

Note

Includes due from officers of the company Rs. 428,725
(Previous period Rs 595,381).

Maximum amount due at any time during the year Rs. 1,149,496
(Previous period Rs 1,480,547 ).



As at
30 June 1999

As at
30 June 2000

Schedule 10: Current liabilities and provisions

Current liabilities

Sundry creditors

- Due to small scale industrial
undertakings (refer note)

- Others

Other liabilities

Interest accrued but not due

Unaccrued income

Advances from customers

Unclaimed dividend

Provisions

Income tax (net of

advance tax)
“Wealth tax

WNarranty

Retirement benefits

Note

2,353,353 608,995
242,434,936 136,523,957
5,251.242 2,966,948
1,106,011 5,952,930
155,973,687 134,610,957
119,215,145 14,562,457
106,653 106,653
526,441,027 295,332,897
18,102,523 =
30,870 81,895
2,790,000 13,578,661
2,482,628 2,356,516
23,406,021 16,017,072
549,847,048 311,349,969

Includes Rs.182,866 in respect of interest on delayed payments to small

scale industrial undertakings.

Schedule 11: Sales and services

Network-project items
Network-installation,
usage and other services
Software and related
technical services

Schedule 12: Other income

Interest [Tax deducted at
source Rs. 105,607
(Previous period Rs.28,123 )]
~nsurance claim received
lent
Liabilities/provisions/credit
balances written back
Miscellaneous income

Schedule 13: Cost of sales

Opening stock
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing stock

Year ended For the Period

30 June 2000 1 January 1999 to

30 June 1999

581,311,639 270,777,962

473,683,916 200,303,076
89,379,583

1,144,375,138 471,081,038

1,733,067 1,505,870
427,617 798,234

- 114,118
15,172,738 27,712,719
2,197,944 4,089,372

19,531,366 34,220,313

Schedule 14: Personnel expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident
and other funds

Staff welfare

54,283,836 96,114,970
510,459,110 218,803,094
(70,222,988) (54,283,836)
494,519,958 260,634,228

87,063,395 35,727,402

4,627,792 2,014,424
4,870,754 1,577,539

96,561,941 39,319,365

Schedule 15: Administration and other expenses

Rent

Electricity and water
Warranty

Insurance

Repairs and mainienance
- Plant and machinery

- Others

Communication

17,623,310 6,905,420
2,849,426 984,559
= 13,578,661
5,823,883 1,658,053
275,625 280,000
29,035,207 9,662,368
15,123,059 5,649,120
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Travel and conveyance
Business promotion
Legal and professional
charges

Lease rent

Printing and stationery
Rates and taxes
Advertising and publicity
Books and periodicals
Recruitment, training and
development
Miscellaneous expenses
Fixed assets scrapped/
written off

Bad debts

Provision for doubtful debts
License and transponder fees
Loss on sale of assets
Exchange loss (net)
Freight and cartage
Commission on sales

Schedule 16: Finance charges
Interest - term loans

- others
Bank charges

34,975,681 13,189,846
823,167 853,694
20,610,571 4,982,473
2,234,496 1,819,760
3,133,749 1,442,292
3,418,502 502,385
3,221,165 414,596
189,903 98,211
12,063,602 3,152,306
4,606,714 3,213,742
42,542,617 15,785,066
2,311,291 1,199,346
18,944,560 19,830,316
61,638,454 24,465,218
270,486 -
1,773,120 5,170,332
6,169,590 -
1,688,171 4,330,905
291,346,349 139,168,669
6,975,861 7,758,578
11,120,864 6,113,189
8,976,515 3,892,715
27,073,240 17,764,482

Schedule 17: Notes to the accounts

1. Significant accounting policies

(i) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, accounting standards issued by the
institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956, as adopted consistently by the
Company. All income and expenditure having a material bearing
on the financial statements are recognised on accrual basis.

(ii) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the
generally accepted accounting principles requires management 0
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Examples of
such estimates include provision for doubtful debts and estimated
useful life of fixed assets. Actual results could differ from these

estimates.
(iii) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition including
incidental costs related to acquisition and installation. Fixed
assets under construction, advances paid towards acquisition of
fixed assets and cost of assets not put to use before the year-end,
are disclosed as capital work in progress.

(iv) Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straight-line
method based on estimated useful lives, as estimated by the
management. Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for
assets purchased/sold during the year. Assets costing less than
Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. The
management’s estimates of the useful life of the various fixed

assets is as follows:




)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Life (in years)
Buildings 20

Plant and machinery (including office

equipment, air conditioners and electrical installations)

Computers and software

Hard furnishing to employees

4
3
Furniture and fixtures 4
3
Vehicles 5

5

VSAT equipment on hire
Inventories

Inventories is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, the
cost being calculated on the basis of weighted average price
method.

Revenue recognition

Sales are recorded on despatch of goods to customer and exclude
sales tax. Income from services is recognised as follows:

. Revenue from installation services is recognised on the
completion of installation activity in accordance with the terms
of the customer agreement.

. Revenue from network access charges like bandwidth
charges, DOT/ WPC charges are recognised based on the
activation of satellite equipment on a pro-rata basis over the
period of contract.

o Revenue from maintenance services are recognised on a pro-
rata basis over the period of contract.

Anticipated losses, if any, upto the completion of contract are
recognised immediately. Interest on the deployment of surplus
funds is recognised using the time-proportion method, based on
interest rates implicit in the transaction.

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions
are made for all known losses and liabilities. The leave encash-
ment and gratuity of the company is provided on the basis of an
actuarial vatuation.

Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities are translated at year-end rates and resultant gains/
losses on foreign exchange translations other than those relating to
fixed assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Gains/
losses on the translation of foreign exchange liabilities incurred to
acquire fixed assets are adjusted in carrying cost of such fixed
assets. The cost of forward exchange contract is amortised over
the period of the contract.

Retirements benefits

Contributions to provident fund are deposited with a recognised
provident fund. Provision for gratuity and leave encashment is
made on the basis of an actuarial valuation.

Warranty

Provision for warranty is calculated on the basis of unexpired
warranty period of VSAT's installed during the year, which is
caiculated on the basis of annual maintenance cost of VSAT's.

Taxation

Provision for tax is made on the basis of taxabie income for the
previous year ended on 31 March and estimated taxable income
for the three months ended 30 June. Taxable income for the three
months ended 30 June is dependent upon the estimated results of
subsequent nine months ending on 31 March of the following fiscal
year.

During the year ended 30 June 2000, the Company revised the
estimated useful life of the fixed assets. Accordingly, depreciation
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12.

13.

on fixed assets has been provided on the straight-line method,
based on useful lives as estimated by the management, which
have been disclosed in note 1(iv) of schedule 17 forming part of
accounts. In the earlier years depreciation was calculated on the
straight-line method at the rates prescribed in schedule XV to the
Companies Act, 1956 except for hard furnishing (31.6% and
33.33%) and leased out VSAT equipment (19 & 23%). As a result
of the change in estimated useful lives, depreciation for the year is
higher and the net block and profit for the year is lower by Rs.
41,285,517

Additions to fixed assets include exchange difference capitalised
amounting to Rs. 356,362 (Previous period: deletions to fixed
assets amounting to Rs. 33,705).

During the year ended 30 June 2000, plant and machinery
amounting to Rs. 34,247,884 (net block) have been written off in
the books of account, as in opinion of the management, these
assets do not have any further economic useful life. (Previous
period Rs. 15,785,066).

The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of fixed assets -
amounting to Rs. 8,293,635 (net block), have been written off in the
books of account. (Previous period Nil).

The future lease obligations in respect of assets taken on lease are
Rs. 674,578. (Previous period Rs. 6,694,192).

The estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for (net of advances) is Rs.
26,396,121 (Previous period Rs. 20,900,000).

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts —
Rs 704,115 (previous year — nil).

Year ended For the period
30 June 2000 1 January 1999
to 30 June 1999

Managerial remuneration
Salary 2,538,000 1,656,500

Contribution to provident

and other funds 86,400 60,508
Other perquisites 875,954 178,531
3,500,354 1,895,539

Noie: Managerial remuneration excludes provision for leave
encashment and gratuity.

Payment to auditors

Statutory audit 400,000 350,000
Tax audit 200,000 150,000
Other services 1,350,000 -
Out of pocket expenses
(excluding service tax) 36,900 -
1,986,900 500,000*
* paid to previous auditors.
CIF value of imports
Trading goods 228,492,548 116,757,504
Capital goods 48,537,429 1,188,649
277,029,977 117,946,153
Expenditure in foreign currency (on cash basis)
Travel 1,112,260 2,772,928
Annual maintenance contracts 10,776,513 7,113,721
Others 511,369 -
12,400,142 9,886,649
Earnings in foreign currency
Income from software and
technical services 22,861,583 -
Sale of material 1,986,886 -
Commission 873,948 1,845,782
25,722,417 1,845,782




14. Particulars of purchases, sales and closing stock of goods dealt in by the company:
(as certified by the management) B
Opening Stock Purchases Sales Closing Stock
Qty Value Qty Vaiue Qty Value Qty Value
(Nos.) (Rs.) {Nos.) (Rs.) (Nos.) (Rs.) (Nos.) (Rs.)

Satellite Communication Equipment

Basic VSAT
Equipment 23 14,028,041 499 196,725,083 402 120 +35,985,273
(52) (35,779,453) (83) (97,134,608) (112) (23) (14,028,041)
246,611,606
(141,783,183)
Antenna 25 1,542,655 684 32,256,807 631 78 3,358,580
(66) (4,336,335) (59) (8,263,892) (100) (25) (1,542,655)

Data Communication Equipment

Hub 107 2,908,913 59 2,118,837 148 18 596,521
(106) (2,954,203) (132) (2,108,825) (131) (107) (2,908,913)
Router 13 454,344 135 1,879,651 141 186,089,514 7 333,776
(17) (2,625,023) (22) (3,775,755) (26) (76,539,675) (13) (454,344)
Others 409,894 142,847,110 4,588,169
(6,289,377) (59,863,344) (409,894)
Radio Communication Equipment
Radio
Equipment 111 3,455,400 638 15,110,227 626 123 2,773,067
(354) (2,063,860) (370) (22,732,154) (613) (111) (3,455,400)
17,864,993
(25,833,805)
Others 469,086 2,261,615 -
(292,745) (839,996) (469,086)
Customer care organisation
Eicon
Cards - - 685 32,270,357 672 42,472,139 13 1,383,375
6) (406,025) (132) (9,069,230) (138) (11,525,567) - -
Others 30,121,017 5,925,055 - 19,082,960
(41,367,949) (5,628,306) (5,785,247) (30,121,017)
Others 894,486 70,985,119 88,273,387 2,121,267
- (9,386,984) (10,145,257) (894,486)
54,283,836 510,459,110 581,311,639 70,222,988
(96,114,970) (218,803,094) (270,777,962) (54,283,836)
Notes:

Previous period figures are given in brackets.
Quantities have been shown wherever determinable.

15. Previous period figures have been reclassified / re-grouped to conform to current year’s classification.
16. Current year figures are not comparable with that of the previous period as the previous period was for less than twelve months.

For HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited

Vineet Nayyar Vineet Nayar

Director Wholetime director
Verinder Khashu Sandip Gupta

Company Secretary Associate Vice President (Finance)
Place: Noida

Date: July 4, 2000
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

Registration details
Registration No. 55-56665
30 June 2000

Capital raised during the year (Rupees in thousands)

State Code 55
Balance Sheet Date

Public issue Rights issue
Not applicable Not Applicable
Bonus issue Private placement

Not Applicable 463

Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Rupees in
thousands)

Total Liabilities
323,772

Sources of Funds
Paid-Up capital

Total Assets
323,772

Reserves & Surplus

128,094 195,500

Secured loans Unsecured loans
Nil 178

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets Investments
175,235 Nil

Net Current Assets Misc. Expenditure
108,609 Nil

Accumulated Losses

44,928

Performance of company (Rupees in thousands)

Turnover Total expenditure

1,163,906 969,859

Profit before tax Profit after tax
194,047 147,016
Earnings per share (Rs) Dividend rate %
11.48 Nil

Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company
(as per monetary terms)

Product description: VSAT terminals
Iltem code (ITC code): 8525201110
Product description: Satellite
communication
equipment
item code (ITC code): 851750

For HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited

Vineet Nayyar
Director

Verinder Khashu
Company Secretary

“Jace: Noida
~; July 4, 2000

Vineet Nayar

Whole time Director

Sandip Gupta

Associate Vice President ( Finance)
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Intelicent India Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fifth Annual Report of
the Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS ( Rs. in millions )

( For the year ended) (For the period

ended)

30/6/2000 30/6/1999

Turnover 68 36
Profit before Taxation 22 28
Rrovision for Taxation 01 0
~rofit after Tax 21 28
Profit brought from earlier years 28 0
Profit transfered to Balance Sheet 49 28

Operations Review

During the year under review the turnover of the company rose to Rs. 68
millions as against Rs. 36 millions in the previous financial period
registering a growth of 87%. The Profit for the year ended 30™ June, 2000
is Rs. 21 millions as against Rs. 28 millions in the previous period. In
order to further strengthen financial & liquidity position of the company,
your directors wish to plough back the entire profits in to the business
operations and hence do not recommend dividend for the year under
review.

Directors

During the year under review M/s. Ajai Chowdhry, Rita Gupta and
Neelesh Agarwal, Directors resigned from the Board of Directors of the
Company effective May 24,2000 Your Directors place on record their
appreciation for the valuable services rendered by them during their
tenure as Directors of the Company.

During the year under review M/s. Anil Chanana, Sujit Baksi and Rajiv

Sodhi were co-opted as Additional Directors of the Company on March
71,2000 and they hold office upto the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

. ne Company has received notices under Section 257 of the Companies

Act 1956,proposing their candidature for being appointed as Directors of

the Company.

Fixed Deposit

Company has not invited / repaid any fixed deposit during the year under
review.

Auditors

M/S BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire as Auditor of the Com-
pany at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and have
confirmed their eligibility and willingness to accept the office of Auditors, if
reappointed.

Particulars of Employees

There are no employees of the Company drawing remuneration as per
the limits prescribed by Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act,1956.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption And Foreign
Exchange Earnings/Outgo

As the Company has no manufacturing operations, there are no particu-
lars to be furnished with regard to conservation of Energy / Technology
absorption. Foreign exchange earnings aggregated to Rs. 66 million
(previous year Rs. 36 million) and expenditure in foreign currency
aggregated to Rs. 41 million (previous year Rs. 6 million).
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For Intelicent India Limited

New Delhi Director Director

Date : July 31, 2000

Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Intelicent india Limited
[formerly HCL James Martin (India) Limited]

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Intelicent india Limited
[formerly HCL James Martin (India) Limited] as at 30 June 2000 and the
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:

1. As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Audi-
tor’s Report) Order, 1988 issued by the Company Law Board in
terms of Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in para-
graphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

2. Further to the comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph
1 above:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of the books;

the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss
Account comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in
sub section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956,
to the extent applicable; and

in our opinion and to the best of our information and accord-
ing to the explanations given to us, the accounts give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view :

(i) in the case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 30 June 2000; and

(i) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

(b)

(©
(d)

(e)

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Annexure to the Auditors’ report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date.)

1. The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of its fixed
assets. As informed to us, the fixed assets were physically
verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

2. The fixed assets of the Company have not been revalued during
the year.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

15.1

15.2

16.

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

The Company has not taken or granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
or from companies under the same management as defined by
sub-section (1-B) of section 370 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has adequate internal control proce-
dures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business, for purchase of equipment and other assets. There
are no sale of goods.

There are no transactions of purchase of goods and materials or
sale of goods, materials and services, made in pursuance of
contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Company’s operations do not generate any scrap or by-
products.

As the paid up capital and average annual turnover did not exceed
the stipulated minimum at the commencement of the financial year,
the internal audit requirements are not yet applicable to the
Company.

The Company being a service company, the provisions of clause
4A(xvi) regarding maintenance of cost records are not applicable.

As informed to us, the provisions relating to Provident Fund and
Employees State Insurance are not yet appiicable to the Company.

According to information and expianations given to us, there are
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax, wealth
tax, sales tax and customs duty outstanding, as at 30 June 2000,
for a period exceeding six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, no personal expenses
have been charged to the revenue accounts, other than those
payable under contractual obligations or in accordance with
generally accepted business practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company within the meaning
of clause (0) of sub-section (1) of section 3 of the Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

In respect of Company’s service activities, we further report as
follows:

as informed to us, the service activities of the Company do not
involve consumption of any materials or stores.

since the services rendered are billed to customers at pre-
determined rates, the allocation of man-hours utilised to the
relative jobs has not been considered necessary by the Company.

As is apparent, the other clauses of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain
Partner

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Schedule As at As at
No. 30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 1 1,060,700 1,060,700
Share application money
pending allotment 2 8,323 8,323
Reserves and surplus 3 49,317,380 28,318,879
50,386,403 29,387,902
Application of funds
Fixed assets
Gross block 4 572,963 407,491
Less : Accumulated depreciation (369,535) (321,823)
Net block 203,428 85,668
Current assets, loans and advances
Sundry debtors 5 45,939,477 36,274,80C
Cash and bank balances 6 15,630,916 1,058,082
Loans and advances 7 13,125 -
61,583,518 37,332,882
Less: Current liabilities
and provisions 8 (11,463,330) (8,104,355)
Net current assets 50,120,188 29,228,527
Miscellaneous expenditure 9 62,787 73,707
( to the extent not written off
or adjusted)
50,386,403 29,387,902

Notes to the accounts 13
As per our report attached

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For intelicent India Limited

Rajesh Jain
Partner

Anil Chanana
Director

Rajiv Sodhi
Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Schedule Year ended For the period
No. 30June 2000 1 April 1998 to
30 June 1999
Income
Software services 65,759,044 31,274,800
Other income 10 1,957,333 -
67,716,377 36,274,800
Expenditure —
Cost of software development 11 42,756,748 7,012,398
Administrative and other expenses 12 3,102,496 743,041
Depreciation 47,712 75,863
Miscellaneous expenditure written off 10,920 13,650
45,917,876 7,844,952
Profit before taxation 21,798,501 28,429,848
Less: Provision for income tax (800,000) -
Profit after tax 20,998,501 28.429,848
Balance bought forward 28,318,879 {110,969)
Balance carried forward -
to balance sheet 49,317,380 28,318,879




Notes to the accounts 13

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

As per our report attached As at As at
. B 30 June 2000 30 June 1999
For BSR & Co. For intelicent India Limited Schedule 5: Sundry debtors
Chartered Accountants ;
c , Unsecured, considered good
Rajesh Jain Anil Chanana Rajiv Sodhi ) 3
Partner Director Director (r)1utstand|ng fﬁ" less
) ) ] ) than six months 45,939,477 36,274,800
II;Iaccj:a New Delhi Placg. New Delhi [Due from body corporate
ate: Date: under the same management -
Intelicent Inc.
Schedules forming part of the accounts Rs. 20,821,452 (Previous
(All amounts in Indian Rupees) period Rs. 36,274,800)]
As at As at “AR 020 A7 AR DTA BN
45,939,477 6,274,
30 June 2000 30 June 1999 3 800
Schedule 1: Share capital
Authorised Schedule 6: Cash and bank balances
1,000,000 (previous period Balance with scheduled
~900,000) equity shares of banks
5. 10 each 10,000,000 10,000,000 - in current accounts 1,780,916 1,058,082
- in deposit accounts 13,850,000 .
Issued, subscribed and paid-up 15,630,916 1,058,082
106,070 (previous period
106,070) equity shares of Schedule 7: Loans and advances
Rs 10 each, fully paid up 1,060,700 1,060,700  Unsecured, considered good
[Includes 106,000 held by Advances recoverable in
HCL Capital Private Limited, cash or in kind or for vaiue 13,125 -
Bermuda, formerly HJM Holdings Private Limited, to be received
Bermuda, the holding company. 13935 -
The ultimate holding company = =
is HCL Technologies Limited.] 1,060,700 1,060,700
Schedule 8: Current liabilities and provisions
Schedule 2 : Share application money pending allotment Current liabilities
Received from HCL Capital Sundry creditors 10,744,372 7,713,305
Private Limited, Bermuda‘ Other liabilities . 391 ,050
formerly 8,323 8,323  Provision
HJM Holdings Private Limited, Income tax (net of agvance
Bermuda, the holding company tax Rs. 81 ,)042, previous
period - nil 718,958 =
8,323 8,323
Schedule 3: Reserves and surplus 11,469,930 8,104,355
Brofit and loss account 49,317,380 28,318,879 ! :
49,317,380 28,318,879 Schedule 9 : Miscellaneous expenditure
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Opening balance 73,707 87,357
Less : written off during
the year/ period (10,920) (13,650)
~62,787 73,707
Schedule 10 : Other income
Interest on fixed deposits 504,967 -
(Tax deducted at source on above
Rs. 81,042, previous year - nil)
Exchange gain 1,401,366 -
Excess provision written back 51,000 -
s 1,957,333 -
Schedule 4: Fixed Assets
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
Gross Block Depreciation Net block
As at Additions As at As at Depreciation As at As at As at
1 July 1999 30 June 2000 1 July 1999 for the year 30 June 2000 30 June 2000 | 30 June 1999
Computers 392,377 165,472 557,849 320,878 45,147 366,025 191,824 71,499
Furniture 15,114 - 15,114 945 2,565 3,510 11,604 14,169
: 407,491 165,472 572,963 321,823 47,712 369,535 203,428 85,668
Previous
period 392,377 15,114 407,491 245,960 75,863 321,823 85,668 146,417
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Schedule 11 : Cost of software development

Pers:

Salaries, wages and other allowances 2,191,024 562,398
Staff welfare 7,615 -
Software development
charges 40,558,109 6,450,000
42,756,748 7,012,398
Schedule 12 : Administration and other expenses
Travelling and conveyance 1,634,038 251,868
Printing and stationery 30,159 30,513
Auditors’ remuneration 200,000 51,500
Rent 737,947 273,000
Communication 196,118 82,560
Entertainment and business promotion 126,350 -
Bank charges 14,049 -
Repairs and maintenance - others 48,960 -
Miscellaneous expenses 114,875 53,600
3,102,496 743,041

onnel expenses

Schedules forming part of the accounts
Schedule 13: Notes to accounts

1.
M

(i

(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the Compa-
nies Act, 1956, as adopted consistently by the Company. All income
and expenditure having a material bearing on the financial state-
ments are recognised on an accrual basis.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and labilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Examples of
such estimates include estimates of expected contract costs to be
incurred to complete software deveiopment, and estimated useful
life of fixed assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from software developed on time and material basis is
recognised in accordance with the terms of agreement. Revenue from
fixed price contracts is recognised in accordance with the percentage
completion method under which the sales value of performance including
earnings thereon are recognised on the basis of effort incurred in respect
of each contract as a proportion of total effort expected to be incurred.

Anticipated iosses, if any, upon completion of contract are recognised
immediately.

Interest on the deployment of surplus funds is recognised using the time -
proportion method, based on interest rates implicit in the transaction.

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are
made for all known losses and liabilities. Provisions are made for
future unforeseeable factors, which may affect the ultimate profit on
fixed price software development contracts. The cost of services for
software development is charged to revenue in the same year.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition including incidental
costs related to acquisition and installation.

Depreciation
Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on written down

value basis at the rates prescribed in Schedule X!V to the Compa-
nies Act, 1956.

100

(vii) Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Realised gains and losses on
foreign exchange transactions during the year are recognised in the
profit and loss account. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are
translated at year end rates and resultant gains/losses on foreign
exchange translations other than those relating to fixed assets are
recognised in the profit and loss account. Exchange gain/loss
relating to fixed assets are adjusted in the cost of concerned fixed
assets.

(viii) Miscellaneous expenditure

Preliminary expenses are being written off over a period of 10 years
from the year of incorporation.

Auditors’ remuneration

Year ended  For the period
30 June 2000 1 April 1998 to
30 June 197
Statutory audit 150,000 51,5007
(*includes Rs. 1,500 paid to
erstwhile auditors)
Tax audit 50,000 -
200,000 51,500
Earnings in foreign currency
Software development 65,759,044 36,274,800
Interest 302,359 =
66,061,403 36,274,800
Expenditure in foreign currency
Consultancy charges 40,558,109 6,450,000
40,558,109 6,450,000
C.1.F. Value of imports
Capital goods 165,472 -
165,472 -

Previous period figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever
necessary to conform with current year’s classification.

Previous period figures are not comparable with that of current ye
as previous period was for more than twelve months.

For Intelicent India Limited
Rajiv Sodhi
Director

Anil Chanana
Director

Piace: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General
Business Profile

Registration Details
Registration No:
Balance Sheet date:

69891
30 June 2000

State Code: 55

Capital raised during the year (Rs. in thousands)

Public Issue Rights issue

Not applicable Not applicable
Bonus Issue Private placement
Not applicable Not applicable



Position of mobilisation and development of funds
(Rs. in thousands)

Total Liabilities Total Assets
50,386 50,386

Sources of funds

Paid up Capital* Reserves & Surplus
1,069 49,317

Secured Loans Unsecured loans
NIL NIL

* includes Rs. 8,323 on account of share application money
pending allotment
Application of funds

Net fixed Assets Investments

203 Not applicable
Net current Assets Misc. Expenditure
50,120 63

Accumulated Losses

Not applicable

Performance of company (Rs. in thousands)
Turnover (includes other income)  Total expenditure

67,716 45,918

Profit Before Tax Profit After Tax
21,798 20,998

Earnings per share Dividend Rate %
197.96 -

Intelicent India Limited

[formerly HCL James Martin (India) Limited)]
Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s
General Business Profile

V.

Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company
(as per monetary terms)

Product description: Software
Iltem code (ITC code): 852490
For Intelicent India Limited
“il Chanana Rajiv Sodhi
.ector Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000
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HCL Capital Private Limited, Bermuda

DIRECTORS REPORT
The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2000.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(US Dollars in thousands)
Years Ended June 30,
1999
2

200

Profit /(Loss) after Tax 6

= o

CHANGE OF NAME:

During the year. your Company changed its name from HJM Holdings Pvt.
Ltd. to HCL Capital Pvt. Ltd.

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the fiscal 2000.
There has been no transfer to reserves during the year 2000.
AUDITORS:

M/s BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants continue to remain in office as
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed their eligibility and willing-
ness to accept office. if re-appointed.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

The Directors wish to thank the government authorities, customers,
vendors, and employees for their cooperation and assistance extended to
the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000 Director
AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of

HCL Capital Private Limited, Bermuda

(formerly HJM Holdings Private Limited, Bermuda)

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Capital Private

Limited, Bermuda (formerly HIM Holdings Private Limited, Bermuda) as at

30 June 2000 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that

date, annexed thereto.

We report as follows:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the company so far as appears from our examination of
the books;

(c) the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C)
of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable;
and

(e) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the accounts give the information required
by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view :

(i) in the case of Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the
company as at 30 June 2000; and

(i) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the loss of the
company for the year ended on that date.

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Rajesh Jain
Partner

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2000
( Alt amounts in USD )
As at
30 June 1999

Schedule As at
No. 30 June 2000
Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 1 12,000 -

Share application

money pending

allotment 2 - 12,000

Loan funds

Unsecured loan 3 39,000 38.000
51,000 50,000

Application of funds

Investments 4 25,000 25,000

Current assets, loans and advances

Cash at bank 5 18,264 23,579
18,264 23,57"

Less: Current liabilities 6 1,000 1,00

Net current assets 17,264 22,579

Profit and loss account 8,736 2,421
51,000 50.000

Notes to the accounts 8
As per our report attached

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For HCL Capital Private Limited, Bermuda

Rajesh Jain
Partner

Director Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2000
( All amounts in USD )

Schedule Year ended For the period
No. 30 June 2000 17 February 1999
to 30 June1999
Income
Interest income 618 -
_618 _
Expenditure T -
Administration
and other
expenses [ 6,933 2,421
6,933 2,421
Loss for the year/period (6,315) (2,421)
Balance brought forward (2,421) -
Balance carried forward
to the balance sheet (8,736) 2,421)

Notes to the accounts 8
As per our report attached

For BSR & Co. For HCL Capital Private Limited, Bermuda
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh Jain Director Director
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000
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Schedules forming part of the accounts
( All amounts in USD )

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 1: Share Capitai
Authorised
12,000 (previous period
12,000) equity shares
of USD 1 each 12,000 12,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
12,000 (previous period nil)
equity shares of USD 1 each, fully 12,000 =
paid up, held by HCL Technologies
(Bermuda) Limited, Bermuda, formerly
HCL Technologies Limited, Bermuda,
the holding company. The ultimate holding
company is HCL Technologies Limited, India.
12,000 -
Schedule 2 : Share application money pending allotment
Received from HCL Technologies
(Bermuda) Limited, Bermuda,
“armerly HCL Technologies Limited,
syrmuda, the holding company - 12,000
- 12,000
Schedule 3 : Unsecured loans
HCL Technologies (Bermuda)
Limited, Bermuda, formerly 39,000 38,000
HCL Technologies Limited, Bermuda
- holding company
39,000 38,000
Schedule 4 : Investments
Long term investment - in shares
Trade and unquoted
106,070 ( previous period 106,070)
equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid
up, in intelicent India Limited,
formerly known as HCL James Martin
(India) Limited. 25,000 25,000
25,000 25,000
Schedule 5: Bank balance
Balance with a non - scheduled bank
- on current account
""Sank of Bermuda (maximum
palance outstanding during the year
USD 25,022, previous period USD 50,000) 18,264 23,579
18,264 23,579
Schedule 6: Current liabilities
Sundry creditors 1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000
Schedule 7: Administration and other expenses
Legal and professional charges 5,933 1,421
Auditor’s remuneration - statutory
audit fees 1,000 _ 1,000
6,933 2,421

Schedule 8: Notes to the accounts

1.  Significant accounting policies

(iy Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis, in accordance with the Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting principles, accounting standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, as adopted consistently by

the Company. All income and expenditure having a material bearing
in the financial statements are recognised on the accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of
compliance with the provisions of section 212 of the Companies Act,
1956.

(i) Expenditure
Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis and provision is
made for all known losses and liabilities.

(i) Investments

Investments are classified into long term and current investments.
Long-term investments are stated at cost and provision is made to
recognise any decline other than temporary in the value of such
investments. Current investmentis are stated at the lower of cost
and the fair value, and provision is made to recognise any decline in
the carrying value.

(iv) Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities are translated at year end rates and resultant gains/losses
on foreign exchange translations other than those relating to fixed
assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Gains/losses
on the translation of foreign exchange liabilities incurred to acquire
fixed assets are included in the carrying cost of such fixed assets.

2. No provision for tax has been made as the Company has not earned
any taxable income during the period.

3. Previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified to
conform to current year classifications.

For HCL Capital Private Limited, Bermuda
Director Director
Place: New Delhi

Date: July 31, 2000

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile
L Registration details
Registration No. Not applicable ~ State Code Not applicable

Balance Sheet

Date 30 June 2000

. Capital raised during the year (USD in thousands)

Public issue Rights issue

Not applicable Not applicable
Bonus issue Private placement
Not applicable 12



Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (USD in
thousands)

Total liabilities Total assets

51 51

Sources of funds

Paid-up capital Reserves and
surplus

12 Nil

Secured loans Unsecured loan

Nil 39

Application of funds

Net fixed assets Investments

Nil 25

Net current assets Misc expenditure

17 Nil

Accumulated losses

9

Performance of Company (USD in thousands)

Turnover Total expenditure
1 7

Loss before tax Loss after tax

6 6

Earnings per Dividend rate <.
share (in USD)

Nil Not applicable

Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as
per monetary terms)

Product description: Investment
ltem code (ITC code): Not applicable

For HCL Capital Private Limited, Bermuda
Director Director

Place: New Dethi
Date: July 31, 2000
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2/0%({)3 471
Other InC . 1769 1347
Operaling Expenditure , &76)
orofit/ (LOSS (1 670)

‘»UBS\D\ARIES: ‘

\ - puring the year, your Company transferred 'rts 100% ewnershrp of
HCL Techno\ogres Europe Limited, UK and its subsrdranee 1o
Technologies America InC- HCL Technologies ope Limited has
subsidiaries in Sweden. Germany, Nether\ands Swrtzer\and,

ym and ialy.
p) Hoo Austria became a subsidiaty of your CO pany in the current
fiscal year. HCL Austria nas a 50% interest in perot Systems, a

joint venture with Perot Systems. a leading 1T ou\sourc'mg an
systems integration Company with major clients in the bankings
energy. nhealthcare. insurance, manufactur'mg, retail and telecommu-
nications industry in North America and Europe.

During the current fiscal, HCL South Africa was setupasa wholly
owned subsidiary of your Company 10 undertake pusiness in South

Africa.
INVESTMENT IN TECHNOLOGY LED FUNDS:

the Company took limited partnership interest in technol-
$8.83 million during the fiscal 2000. The
$2 million in Harmony

c)

During the yean
ogy led funds and invested
Company has also made 8 strategic investment of
Software Inc., 2 start up venture in the 1T sector

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

any dividend for the fiscal
during the year 2000.

Your directors have not recommended 2000.

There has been NO fransfer to reserves
AUDITORS:

M/s BSR & co., Chartered Accountants continue to remain in office as
Auditors of the Company and have confirmed their eligibility and willing-
ness o =ept office, if reappointed.

ACKNO vy LEDGMENTS:

The Directors wish to thank the government authorities, customers,
employees and vendors for their cooperation and assistance extended 0
the Company-

ace. New Dethi For

5 Juty 31, 2000

“\roRs' REPORT

To the Members of
HCL Technologies (Bermuda) Limited, Bermuda
(formerly HCL Technologies Limited)

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of HCL Technologies
(Bermuda) Limited, (formetly HCL Technologies Limited) as at 30 June
2000 and the profit and LOSS Account of the company for the year ended
on that date, annexed thereto.

and on pehalf of the Board
pirector

We report as follows:

we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
pest of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

(@

(p) inour opinion, proper pooks of account as required by law have
peen kept by the company SO far as appears from our examination of

the books;
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@ in the case { Balance sheet,
as at 30 June 2000; an it
(i) inthecase of Profit and LOSS Account, of the joss of the comP Y
the year ended on that date
For BSR & Co.
Charrered Accountants
iesh Jain
Place: New Delhi Raj partner
Date August 2, 2000
eet as at 30 June 2000 .
Balance S ( Al amourts n USD)
schedule NO- As at Asat
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Sources of funds
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 1 1,531 A70 1,368,832
Share applicat'ron money
pending afiotment 2 15,870,000 1 ,250,000
Reserves and surplus 3 8,918,836 7,831 A74
76,320,006 1 0,450,006
Loan funds
Unsecured loans 4 11 ,595,905 421 2,000
37,015,911 1 4,662,006
Application of funds
Investments 5 34,1 80,242 19 ,788,988
Current assets, loans and advances
Cash and pank batances 6 221,578 70,948
Loans and advances 7 824,640 1,811,498
1,046,218 1,882,446
Current liabilities 8 (500,288) (8,529,373)
Net current assets/( liabilities ) 545,930 (6,646,927)
Profit and loss account 3,189,739 1,51 9,945
37,015,911 14,662,006
Notes to the accounts 11
As per our report attached
For BSR & Co- For HCL Technologies (Bermuda) Limited
Chartered Accountants
Rajesh Jain pirector Director
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 2, 2000

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000



\ M amogpyg
n\
Cheduyle Year ended Yoar N
Incom " NQ. 30 Ju“e 2000 ended
Interggt 30 June 1999
XCass Provisie, witon bagy :;’000 471,408
,400 .
Xpendityre — 9550 Rr e
ersonnel EXpenseg 9 207 =
dMinistragio, and other 873 400,653
eXpens,
Interest 10 5311:?83 947,066
vtk
Loss for the year (1%22% 1,347,779
alance broyght forwarg (15196 45) 76,227
Balance carried forwarg 1, o (643,724)
€ balance Sheet
(3,189,739) 1,519
Notes to the accounts 11 (%

As per our report attacheg

For BSR & Co. For HCL Te . .
Chartereq Accountants sehnologies (Bermuda) Limited
Rajesh yain Direct,

or i
Partner Director

Place: New Delhj

Place: New Dejpj
Date:; August 2, 2000

Date: July 31, 2000

Scheduleg forming Part of the accounts
(All amounts jn UsD)
S a As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Scheduyle 1: Share capital
Authoriseq
3,000,000 (previoys year 3,000,000)
equity shares of USD 1 each 3,000,000 3,000,000
Issued, Subscribeg and paig up T e =
1,531,170 {previoys year 1,368,830
equity shareg of USD 1 each, fully
paid up, hejq by HcL Technoiogies
Limited, India, the hoiding Company, 1,531,170 1,368,832
1,531,170 1,368,832

Schedule 2- Share application Money Pending allotment

From HeL Technoiogies Limited, India,

the holding company 15,870,000 1,250,000
15,870,000 1,250,000
Schedule 3. Reserveg and surpiys
Share pPremium
Opening Balance 7,831,174 -
dd: Receiveq during the year 1,087,662 7,831,174
8,918,836 7,831,174
= 1030 =214
Schedule 4: Unsecured loans
From the holding Company 3.850,000 3,850,000
From Subsidiarieg 7,745,905 12,000
From others - 350,000
11 595,905 4,212,000
% %

Note: Dye for epayment within one year USp 2,500,000

(previous Year - Usp 347,000)

e 5 (An amMounie in g

30 June 2000

As ¢
Scheduyle 5: lnvestments 30 June 199

Long term investmenis-
Trade and yn e

In subsidiaries

. (previous e,
equity Shares of USD 1
Paid yp, jn HeL

in Shareg

y i

. 6,399,939
6,000,000 (prev:ous year 6,000,000 )
1

eq.uity shares of us each, fully
paid up, in intelicent Inc.
Uniteq States of Americq

Nij {previoys Year 165,000) equity
Shares of GBP 1 each, fully pa;

12,600, 067

- 2, '!,882
39,500 {previoyg )

shareg of AUD 1 eac
Technoiogies Australig

Pty. Limited, Australig 25,000 3,000
R

25,000
25,000

430,100
12,000 (previous year 12,000) equity
shares of USD1¢

12,000 12,000

6,500,000 (previous year Nil) equity
shares of ATS 1 each, fully paid up, in
HCL Holdings GmbH , Austrig,

896,100 (previous year Nif) €quity shareg

of Rand 1 each, fully pajq up, in

HCL Technoiogies South Africg

(Proprietary) Limited. 126,912 -

In others
1,538,462 Serigs ¢ Preferreq Stock of

$1.30 each, fully paid up, in Harmony
Software Inc.,

Uniteq States of America

Long term investments in Venture
Capital funds Trage and unquoteq
Investment jn Diamond Head Ventures
L.P, Uniteqd States of America,

as a Limiteq Partner

Investment in Carlyle Internet Partners
Europe L.P, United States of America,
as a Limited Partner

Investment in Carlyle Asia Ventyreg
Partners L.P., Uniteq States of America,
as a Limited Partner

Investment in Arena Capital Investment

Fund L.P., Uniteq States of America, as a
Limited Partner

Investment in Viventures, France,
as a Limited Partner

3,710,000 -

2,000,000 7

750,000 S
664,389 -
629,507 -
5,833,705 -

948,623 -

34,180,242 19,788,988
% \
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Schedules forming part of the accounts
( All amounts in USD )

As at As at
30 June 2000 30 June 1999
Schedule 6: Cash and bank balances
Balances with non scheduled banks
- on current accounts
Bank of Bermuda, Bermuda
( maximum balance outstanding during the
year USD 21,299, previous
year USD 101,297) 6,665 21,309
Silicon Valley Bank, United States of America
(maximum balance outstanding during the
year USD 5,255,919,
previous year USD 5,100,000) 214,913 49,639
221,578 70,948
Schedule 7: Loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Advances receivable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received 285,640 571,498
Lo  lo subsidiary companies 539,000 1,240,000
824,640 1,811,498
Schedule 8: Current liabilities
Sundry creditors 500,288 8,529,373
500,288 8,529,373
Schedule 9: Personnel expenses
Salaries, wages, allowances and bonus 201,798 393,378
Stalf welfare 6,075 7,275
207,873 400,653
Schedule 10: Administration and other expense
Insurance - 33,620
Recruitment costs 90,773 54,277
Communication 20,413 13,117
Travel and conveyance 134,548 126,736
Audit fee 7,500 4,000
Legal and professional charges 163,545 675,523
Bank charges 448 345
Miscellaneous expenses 158,074 39,448
Loss on sale of investment to a subsidiary 271,882 -
847,183 947,066

Schedule 11: Notes to the accounts
1.

U

Jnificant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, accounting standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. All income and expenditure having a material bearing in
the financial statements are recognised on the accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of
compliance with the provisions of section 212 of the Companies Act,
1956.

(i) Expenditure
Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis and provision is
made for all known losses and liabilities.

Investments

Investments are classified into long term and current investments.
Long-term investments are stated at cost and provision is made to
recognise any decline other than temporary in the value of such
investments. Current investments are stated at the lower of cost and
the fair value.

(iii)

107

(iv) Foreign exchange transactions
Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets and
fiabilities are translated at year end rates and resultant gains/losses
on foreign exchange translations other than those relating to fixed
assets are recognised in the profit and loss account.

2. No provision for tax has been made as the company has not earned
any taxable income during the year.
3. Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified in order to

conform to current year's classification.
For HCL Technologies (Bermuda) Limited
Director Director
Place: New Delhi

Date: July 31, 2000

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile’
I. Registration details

Registration No. Not applicable  State Code Not applicable
Balance Sheet Date 30 June 2000

Capital raised during the year (USD in thousands)

Public issue Rights issue

Not applicable Not applicable
Bonus issue Private placement
Not applicable 162,338

. Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds

(USD in thousands)
Total liabilities

37,916
Sources of funds

Total assets
37,916

Paid-up capital Reserves and surplus

17,401* 8,919
Secured loans Unsecured loans
Nil 11,596

*includes 15,870 on account of share application money
pending allotment.

Application of funds

Net fixed assets Investments

Nil 34,181

Net current assets Misc. expenditure
546 Nil

Accumulated losses

3,189

IV. Performance of company (USD in thousands)

Turnover Total expenditure
99 1,769

Loss before tax Loss after tax
1,670 1,670

Earnings per share (USD) Dividend rate %
Nil Nil

V. Generic names of Principal Products/Services of Company (as
per monetary terms)

Investment
Not applicable

Product description:
ltem code (ITC code):

For HCL Technologies (Bermuda) Limited
Director Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2000
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HCL Technologies Limited
330, Potrero Avenue
Sunnyvale

CA 94086, USA

Tel : +(1) 408 733 0480
Fax :+(1) 408 733 0482

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

330, Potrero Avenue
Sunnyvale

CA 94086, USA

Tel :"+(1) 408 733 0480
Fax :+(1) 408 733 0482

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

1055, Washington Bivd.
Stamford, CT 06901

Tel : +(1) 203 326 3004
Fax : +(1) 203 462 3369

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

1700 Alma Dr., Suite 250
Pfano, TX 75075

Tel : +(1) 972 509 9000
Fax : +(1) 972 509 9004

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

4199 Campus Drive
Suite 550

Irvine, CA 92612

Tel : +(1) 949 509 6572
Fax : +(1) 949 509 6579

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

25 Vreeland Rd., Bldg.B
Suite 101, Florham Park,
NJ 07932

Tel : +(1) 973 443 9690
Fax : +(1) 973 443 9692

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

101, Hillpointe Dr.

Suite I

Canonsburg, PA 15317
Tel: +(1) 724 743 0220
Fax : +(1) 724 743 0230

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

One Apple Hill, Suite #316
Natick,

Massachusetts 01760

Tel : +(1) 508 650 9931
Fax : +(1) 508 650 2079

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

Two Fountain Square
11921 Freedom Dr.
Suite #550

Reston, Virginia 20190
Tel : +(1) 703 904 4383
Fax : +(1) 703 834 6939

HCL Technologies America, Inc.

1942 Coolidge Road
Troy, Michigan 48084

Tel: +(1) 248 649 9440
'a\i : +(1) 248 649 9441

\
\

Our Offices Worldwide
A

HCL Technologies India Ltd.
A 10-11, Sector-lli,

Noida 201 301

India

Tel : +(91) 11 91 520 977
Fax : +(91) 11 91 550 923

HCL Technologies Europe Ltd.
Network House, Maidenhead,
SL6 4FJ

Berkshire

UK

Tel : +(44) 1628 778 555

Fax : +(44) 1628 777 566

HCL Technologies Europe Ltd.
Representative Office
Adamson House,

Towers Business Park,
Winslow Road,

Tidsbury, Manchester

M20 2YY UK

Tel: +(44) 161 955 4352
Fax:+(44) 161 955 4252

HCL Technologies Sweden AB
Stureplan 4C, 4th Floor

11435 Stockholm

SWEDEN

Tel: +(468) 463 1059

Fax: +(468) 463 1057

HCL Technologies GmbH
Rheinstr. 2

65760 Eschborn
Frankfurt

GERMANY

Tel : +(49) 6173 6072 0
Fax : +(49) 6173 6072 20

HCL Technologies Europe Ltd.
15 Rue Des Pas Perdus,

BP 8338

95804 Cergy Saint -Christophe
FRANCE

Tel : +(331) 3425 4421

Fax : +(331) 3425 4400

HCL Technologies Netherlands BV

Overgoo 15

2266 JZ Leidschendam
THE NETHERLANDS
Tel : +(31) 70 301 2410
Fax: +(31) 70 419 0067

HCL Technologies Schweiz AG
Kirchgasse 24

Postfach 532, BO24 Zurich
SWITZERLAND

Tel: +(41) 12531345

Fax: +(41) 1 253 1346

HCL Technologies Belgium SA/NV

Brussels Airway Park
Lozenberg 10 BUS 2
1930 Zaventem
BELGIUM

Tel : +(32) 2 725 4464
Fax : +(32) 2 725 5341

HCL Technologies ltaly SLR
Largo Augsto 3, 20213
Milano

ITALY
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HCL Technologies Japan Ltd.
3-24-16, Takanawa

ISA Building, 7th Floor,
Minato Ku

Tel : +(81) 3 5793 4321
Fax : +(81) 3 5793 4322

HONG KONG

HCL Technologies Hong Kong Ltd.

35th Floor, Central Plaza
18, Harbour Road
HONG KONG

Tel : +(85) 2 2593 1192
Fax : +(85) 2 2593 1213

AUSTRALIA

HCL Technologies
Australia Pty Ltd.

Level 10, 201 Miller Street
North Sydney

NSW 2060,

AUSTRALIA

Tel : +(61) 2 9929 9900
Fax : +(61) 2 9929 9100

HCL Technologies

Australia Pty Ltd.

Level 11, 350, Collins Street
Melbourne, VIC 3000

-AUSTRALIA

Tel : +(61) 3 9642 5445/ 6
Fax : +(61) 3 9642 8399

NEW ZEALAND

HCL Technologies
New Zealand Ltd.
Level 7, 43 High Street
P.O Box 105-450
Auckland

NEW ZEALAND

Tel : +(64) 9 309 7500
Fax : +(64) 9 309 7590

HCL Technologies New Zealand Ltd.

Level 13' Kirkcaldies Tower
P.O.Box :11542

Wellington

NEW ZEALAND

Tel : +(64) 4 471 6440

Fax : +(64) 4 471 6449

SOUTH AFRICA

HCL Tzchnologies South Africa
Sandton Square

West Tower

Maude St., Sandown
Johannesburg,
SOUTHAFRICA

HCL TECHNOLOGIES

Gautam Budh Nagar

Tel : +(91) 11 9153 5071
Fax : +(91) 11 9153 0591

5
SOFTWARE DEVELOPMEiyt
CENTRES

Client/Server Applications Division
3, Udyog Vihar Phase 1
Gurgaon 122 016

Tel : +(91) 124 342 971
Fax : +(91) 124 340 113

Tel: +(91) 44 822 6624
Fax: +(91) 44 829 4969

Application Solutions
Development Center
J-16, Anna Nagar East
Chennai 600 102, India
Tel: +(91) 44 626 4206
Fax: +(91) 44 628 1120

JOINT VENTURE & SUBSIDIARY

HCL Perot Systems Pvt. Lid.
A10-11, Sector 3,

Tel : +(91) 11 9154 7670
Fax : +(91) 11 9154 4529

HCL Comnet Systems & Services Ltd.
A 10-11, Sector 3

Core Technologies Division
50-53, Greams Road
Chennai 600 Q06

Netcentric Technologies Division

Tel : +(91) 11 9151 0701
Fax: +(91) 11 9151 0713

Networking Products Division
49-50, Nelson Manickam Road, —
Chennai 600 029,

Tel : +(91) 44 374 1939-42
Fax : +(91) 44 374 1038

HCL



